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THROUGH EVERY TWIST AND WEAVE 
OF THE MARKET, WE STAY RESILIENT, 
ASPIRING TO TURN HEADWINDS INTO 
TAILWINDS.

ULTIMATELY, OUR JOURNEY PROVES THAT GROWTH IS FORGED 
THROUGH ADVERSITY. IT’S BY NAVIGATING CHALLENGES AND 
EMBRACING GROWTH THAT A STRONGER, MORE SUSTAINABLE 
FUTURE IS POSSIBLE.

The textile industry weathered a turbulent year, the 
economic slowdown that rippled through global textile 
markets, the reduced demand that squeezed certain 
sectors, and the geopolitical shifts that reshaped the 
competitive landscape. These weren’t just abstract 
threats; they were very real pressures the company had 
to steer through.

Our response is not just about survival, but a determined 
push for growth. This isn’t about ignoring the storm, but 
about finding the opportunities within it.
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“AS WE ADVANCE, WE SHALL REMAIN RESOLUTE IN IMPLEMENTING OUR 
STRATEGIC BLUEPRINT WITH A KEEN EMPHASIS ON GROWTH. WE ARE 
DEDICATED TO REINFORCING OUR CORE BUSINESSES, ACCELERATING 
INNOVATION, AND UNLOCKING EFFICIENCIES WHILE EXPLORING NEW 
OPPORTUNITIES AND NAVIGATING CHALLENGES TO EMBRACE GROWTH.”
Dear Members,
It is an honour to address you as the Chairman of Maral Overseas. Our journey over several decades has been charac-
terised by resilience, innovation, and an unwavering commitment to providing high-quality textile products that clothe 
millions of individuals worldwide. As we navigate the complexities of our global landscape, marked by the perils of 
geopolitical stress, heightened human conflict, protectionist trade policies, environmental degradation, and climate 
change, our dedication to our core values remains steadfast.

STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN’S DESK

PERFORMANCE
FY25 was unrelenting in its challenges. 
The economic slowdown in key 
global textile markets significantly 
impacted the offtake of textiles and 
apparel. Reduced demand, intensified 
competition, and unviable prices 
impacted the textile trade. These 
headwinds impacted our performance, 
too. All our business verticals had 
to contend with reduced order flow, 
resulting in suboptimal operations. 

Our Revenue from Operations 
increased by 9.06% over the previous 
year. However, our Net Loss widened 
from I  9.77 Crore in FY24 to I  24.20 
Crore in FY25 due to increased 
operational costs.

Through strategic initiatives, 
operational efficiency, and market 
responsiveness, we navigated the 
complexities of an otherwise sluggish 
business ecosystem with resilience 
and adaptability. This commitment 
underscores our dedication to 
responsible operations.

PROSPECTS
The ominous clouds that previously 
overshadowed the growth drivers 
of the textile sector seem to be 
dissipating, permitting the emergence 
of more favourable prospects. 

With inflation management being 
effectively controlled on a global 
scale due to the prudent strategies 
implemented by Central Banks, 
discretionary spending is gradually 
reviving, particularly in the United 
States and Europe, which are two 
significant textile-consuming markets. 

Furthermore, India is resolutely 
committed to establishing itself as 
a global trade hub and is diligently 
negotiating trade agreements with its 
business partners that yield mutually 
beneficial outcomes.

India and the United Kingdom 
concluded a landmark Free Trade 
Agreement (FTA) on 6th May 2025. 
Under this FTA, 99% of Indian exports 
to UK, including textiles, will become 
duty-free. The removal of the 12% 
import duty on Indian textiles positions 
India to better compete with Asian 
countries like Bangladesh and Sri 
Lanka. This agreement is expected to 
significantly boost India’s textile and 
apparel exports to the UK, potentially 
reclaiming the market share lost over 
the past decade.

India and the European Union 
(EU) are currently contemplating 
the negotiation of a free trade 
agreement (FTA). This agreement is 
anticipated to be “the largest deal of 
its kind anywhere in the world,” with 
negotiations progressing in phases 
amid a fluctuating global trading 
environment resulting from the 
significant imposition of tariffs by the 
United States. Both national leaders 
have expressed a strong desire to 
finalise this highly anticipated free 
trade agreement by 2025.

Additionally, the ongoing political 
instability in Bangladesh has disrupted 

garment factory operations and supply 
chains, prompting several global 
buyers to reconsider their sourcing 
strategies. This shift presents a 
strategic opportunity for the domestic 
players to capture increased demand 
and realign supply networks.

Moreover, India stands poised to be 
the first nation to secure a bilateral 
trade agreement to circumvent 
the reciprocal tariffs imposed by 
the United States. This economic 
document aims to increase trade from 
over US$190 billion to US$500 billion 
by 2030. 

Furthermore, having established a 
reputation as a dependable business 
partner that honours its commitments 
despite challenges, Indian companies 
are increasingly favoured as sourcing 
hubs by European brands.

The domestic market continues 
to exhibit significant resilience. 
The growth of the economy has 
augmented discretionary spending 
power, and the rising proportion 
of youth within India’s workforce, 
along with controlled inflation, has 
considerably mitigated consumer 
concerns. This trend is anticipated to 
stimulate increased demand in the 
future. 

Flagship initiatives such as ‘Make 
in India’ and ‘Atmanirbhar Bharat’ 
are generating vital momentum for 
the long-term growth trajectory of 
the textile sector. The government’s 
emphasis on localising critical 
elements of textile production, in 
conjunction with incentive schemes 
such as the Production Linked 
Incentive (PLI), is expected to foster 
substantial and sustained demand 
for textile products in the foreseeable 
future.

PRIORITIES
In the aftermath of recent challenges, 
we have engaged in discussions, 

deliberations, and decision-making 
regarding essential strategies to 
restore Maral to its winning trajectory. 
Two predominant themes will underpin 
our strategic framework for the future: 
Consolidation and Value-Addition. The 
former will concentrate on optimising 
operating costs, while the latter will 
strive to enhance realisation. This 
judicious combination is expected to 
bolster our business profitability and 
generate value for all our stakeholders.

PROMISE
As we advance, we shall remain 
resolute in implementing our strategic 
blueprint with a keen emphasis on 
growth. We are dedicated to reinforcing 
our core businesses, accelerating 
innovation, and increasing efficiencies 
while exploring new opportunities and 
navigating challenges to embrace 
growth.

IN CLOSING 
In closing, I would like to express 
my sincere appreciation to all our 
stakeholders for their confidence and 
continued support. I am confident that 
we will embark on an exciting growth 
journey ahead. Looking forward to our 
prosperous future.

Warm regards,

Shekhar Agarwal 
Chairman & Managing Director  
and CEO

CORPORATE 
OVERVIEW

STATUTORY
REPORT

FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

32
ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25



THE AGE-OLD PROVERB IS  

‘BEHIND EVERY 
CLOUD, THERE IS 
A SILVER LINING.’ 
WE BELIEVE THAT THE GLIMMERING RAYS OF 
HOPE WILL CREATE A SHIMMERING HORIZON AS 
WE PROGRESS. WE ARE CREATING A PLATFORM 
TO BRIGHTEN OUR PROSPECTS.

THE YARN BUSINESS
The spinning industry experienced inclement weather. All was not lost for us as 
pockets of opportunity ensured our machines hummed throughout the year. But it 
impacted our business profitability severely. 

As we persevered through challenging times, we recognised the criticality of moving 
up the value chain. This strategy would enhance asset utilisation and make our 
business increasingly profitable. We are happy that we have made a healthy start in 
this direction. 

WE COMMISSIONED OUR MELANGE UNIT
The melange unit has proven to be exceptionally successful. We launched an 
extensive product basket, which garnered immediate traction. Our capacity 
utilisation has improved with each passing month. By the end of the year, we 
successfully reached the break-even point. The performance is anticipated 
to further escalate in the current year. 

WE ARE MODERNISING OUR FLEET
We are in the process of replacing our legacy equipment with advanced 
technological variants that will enhance productivity, optimise production 
costs, and improve our operational flexibility.

WE ARE EXPANDING OUR DYED YARN CAPACITY
Despite the challenges present in the yarn industry, the demand for our dyed 
yarn has remained consistent. Furthermore, it is anticipated to increase 
when the industry landscape shifts positively. In order to capitalise on this 
opportunity, we are augmenting our dyed yarn manufacturing capacity as a 
component of our modernisation initiative.

WE ARE DEDICATED TO FOSTERING 
PROGRESS AND BUILDING A BRIGHTER 
TOMORROW.

1

2

3
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THE ADAGE IS …  

‘MAKE HAY WHILE 
THE SUN SHINES’ 
…. INTERESTINGLY, THE SUNSHINE ON 
OUR FABRIC BUSINESS WAS INDEED HEART-
WARMING. WE ARE WORKING ON USING THE 
ENERGY TO MOVE FORWARD.

THE FABRIC BUSINESS

The sluggishness of the fabric segment since the fiscal year FY23 has dissipated, 
bringing in a wave of interesting business opportunities. 

While we navigated through the torrid weather in earlier years to keep our heads 
above the water, we now see an opportunity to ride the wave. We have created a 
comprehensive roadmap that will firmly place us on the path to progress. 

WE ARE EXPANDING OUR FABRIC MANUFACTURING CAPACITY
We are acquiring two new machines that exhibit a range of capabilities and 
capacities, providing us with the necessary flexibility to address the various 
requirements of international and domestic clients. 

WE ARE INCREASING OUR SAMPLING CAPABILITY 
We are investing in new equipment that will significantly enhance our 
capability for sampling skills and expedite the development and delivery of 
product swatches to prospective customers.

WE PLAN TO MAKE OUR OPERATIONS ‘ZERO COAL’ 
We have undertaken an investment to substitute coal with biofuel as the 
primary energy source for our boiler and Thermopac. This significant step 
will facilitate our transition to a ‘Zero Coal’ operation and enhance our appeal 
among discerning customers across the globe. 

WE WILL REJIG OUR CUSTOMER BASE
We are currently rebalancing our product portfolio to optimise our customer 
base, aiming to achieve greater economies of scale and improved 
realisations. Furthermore, we will intensify our efforts to strengthen our 
presence in the United States. In addition, we will focus on expanding our 
customer base through the Nomination route, providing superior product 
value and ensuring long-term revenue visibility

WE ARE COMMITTING OURSELVES 
TO PURSUING GROWTH AND A MORE 
PROMISING FUTURE.

1
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‘IF YOU WANT TO SEE 
THE SUNSHINE, YOU 
MUST WEATHER THE 
STORM’…  

AND WEATHER THE STORM WE DID. SO NOW WE ARE 
PREPARING FOR MANY A BRIGHTER DAYS. 

The mayhem in the external world dented business significantly. We braved. We 
endured. We survived. Only with a stronger conviction and roadmap for recalibrating 
our business to make it even more resilient. In doing so, we expect to graduate our 
profitability a few notches higher. 

WE ARE WIDENING OUR OPPORTUNITY WINDOWS
We addressed the concerns of our current clients by committing to fostering 
stronger bonds. We established multiple leads anticipated to generate a 
robust pipeline for future opportunities. While transitioning leads to orders 
has a considerable gestation, we are happy to have sown the seed for a 
brighter tomorrow. 

WE HAVE CONSOLIDATED OUR OPERATIONS
We determined to optimise our operating costs to strengthen our positioning 
in an otherwise highly competitive business space. We consolidated our 
operations into two units. We are also modernising our equipment fleet with 
new-age automation solutions for error-free operations. 

WE ARE DIVERSIFYING OUR CUSTOMER BASE
We are diversifying our customer portfolio by tailoring our offerings to cater 
to medium-quantity buyers within more favourable price segments. We will 
focus on adding high-value customers to our client base, aiming to improve 
business profitability. This strategy will broaden our market penetration, 
enhance revenue streams, and build a more resilient and diversified 
customer base.

WE ARE MAKING THE INVISIBLE, VISIBLE 
We have implemented a QR code-based system for tracking deliveries 
and efficiency. By fostering a performance-oriented environment, we are 
ultimately turning “invisible” contributions into “visible” drivers of our 
progress.

WE DEDICATE OURSELVES TO ADVANCING 
OPPORTUNITIES AND A BETTER FUTURE.

1
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We are a Noida-based integrated textile company 
with a presence in yarns, fabrics and garments, 
which are marketed to marquee corporates in India 
and worldwide. Our yarn and fabric production is 
centred at the Maral Sarovar facility in the heart of 
India’s cotton region. Our garment manufacturing 
takes place at our production facilities located in 
the NCR area. 

We are part of the renowned LNJ Bhilwara Group, 
a long-established and diversified Indian business 
conglomerate with interests spanning textiles, 
energy, graphite electrodes, and information 
technology. Under the able guidance of Shri Shekhar 
Agarwal and Shri Shantanu Agarwal, the Company’s 
day-to-day operations are overseen by a team of 
seasoned professionals.

A CORPORATE SNAPSHOT

MARAL 
OVERSEAS 
LIMITED:  
WE HAVE A STRONG 
PRESENCE ACROSS THE 
TEXTILE VALUE CHAIN 

OUR STRATEGIC GOALS
COMMITMENT TO EXCELLENCE
We benchmark ourselves against industry leaders, driving efficiency, agility, and productiv-
ity to maximise company value.

CUSTOMER-CENTRIC APPROACH 
We prioritise understanding and fulfilling our customers’ needs through tailored products 
and innovative business solutions.

DRIVING INNOVATION
We proactively embrace change, capitalising on opportunities in the textile industry.

Male Female

Team size 
5,114+

68.13% 31.87%

Debt Networth

Capital employed in the business
285.76Crore

61.89% 38.11%

Yarn Fabrics Garments

Revenue
1,047.03Crore

51.77% 25.83% 22.39%
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VERTICAL INTEGRATION 
We benefit significantly from our vertically integrated structure. By encompassing the entire textile value chain, from 
yarn production to finished garments, substantial control over operations is attained.

SPECIAL YARN 
Our capability to manufacture specialised yarns creates 
opportunities within niche markets. These specialised yarns 
frequently yield higher profit margins while addressing 
specific industry requirements.

PROPORTION OF PRODUCTS USED IN-HOUSE

COMPETITIVE EDGE

OUR ABILITY TO NAVIGATE CHALLENGES RESTS ON 
PILLARS THAT STABILISE THE ORGANISATION

Of our yarn production is 
used by our fabric vertical

Proportion of total yarn 
production

Of our fabric production is 
used by our garment division21.46%

13.32%

18.64%
RELIABILITY 
We utilise advanced planning tools, such as MQM, to carefully manage projects and meet deadlines. On-time delivery 
(OTD) is a key measure of our supply chain’s efficiency and performance. We are also in the process of introducing 
AI Tools for superior analytics and forecasting, which will facilitate data-backed decision-making. 

TECHNOLOGICAL ADVANCEMENT
We sustain a competitive advantage through ongoing 
investment in cutting-edge technology. Our dedication 
to upgrading machinery and embracing innovative 
manufacturing practices guarantees operational efficiency 
and product excellence.

Amount invested for 
modernising equipment at the 
operating facility during the 
last five years, (FY20-FY25)

 64.60      CRORE

SUSTAINABILITY
We build sustainability into every production stage, from 
sourcing materials to conserving water and energy, and 
managing waste.

Water recycled in 
downstream activities. 96.63%
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

OUR PERFORMANCE OVER THE YEARS
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Maral Industries has maintained a steadfast commitment to optimising performance despite challenging sectoral 
dynamics. Its resilience is evident in strategic initiatives to mitigate the impact of volatile market conditions. By 
leveraging innovation and adaptability, Maral continues to strengthen its operational efficiency, which will reflect in 
the Company’s performance moving forward.
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“AS WE REMAIN RESOLUTE IN 
EXECUTING OUR STRATEGIES 
WITH DISCIPLINED DEDICATION, 
WE ARE ALSO ACUTELY AWARE 
OF THE SECTORAL REALITIES 
AND TRENDS, ENSURING THAT 
OUR INITIATIVES PROPEL THE 
ORGANISATION CLOSER TO ITS 
LONG TERM OBJECTIVES.”
Dear Members,
In light of the significant volatility faced by the 
industry throughout the year, our performance 
serves as a testament to the remarkable 
resilience demonstrated by Maral Overseas in 
overcoming challenges. Although our business 
has not been exempted from the pervasive 
economic pressures, we are equipped with a 
distinct advantage. Our well-established legacy 
provides a robust foundation that has facilitated 
our navigation through the inherent uncertainties 
and dynamic nature of our business. This strong 
foundation is evidenced by our capacity to meet 
the demands of a renowned global clientele. 

MESSAGE FROM THE  
JOINT MANAGING DIRECTOR

Our performance – the good 
& the bad 
While we have remained dedicated 
to enhancing and refining our 
competitive edge, such efforts are 
not fully reflected in our financial 
outcomes. Revenue from operations 
increased by 9.06% compared to the 
previous fiscal year, while EBITDA 
decreased from I 59.75 Crore in FY24 
to I 45.22 Crore in FY25. Moreover, 
our net loss widened I 9.76 Crore in 
FY24 to I 24.20 Crore in FY25. This 
disappointing performance is not 
unique to our Company but is apparent 
across nearly all sector participants, 
aptly illustrating the severity of the 
challenges faced by the textile sector. 

All our business verticals were 
significantly affected due to subdued 
demand from both international and 
domestic customers. Furthermore, 
price erosion resulting from increased 
competitive intensity has adversely 
impacted operating margins. 

A notable achievement this year was 
our foray into the niche melange 
market. We inaugurated the state-
of-the-art facility in March’2024. The 
commencement of this unit has 
been quite encouraging, as we have 
progressively increased both product 
and sales volumes. Our customers 
have expressed satisfaction with our 
offerings, and I am optimistic that 
demand for our product range will gain 
increasing traction as we progress 
forward. 

Our blueprint – a volume-
value play

Reminiscing about our journey through 
the previous fiscal has brought to the 
fore two critical aspects where we 
need to concentrate our efforts – 
cost management and value addition. 
These levers promise to strengthen 
our resilience and adaptability to 
navigate sectoral challenges and 
remain firmly positioned to embrace 
growth. 

We have drawn up a comprehensive 
strategy for all our business verticals, 
which aims to address both of these 
themes, ultimately facilitating a 
turnaround in business fortunes 
and sustaining our momentum of 
profitable growth thereafter. 

In our yarn segment, we are 
augmenting the capacity of dyed and 
mélange yarns, which is expected 
to diminish our reliance on grey 
yarn (a commodity product within a 
highly competitive space). We are 
modernising our grey yarn equipment 
with automated, high-speed machinery 
to optimise operational costs. In our 
fabric sector, we are enhancing our 
equipment fleet and aligning our 
business to attain preferred partner 
status with international players. 
In our garment vertical, we remain 
committed to cost reduction and 
increased automation to enhance our 
appeal to international brands. We 
are consolidating our operations to 
two operating units, which will further 
reduce our overall cost of operations, 
further sharpening our competitive 
edge. Across all our verticals, we have 
intensified our efforts towards new 
product development, focusing on 
innovative products that are in high 
demand. 

While we work to fortify our core 
operations, we observe a reduction in 
sector sluggishness, paving the way 
for promising opportunities. 

1) The multiple challenges in the 
Bangladesh market, India’s strong 
competitor in the global textile and 
apparel trade, have forced Western 
fashion brands to look beyond 
this nation as part of their risk 
mitigation strategy. A part of this 
business will transition to India 
over a period of time. 

2) The tariff war initiated by the US 
has only strengthened India’s 
position, not only in the US market 
but also in other large and growing 
textile product markets. 

3) The much-talked-about ‘China+1’ 
trend is gradually gaining 
momentum with Western countries 
making a beeline for India. 

4) Retail channels for textile products 
have also dried up owing to 
throttled purchases in the previous 
fiscal, indicating better demand 
prospects in the current year. 

Our message – a journey of 
endurance and effort
As we embark on a journey that holds 
the promise of substantial value, we 
earnestly seek your continued support 
in the endeavour of cultivating a more 
effective organisation.

Our potential for growth, in conjunction 
with our diversified product portfolio 
and expanded geographical presence, 
establishes a robust foundation for 
enhanced performance. While we 
anticipate a rise in volumes over 
the forthcoming months, we are 
committed to exerting all efforts 
necessary to consistently uphold 
our commitments and maintain the 
superior standards of delivery that 
characterise our organisation.

As we remain resolute in executing 
our strategies with disciplined 
dedication, we are also acutely aware 
of the sectoral realities and trends, 
ensuring that our initiatives propel 
the organisation closer to its growth 
objectives.

We depend on your steadfast 
support and trust as we navigate the 
challenges and opportunities that 
lie ahead. In conclusion, I extend 
my sincere gratitude to each of you 
for your unwavering support and 
collaboration.

Warm regards,

Shantanu Agarwal 
Joint Managing Director
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BUSINESS
VERTICALS
At Maral, we take pride in our diverse portfolio across the textile value chain. These 
verticals showcase our commitment to delivering value, enhancing efficiency and 
meeting the requirements of discerning global fashion brands.
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THE YARN BUSINESS

Spindles (including the 
melange unit)

Revenue in FY25  
(₹ Crore)
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Contribution to total 
revenue (%)
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OVERVIEW
The yarn division is the Company’s 
flagship, a dynamic force propelling 
our growth. The Company specialises 
in crafting a broad range of yarns, 
which include:

 Classic Comfort: Pure cotton for 
everyday wear

 Innovative Blends: Performance 
yarns designed for active lifestyles

 Speciality Fibres: Sustainable and 
eco-friendly options

This extensive range empowers Maral 
to address the varied requirements 
of the textile industry, encompassing 
both fashion and sustainable 
solutions.

The Company’s commitment to quality 
constitutes the cornerstone of our 
enduring relationships with prominent 
textile companies, both domestically 
and internationally. It continually 
invests in cutting-edge technology and 
sophisticated equipment to guarantee 
that our yarns maintain a leading 
position within the industry.

PERFORMANCE
The yarn industry has reported a 
significant decline in performance. 
A sluggish global textile market, 
particularly in key consumer regions 
such as the United States and Europe, 
has cast a concerning shadow over 
the yarn trade, which serves as a 
foundational element for the textile 
and apparel sector.

The grey yarn segment (commodity 
business) was the worst hit. Demand 
from traditional export markets 
decreased markedly due to a variety 
of challenges. The political unrest in 
Bangladesh has further exacerbated 
the difficulties. 

In light of the formidable challenges 
faced by the export sector, the 
Company redirected its focus towards 
the more resilient domestic market. 
The team prioritised the enhancement 

of customer relations to capture 
increased market share. 

The Company’s thoughtfully calibrated 
marketing strategy has ensured that 
the bleak external conditions did 
not substantially disrupt its factory 
operations. Operations at the grey 
yarn factory experienced a slight 
decline in line with the external market 
conditions. 

Despite the external volatility, the dyed 
yarn operations continued to thrive. 
This success is attributed to the 
Company’s established reputation as 
a supplier of high-quality dyed yarns. 
This competitive advantage has 
sustained the order flow throughout 
the year. 

Signs of recovery were apparent 
towards the conclusion of the 
financial year, as purchasing from 
Bangladesh partially rebounded. 
Additionally, the depreciation of the 
rupee has contributed positively to 
profit realisation. 

The highlight of the year was the 
commissioning of the Melange Unit in 

March’2024. The unit has progressively 
increased its operations month by 
month following its commissioning 
and has achieved a break-even point. 
The success of this unit is owing to 
the range of the products and their 
quality, which has been well accepted 
by the existing customers (domestic 
and international). This unit is poised 
to become a crucial driver of growth 
and profitability for the yarn business 
in the coming years. 

PRIORITIES
The Company intends to execute 
a comprehensive modernisation 
program aimed at replacing outdated 
equipment and improving operational 
capacity. This initiative will further 
assist the organisation in shifting 
towards value-added products, 
thereby augmenting the overall 
profitability of both the division 
and the Company. In conjunction 
with this effort, the Company will 
enhance its emphasis on new product 
development, with the objective of 
creating innovative product portfolios 
that align with emerging trends and 
customer preferences.
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THE FABRIC BUSINESS

Knitting machines

Capacity (tonnes)

Revenue in FY25 
(₹ Crore)

Contribution to total 
revenue (%)
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Revenue contribution 
by 1st-time 
customers in FY251.72%

OVERVIEW
The Company’s knitted fabrics 
segment is the cornerstone of 
its success, a testament to its 
comprehensive in-house expertise. 
The Company controls every 
production stage, from spinning dyed 
yarn to knitting, brushing, sueding, 
and digital printing, providing us with 
a distinct competitive edge. This 
full-spectrum capability offers an 
unparalleled variety of knit fabrics, 
serving inner and outerwear needs. 

The Fabric Division boasts a 
substantial capacity of 650 tons per 
month tons, encompassing:

  Stretch Fabrics: 250 tons
 Printed Fabrics: 30 tons
  Striped Fabrics: 50 tons

The Company produces a wide array 
of knitted fabrics, including Single 
Jerseys, Ribs, Interlocks, Piques, 
Honey Combs, Fleece, Plaited & 
Variegated Structured fabrics, Feeder 
& Engineered stripes, and more, in 
100% cotton and blends. 

The knitting division procures 
approximately 30% of its yarn from 
the spinning unit. About 19% of its 
output is enhanced into garments; the 
remainder is marketed to prestigious 
brands in India and internationally.

The Company’s commitment to quality 
is demonstrated through its business 
operations. It employs imported 
cotton to produce yarns for making 
immaculate white and light fabrics; 
it executes stringent contamination 
control measures; it utilises cutting-
edge colour-matching technology 
sourced from global industry leaders 
and has made substantial investments 
in state-of-the-art testing equipment 
to ensure product compliance with 
client specifications.

The Company maintains a robust 
presence in various global markets, 
including Vietnam, Indonesia, Portugal 
and Turkey, with exports constituting 
approximately 43.77% of the division’s 
revenue.

PERFORMANCE
A sluggish business environment 
that has affected the fabric industry 
since the onset of fiscal year 2024 
has given way to improved prospects, 
as order inflow has increased from 
the second half of fiscal year 2025. 
This development has afforded 
the flexibility to pursue orders that 
optimise returns for the division 
selectively. 

Furthermore, the business 
environment has improved due to the 
political turmoil in Bangladesh, which 
has resulted in the transference of 
international opportunities to India. 
The sentiment within the business 
sector has also been positively 
influenced by the dollar’s depreciation, 
which has enhanced India’s and 
Maral’s competitive position in global 
markets. Additionally, the proactive 
marketing initiatives undertaken 
by the team have contributed to an 
increase in order flow. 

Consequently, capacity utilisation has 
progressively improved. An increased 
emphasis on product development 
has revitalised the product portfolio 

with innovative offerings. The team 
has successfully developed critical 
fabric variants for a prestigious global 
customer, which promises to foster 
business relations over the medium 
term.

PRIORITIES
The Company has drawn a 
comprehensive blueprint to sustain its 
growth momentum during the current 
year. 

 1 Capacity expansion to cater to 
the growing business volumes and to 
seamlessly cater to a wider customer 
base.

 2 Focus on rebalancing the product 
basket to prioritise products that offer 
superior realisation and economies of 
scale.

 3 Replace coal with biofuel as the 
primary energy source; a zero-carbon 
footprint will position Maral favourably 
with international buyers.
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THE GARMENT BUSINESS

Sewing machines

Capacity (pcs/month)

Contribution to total 
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Revenue of the 
division accrues from 
international clients73.01%

OVERVIEW
Maral’s garmenting business 
constitutes a critical value-added 
component that significantly 
enhances overall business profitability 
and solidifies its position within the 
textile sector as a distinguished global 
player. More than 73% of our garment 
output is produced and supplied 
to prestigious international brands, 
illustrating our capacity to fulfill 
the demanding standards of global 
clients.

The company manufactures an 
extensive array of garments, including 
activewear, casual wear, athleisure, 
and sleepwear. The division utilises 
conventional and organic fair-trade 
materials for its collections aimed at 
both men and women.

The company operates two 
garmenting units capable of 
delivering a variety of fabric textures 
and finishes, surpassing customer 
expectations. Its in-house spinning 
and fabric production capabilities 
facilitate a faster turnaround than 
many competitors and ensure rigorous 
quality control. 

The team’s comprehensive knowledge 
of yarns and fabrics, along with their 
expertise in blending complementary 
materials, empowers the company 
to offer a broad product range 
meticulously tailored to customer 
aesthetics.

PERFORMANCE
The prevailing uncertainty in the 
global environment, particularly in 
Western nations, due to geopolitical 
tensions, sluggish economic growth, 
and escalating inflation, has adversely 
affected the demand for garments. 
Given that garment purchases are 
categorised under discretionary 
spending, the acquisition of new 
clothing has been deprioritised. Maral, 
similar to other industry participants, 
faced significant challenges stemming 
from the weakened demand. 

Throughout the year, the Company 
focused on business consolidation 
as its primary strategy aimed at cost 
reduction. It diligently endeavoured 
to strengthen relationships with its 
large international clientele, which 
bodes well for the upcoming years. 
Additionally, the team aggressively 
pursued leads to generate new 
opportunities, achieving substantial 
success. 

The Company streamlined its 
manufacturing operations from 
three facilities to two, as part of a 
cost optimisation initiative, which is 
expected to significantly enhance its 
competitive advantage in an otherwise 
dynamic business landscape. The 
consolidation of production facilities 
typically indicates that Company has 
not given up the machines but has 
vacated the rented premise to reduce 
fixed overhead. The installed capacity 
has been rationalised based on the 
current order flow, with the objective 
of optimally utilising the available 
capacity.

Furthermore, the Company undertook 
a comprehensive restructuring of a 
substantial portion of its operations 

team to inject renewed energy and 
expertise into its manufacturing 
processes. The newly hired employees 
underwent extensive training on 
the standard operating procedures 
(SOPs) for manufacturing to ensure 
compliance by all machine operators.

PRIORITIES 
Following the completion of a 
comprehensive consolidation 
exercise, the Company will now 
concentrate on enhancing the 
restructured division to restore its 
profitability.

 1 Maral will concentrate on cultivating 
business with its primary international 
clients. Furthermore, the Company will 
diligently pursue the establishment 
of stronger relationships with key 
leads, transitioning towards increased 
business volumes. 

 2 At the operations level, the 
Company intends to modernise its 
equipment and implement automation 
solutions to optimise its reliance on 
human capital.

CORPORATE 
OVERVIEW

STATUTORY
REPORT

FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

2524
ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25



MANAGEMENT 
DISCUSSION 
& ANALYSIS

The Economic Environment
Global Economy: The global economy 
stabilised, with the GDP reporting a 
healthy growth at 3.2% in CY 2024, 
driven by moderate inflation and 
resilient yet divergent consumer 
spending.

Additionally, the beginning of monetary 
policy easing in major economies 
contributed to this growth. Notably, 
the Federal Reserve implemented 
a 25-basis point interest rate cut to 
support future progress in the U.S. 
economy.

Manufacturing growth was slow and 
uneven. Industrialised economies 
lagged behind industrialising 
economies in recent years, although 
both groups followed similar trends 
in 2024. High-technology industries 
performed well, while the low-tech 
manufacturing sector remained flat.

Global trade hit a record of $33 trillion 
in 2024, expanding 3.7% primarily 
driven by a growth in services trade, 
which rose by 9% for the year and 
added US$700 billion , nearly 60% of 
the total growth. Most regions saw 
positive growth, except for Europe 
and Central Asia. Growth varied by 
industry – agri-food, communication 
technology and transport saw gains, 
while energy, apparel and extractives 
slowed due to weaker demand and 
policy shifts. However, the 2025 trade 

Indian Economy: The National 
Statistics Office’s First Advance 
Estimates project, register a moderate 
growth of 6.5% in FY2024-25, down 
from 9.2% in FY2023-24. But even with 
that number, India is still considered 
the fastest-growing major economy in 
the world.

A significant driver of this growth 
was the robust rural demand, which 
was further supported by favourable 
monsoon conditions and increased 
government spending. However, the 
slowdown highlights a more tempered 
pace of overall economic activity and 
indicates that the economy’s growth 
in this fiscal is much slower than in the 
last four years.

Overall consumer spending has 
surged, with private final consumption 
expenditure (PFCE) rising to 7.3% 
in FY25 from 4% in FY24, except 
for the urban consumption that has 
been severely affected, with inflation 
eroding the purchasing power of the 
urban poor. However, by the end of the 
fiscal year, moderating food inflation 
brought some relief.

Also, the slowdown in private 
investments and exports was a key 
factor weighing on the economy. 
However, Government consumption 
final expenditure (GFCE) has shown 
improvement, growing by 4.1% 
compared to 2.5% in the previous year. 
Also, merchandise exports are likely 
to witness a modest 2.2% growth in 
FY25, with trade policy uncertainty 
and geopolitical risks remaining.

The manufacturing sector’s 
performance was hampered too, by a 
confluence of factors such as reduced 
global demand, which impacted 
exports, and seasonal fluctuations 
within the domestic market. During the 
period April’2024 to February’2025, 
gross GST collections grew 9.4% to 
I  20.13 Lakh Crore, while net GST 
collections rose 8.6% to I  17.79 Lakh 
Crore. The higher collection indicates 
a healthier business environment, 

outlook is clouded by potential US 
policy shifts, including broader tariffs 
that could disrupt global value chains 
and impact key trading partners.

Outlook: The global economy is 
anticipated to experience a growth 
rate of 3.3% during 2025 and 2026, 
primarily bolstered by advancements 
in the United States, which is 
expected to mitigate declines in other 
significant economies. Inflation rates 
will diminish to 4.2% in 2025 and 3.5% 
in 2026. Developed nations are likely 
to achieve target inflation levels faster 
than developing nations. Overall global 
shipping costs are down from their 
recent peaks, and a potential Red Sea 
reopening offers further price drops 
if peace holds. Moreover, geopolitical 
tensions, trade restrictions, and 
climate-related challenges could 
exacerbate disruptions within this 
economic landscape. Consequently, 
imposing tariffs on all imports will 
make it more expensive for U.S. 
businesses, which will likely raise 
prices for American consumers and 
could cause a recession. Recent 
talks of a potential Russia-Ukraine 
ceasefire offer hope for lower global 
commodity prices and improved 
supply chains, which could boost 
economic confidence. However, given 
the fragile nature of such discussions 
and persistent geopolitical tensions, 
the positive economic effects remain 
uncertain and depend heavily on the 
terms and durability of any agreement.
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suggesting increased economic 
activity, higher consumption, and 
potentially better compliance, although 
inflation could also play a vital role. 

Outlook: The RBI forecasts a GDP 
growth of 6.7% for India in FY26, 
driven by robust rabi crops, industrial 
recovery, and increased consumer 
spending due to tax relief. Rebounding 
manufacturing activities, fixed 
investment, higher capacity utilisation, 
and better-than-expected corporate 
balance sheets further support 

this outlook. However, global risks 
such as geopolitical tensions, trade 
protectionism, volatile commodity 
prices, and uncertainties in financial 
markets pose significant challenges to 
this positive forecast. 

Additionally, a muted global growth 
outlook and a delayed synchronised 
recovery in industrial economies, amid 
changing trade and policy regulations 
compared to previous expectations, 
will likely hinder India’s exports and 
outlook for the next fiscal year. India 

The Textile Sector

Global Textile Market
The global textile industry constitutes 
a fundamental component of the 
manufacturing sector and plays 
an indispensable role in the global 
economy. Prominent players in the 
industry include countries such as 
China, India, Bangladesh, and Turkey, 
which serve as significant hubs for 
textile production. In addition to this. 
Vietnam’s textile industry has risen 
to global prominence, driven by trade 
agreements, competitive labour costs, 
and foreign investment. The industry is 
profoundly interlinked with the fashion, 
retail, and home furnishing sectors, 
driving consumer demand. 

Sustainability has emerged as a 
paramount concern, with concerted 
efforts directed towards mitigating 
environmental impacts and adopting 
eco-friendly practices. The Paris 
Agreement is a worldwide plan for 
countries to cut their carbon emissions 
based on their own goals. Reaching 
worldwide net-zero goals requires a 
combined effort involving government 
regulations and private sector ingenuity. 
Governments are establishing laws 
and funding mechanisms to back 
net-zero ambitions, while businesses 
are developing carbon-reducing 
technologies, including carbon 
capture and storage. Innovations in 

textile technologies, including smart 
fabrics and technical textiles, are 
poised to shape the industry’s future. 
Trade policies, tariffs, and geopolitical 
factors exert substantial influence 
over the dynamics of global textile 
trade. Furthermore, the advent of 
e-commerce has revolutionised the 
marketing and sale of textiles, thereby 
augmenting access to global markets.

Performance in 2024: Adaptability 
became the fabric of survival
The year has seen dynamic shifts 
and surprising resilience in the global 
textile sector. Despite numerous 
challenges, the industry demonstrated 
an impressive ability to adapt and 
innovate. 

Challenges persist as the global 
capacity utilisation rate slipped to 72% 
despite being above previous lows. 
Home textiles was the only segment 
that registered a positive growth. 

The divergent performance has 
been majorly influenced by changing 
economic conditions and consumer 
preferences. This resulted in some 
regions expanding market share while 
others faced contraction. Specifically, 
nations with established reliance on 
exports to Western markets, most 
notably China and select European 
countries, faced considerable 
headwinds. These difficulties occurred 

due to several factors, including 
a marked reduction in consumer 
spending within Western markets and 
global competitive pressures. South 
Asia and South America recorded 
strong positive performances in 2024. 

Further, nations like Bangladesh and 
Vietnam benefited from their low labour 
costs and developed manufacturing 
sectors. This effectively attracted 
substantial foreign investment, 
thereby expanding their respective 
market shares. 

However, by the end of 2024, 
Bangladesh’s textile industry suffered 
major setbacks from political unrest, 
floods and LNG shortage. Protests 
disrupted operations and exports, while 
the LNG crisis reduced production 
capacity, causing export shortfalls 
and higher costs. The government is 
now pursuing reforms to stabilise the 
struggling sector.

SEVERAL FACTORS INFLUENCING 
GLOBAL TEXTILES IN 2024. THEY ARE

ECONOMIC SLOWDOWN
The global economic slowdown significantly impacted 
consumer spending, decreasing demand for apparel and 
textiles. This was particularly evident in major markets like 
the US and Europe.

INFLATION AND RISING COSTS
Inflationary pressures and increased raw material costs, 
especially cotton, squeezed profit margins for textile 
manufacturers.

GEOPOLITICAL TENSIONS
Ongoing geopolitical tensions and trade disputes, 
particularly those involving China, disrupted supply chains 
and created uncertainty in the market.

SUSTAINABILITY CONCERNS
Growing consumer awareness of environmental and social 
issues pushed sustainability to the forefront of the textile 
industry.

TECHNOLOGICAL TRANSFORMATION
Automation, AI, and 3D printing continued transforming 
textile manufacturing processes, improving efficiency and 
enabling new possibilities.

1
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5

will need to adapt to the evolving global 
landscape and leverage its domestic 
strengths to drive sustainable growth 
in the years ahead.

The economic outlook aligns with 
Maral’s business trajectory, as 
strengthening rural demand, stable 
domestic consumption, and a 
recovering manufacturing sector 
provide a conducive environment for 
sustained growth in the textile and 
apparel industry despite prevailing 
global headwinds.

CORPORATE 
OVERVIEW

STATUTORY
REPORT

FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

2928
ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25



Supply Chain Trends of 2024: 
The textile supply chain in 2024 was 
defined by a focus on technology 
integration, sustainability, and shifts in 
sourcing strategies. 

Some of the supply chain trends were: 
Emphasis on Sustainable and Circular 
Practices: Brands shifted towards 
circular business models to meet 
consumer and regulatory demands for 
sustainability. This involved reducing 
waste, increasing recycling, and 
improving resource efficiency, driven 
by consumer preference and stricter 
regulations, particularly in the EU.

Digital Transformation and 
Automation: Digital technologies 
reshaped textile supply chains in 
2024. AI improved forecasting, cutting 
inventory waste, and IoT provided real-
time production data for better quality 
control and efficiency.

Nearshoring and Reshoring of 
Production: Due to geopolitical 
issues and supply chain problems, 
brands in 2024 increasingly opted 
for nearshoring and reshoring. 
This strategy shortened lead times, 
boosted reliability, and offered better 
production control, mitigating the 
impact of global logistics challenges 
and rising freight costs. 

Enhanced Focus on Traceability and 
Transparency: In 2024, increased 
consumer awareness of ethical and 
environmental issues drove brands to 
improve supply chain transparency. 
Traceability tools verified material 
origins and ethical labour, while 
certifications like GOTS and OEKO-
TEX helped build consumer trust in 
sustainability.

Shift Toward Digital-First and Direct-
to-Consumer (DTC) Models: In 
2024, brands increasingly adopted 
digital-first and direct-to-consumer 
(DTC) models to enhance customer 
engagement and gather immediate 
feedback. This shift reduced 
reliance on retailers, accelerated 
trend responsiveness, and provided 

valuable consumer behaviour insights 
for targeted product development and 
marketing.

Rise of Slow Fashion and 
Customisation: In 2024, fast fashion 
declined, with consumers favouring 
slow fashion and customisation. This 
shift emphasised quality over quantity, 
prompting brands to adopt made-to-
order models and promote conscious 
purchasing, aligning with sustainability 
by reducing overproduction and 
waste.

Outlook: The global textile market is 
projected to experience substantial 
growth in the coming years, moving 
from an estimated US$1.98 trillion 
in 2024 to over $4 trillion by 2034. 
Fuelled by rising incomes, a strong 
warehousing infrastructure, high living 
standards, a growing workforce, and 
increased demand for durable military 
apparel, North America is projected 
to be the fastest-expanding textile 
market.

Indian Textile Sector: One of the 
World’s Oldest Industries Stitches a 
New Legacy

India’s textile sector is one of the 
oldest industries & second largest 
employment provider in the country, 
with a rich history spanning several 
centuries. This industry is highly 
diverse, encompassing a wide 
range of production methods. On 
one side, it includes hand-spun and 
hand-woven textiles, emphasising 
traditional craftsmanship. On the 
other side, there are capital-intensive 
and technologically advanced mills 
that represent the modern evolution of 
textile manufacturing.

The Indian textile sector, valued at 
US$146.6 billion in 2024, is projected 
to expand to US$213.5 billion by 2033, 
with a steady annual growth of 3.85% 
from 2025 onwards, driven by evolving 
consumer preferences in fashion, 
home decor, and lifestyle.

A look into 2024: 

The year 2024 has been important 
for India’s textile sector, with bold 
government policies, industry 
innovations and a determined push for 
sustainability. 

The year saw a slew of government 
initiatives taken for the textile 
ecosystem. The PM Mega Integrated 
Textile Region and Apparel (Mitra) 
parks emerged as a flagship effort to 
modernise infrastructure and attract 
foreign direct investments.

Exporters also benefited from the 
continuation of the Scheme for Rebate 
of State and Central Taxes and Levies 
(RoSCTL) for the export of Apparel/
Garments Made-ups up to 31 March 
2026. This measure strengthened 
India’s competitiveness in global 
markets, leading to a rise in shipments 
to regions like Africa and Southeast 
Asia.

While exports faced headwinds due to 
geopolitical stress, India capitalised on 
opportunities arising from competing 
nations’ challenges. The instability in 
Bangladesh, a key competitor, enabled 
Indian exporters to capture a share 
of the US market, with garments 
registering a 5% increase in market 
share, as per a report by the US 
International Trade Commission.

Key Trends playing out 
Immersive Fashion: Focusing 
on brand enhancement, digital 
sampling, and virtual showrooms 
empowered by AR/VR technology 
significantly improves cost-efficiency 
and marketing efforts. The use of 
immersive technologies also reduces 
fashion waste by replacing physical 
objects with digital assets.

Demand for luxury textile products: 
India’s growing middle class 
increasingly demands premium and 
luxury textile products. As consumer 
spending power increased, the Indian 
textile sector is capitalising on the 
growing demand for high-quality and 
innovative textiles.

Regional Specialties: India’s textile 
industry is seeing a comeback of its 
regional specialities, thanks to a push 
for local products. Social media is a 
big part of this, letting craftspeople 
display their unique items online, 
connect directly with buyers, and build 
communities. 

Government Initiatives: The Ministry 
of Textiles has secured investment 
commitments exceeding I 18,500 
Crore through Memoranda of 
Understanding (MoUs) under the PM 
Mega Integrated Textile Region and 
Apparel (PM MITRA) scheme. 

The Ministry of Textiles’ year-end 
report indicates significant progress 
in preparing for the PM MITRA 
textile parks. Essential infrastructure 
development, encompassing water, 
power, and road connections directly 
to the park entrances, is underway in 
the chosen states. These seven parks, 
planned for both new and existing 
sites, will offer advanced facilities 
and ‘plug and play’ capabilities to 
streamline textile business operations. 

With a government investment 
of I 4,445 Crore through 2027-28, 
land acquisition and environmental 
approvals are now complete for parks 
in Gujarat, Uttar Pradesh, Tamil Nadu, 
Karnataka, and Telangana, paving the 
way for construction.

Also, to demonstrate India’s 
comprehensive textile manufacturing 
capabilities, spanning the entire 
production process, the twelve Textile 
Promotion Councils, with the support 
of the Ministry of Textiles, Government 
of India, are organising Bharat 
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THE BUSINESS AND ITS PERFORMANCE
About Maral

Maral Overseas Limited, a vertically integrated textile manufacturer, supplies diverse yarns, fabrics, and apparel to global 
and Indian brands. Headquartered in Noida, its yarn business drives revenue, while strategic growth is focused on fabric 
and garment divisions for higher value and global brand partnerships.

STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES
 Strong supply chain supported by efficient logistics.
 A reputable supplier of world-class products, both    

nationally and internationally.
 Offering customised products for customers.
 Regular business investments to align with dynamic      

sectoral realities and customer requirements.
 The company holds all necessary compliance 

certifications.

 Intense competition owing to the fragmented nature of   
the industry especially from the informal sector.

OPPORTUNITIES THREATS
 Growing awareness of fashion trends in Tier 1, 2 and 3 

towns.
 Rise of organised retail.
 FTAs signed/in the process of being endorsed provide 

interesting growth opportunities.
 Significant impetus from the government to improve 

India’s competitive positioning in the global textile space

 Tariffs, trade barriers, and changes in international 
trade agreements.

SWOT Analysis

Business Performance: Driving 
sustainable growth through strategic 
focus and operational excellence
The enduring challenges encountered 
by the textile industry in the preceding 
fiscal year regrettably continued 
throughout FY25. Notwithstanding our 
collective aspirations and endeavours 
aimed at substantial enhancement, 
the fundamental weaknesses and 
deceleration within the textile market 
perpetuated their impact on overall 
business performance. To confront 
these persistent industry-wide factors, 
Maral strategically concentrated on 
the essential facets of our business 
where we possess direct influence.

A primary objective in this endeavour 
was to fortify existing customer 
relationships, as robust partnerships 
serve as a crucial source of stability 
in an unpredictable market. In 
conjunction with this, the Company’s 
unwavering commitment to product 

development remains instrumental. 
This initiative is vital for long-
term success and represents a 
proactive measure to maintain our 
products’ relevance, desirability, 
and competitiveness as the market 
gradually recovers.

Mara successfully increased its 
melange yarn production, supporting 
strategic growth plans. Also, the 
Company achieved a significant 
milestone by reaching the breakeven 
point in melange yarn operations. This 
indicates that the revenue generated 
from melange yarn now adequately 
covers the associated costs, 
establishing a foundation for future 
profitability and potential expansion 
within this product segment.

To bolster external and product 
strategies while maintaining a 
clear focus on efficiency and 
sustainable growth, the Company has 

meticulously developed strategies to 
face challenges in the market. It is 
presently implementing a new suite of 
internal processes. A comprehensive 
set of operational frameworks has 
been diligently crafted to enhance 
collective productivity. These 
initiatives have been conceived 
following an in-depth understanding 
of organisational objectives. Looking 
ahead, the strategic emphasis will 
be on judiciously balancing product 
offerings to augment profitability 
and efficiency. This approach entails 
prioritising high-demand, higher-
value products while streamlining 
production to minimise costs and 
attain economies of scale. The 
Company will persistently monitor 
market trends and customer 
preferences to adapt our product mix, 
ensuring that its portfolio is optimised 
for improved realisations and 
sustained long-term success growth.

Tex, a major international event. 
Further supporting the industry, the 
government has also reduced custom 
duties on certain raw materials, such 
as Extra-Long Staple (ELS) cotton, 
to enhance competitiveness and 
facilitate production.

Key takeaways for Textile Industry in 
Union Budget 2025-26: 
To strengthen India’s cotton industry, 
a five-year Cotton Mission has been 
launched with I600 Crore in funding. 
This mission aims to boost cotton 
production, especially high-quality 
extra-long staple (ELS) cotton, by 
providing farmers with scientific and 
technological assistance.

To encourage domestic technical 
textile production, the budget has 
eliminated customs duties on specific 
shuttle-less looms, namely Rapier and 
Air Jet looms operating below certain 
speeds. 

To protect Indian knitted fabric 
producers, especially in major textile 
centres like Surat and Ludhiana, the 
government has increased the Basic 
Custom Duty (BCD) on imported 
knitted fabrics. The new duty is set 
at ‘20% or I 115 per kg, whichever is 
higher,’ replacing the previous ‘10% 
or 20%’ structure to combat low-cost 
imports.

The duration for export of handicrafts 
manufactured from duty-free inputs by 
bona fide exporters will be extended 
to one year, further extendable by 
three months. 

Recognising the importance of 
MSMEs in the textile sector, the 
budget introduces initiatives such 
as enhanced credit access, export 
promotion measures and the creation 
of the Bharat Trade Net. To further 
boost the textile sector, I1,148 Crore 
has been allocated for the PLI Scheme 
to enhance domestic manufacturing 

and exports. Additionally, I 635 Crore 
has been earmarked for the Amended 
Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme 
(ATUFS), supporting modernisation 
and efficiency in textile machinery.

The Textile Policy 2024: India has 
launched its Textile Policy for 2024, 
focusing on strengthening the textile 
sector with a range of financial 
incentives. The policy highlights 
two main areas: technical textiles, 
including clothing and apparel, and 
various manufacturing processes 
like weaving and dyeing. The policy 
also includes measures for quality 
certification, energy and water 
conservation savings, and technology 
acquisition support.

The Yarn Segment
India’s cotton yarn export landscape 
in CY 2024 (11M/CY24) revealed 
a complex situation. While overall 
exports experienced a 5% year-over-
year decrease compared to the strong 
performance of 11M/CY23, this 
decline was not uniform across all 
markets. 

The key reason for the overall decrease, 
despite growth in some areas, was 
a drop in China’s exports to a great 
extent. While exports to Bangladesh 
showed a promising 33% increase, 
this positive trend was ultimately 
outweighed by the substantial 61% 
decline in exports to China. 

This disparity happened because of 
many reasons. One of the biggest was 
that the competitiveness of Indian 
cotton yarn exports was hampered 
by persistently higher Indian 
domestic cotton prices compared to 
international benchmarks, particularly 
since April 2024. 

Furthermore, China’s textile sector 
faced multiple challenges, including 
reduced domestic consumption, 
weak global demand, and the 
increasing adoption of the “China+1” 
diversification strategy by international 
buyers. These factors collectively 
contributed to the substantially 
reduced Indian cotton yarn exports to 
China.

The Garment Segment
Despite the export downturn, India’s 
domestic cotton yarn production 
and sales remained relatively stable, 
supported by a notable recovery in 
the Ready-Made Garment (RMG) 
and home-textile sectors. This 
was because international buyers 
increasingly sought diversification in 
their supply chains, and geopolitical 
disruptions affecting competing 
nations created an environment where 
India became a relatively more stable 
and attractive sourcing destination. 
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Financial Performance
Your Company achieved a turnover 
of I 1047.03 Crore for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2025 against 
I 960.06 Crore in the previous financial 
year ended 31st March, 2024. Further, 
the Company achieved an operational 
profit of I 45.22 Crore for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2025 as 
against I 59.75 Crore in the previous 
financial year. The Company recorded 
a Net Loss at I 24.20 Crore for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2025 
as against a Net loss of I 9.77 Crore 
reported in the previous financial 

year. The segment-wise revenue 
performance of your Company for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2025 
was I 542.10 Crore, I 270.50 Crore and 
I 234.43 Crore for Yarn, Fabric and 
Garments respectively.

Change in Return on Net Worth in 
comparison to the previous year: 
The Management utilized business 
liquidity for investing in strategic 
decisions that promise to sustain 
growth over the medium term. During 
the FY24, the Net worth decreased 
from I 131.54 Crore as of 31st March 
2024 to I 108.89 Crore as on 31st 

March 2025. The return on net worth 
was (20%) % in FY25 against (7.2)% in 
the FY24.
Significant changes i.e., a change of 
25% or more in the key financial ratios: 
In accordance with the Regulation 
34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the details of 
significant changes i.e., change of 
25% or more in key financial ratios as 
compared to the immediate previous 
financial year, along with detailed 
explanations are reported hereunder.

FY25 FY24 % Change Remarks
Stability Ratios
Debt-equity Ratio (in times) 1.70 1.45 17.21
Interest Coverage Ratio (in times) 1.57 3.42 (54.04) Majorly due to losses
Liquidity Ratios
Current Ratio (in times) 1.01 1.10 (8.58)
Debtor Turnover Ratio (in times) 8.06 8.72 (7.62)

Inventory Turnover Ratio (in times) 6.98 5.59 24.92 Majorly due to reduction in 
inventory at optimized level

Profitability Ratios
Operating Profit Margin (%) 4.32 6.22 (30.54) Majorly due to losses 
Net Profit Margin (%) (2.31) (1.02) (127.25) Majorly due to losses

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:
The Company has followed the same 
accounting treatment prescribed in the 
relevant Accounting Standards while 
preparing the Financial Statements.

Internal Control and their Adequacy
The Company’s internal controls are 
commensurate with its size and the 
nature of its operations. They have 
been designed to provide reasonable 
assurance about recording and 
providing reliable financial and 
operational information, complying 
with applicable statutes, safeguarding 
assets from unauthorised use and 
ensuring compliance with corporate 
policies. The all-encompassing control 
framework covers all key business 
functions besides governance, 
compliance, audit, control and 
reporting.

The Company’s state-of-the-art 
ERP system, coupled with stringent 
procedures, ensures high accuracy 
in recording and providing reliable 
financial and operational information, 
meeting statutory compliances.

Internal Audit reports are periodically 
reviewed by the Management 
and the Board’s Audit Committee, 
and necessary improvements are 
undertaken if required. These findings 
provide inputs for risk identification 
and assessment. Timely and 
adequate measures are undertaken 
to ensure the undisrupted functioning 
of the business. The Company has 
engaged independent Chartered 
Accountant firms with vast experience 
and knowledge to monitor internal 
controls. The Company’s robust 
and comprehensive internal control 

systems and processes are reviewed 
periodically to ensure they align with 
the evolving business ecosystems.

Human Resource
Maral understands that motivated 
employees are the Company’s 
key strength. Through equitable 
pay practices, and a healthy work 
environment, it empowers them. 
Voluntary projects cultivate creative 
thinking and learning, enabling 
employees to reach their full potential. 
Furthermore, the Independent 
Directors on the Board possess vast 
and rich experience from various 
Corporates, providing valuable 
strategic guidance.

To achieve this, the Company’s HR 
policies are meticulously designed to 
create a more competent workforce 

that is not only skilled but also 
adaptable to the rapidly evolving 
business dynamics. These policies 
promote a culture of adaptability to 
changes, agility to work fast, and 
affinity to grow, ensuring that the 
workforce is equipped to navigate the 
complexities of the modern business 
world.

Central to this approach is the 
implementation of open and equitable 
performance reviews, as well as 
gender-neutral procedures. These 
practices ensure that all employees 
are evaluated fairly and have equal 
opportunities for advancement, 
regardless of their background or 
gender. The Company provides a 
safe and secure environment where 
employees can perform at their best, 
knowing that their contributions are 
recognised and valued.

Furthermore, the Company 
understands the importance of 
employee feedback and constructive 
dialogue. To facilitate this, programs 
have been integrated within the 
appraisal system, providing employees 
with a platform to make meaningful 
and constructive comments. This 
feedback allows the Company to 
continually improve its practices and 
ensure that it remains responsive 
to the needs and aspirations of its 
workforce.

Risk Management
Risk is an integral and unavoidable 
component of all businesses. Maral 
is committed to managing its risk 
proactively. Though risks cannot be 
completely eliminated, an effective 
risk management plan ensures that 
risks are reduced and avoided. 

We adopt an independent and 
comprehensive strategy to manage 
risks and safeguard the business. The 
approach enables us to continuously 
identify and assess risks and 
implement the necessary mitigation 
measures to eliminate or limit their 
impact on the business.

The Board of Directors and Audit 
Committee maintains oversight 
of our risks and is responsible for 
reviewing the effectiveness of the risk 
management plan or process. During 
the year under review, these controls 
were evaluated, and no material 
weaknesses were observed in their 
design or operations.
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To the members

Your Directors are pleased to present the Thirty Sixth (36th) Annual Report of your Company on business and operations 
along with the Audited Financial Statements and the Auditor’s Report thereon for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025.

1. Financial Results
 The Financial performance of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2025 is summarized as below:

(C  in Lakh)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Revenue from Operations 1,04,703 96,006
Profit/(Loss) before Interest & Depreciation & Amortisation 4,522 5,975
Less: Finance Cost 3,668 3,395
Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation & Amortisation 854 2,580
Less: Depreciation & Amortisation 3,417 3,426
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (2,563) (847)
Less:
a)  Current Tax - -
b)  Deferred Tax (143) 130
c)  Taxes adjustment for earlier years - -
Profit/(Loss) after Tax (2,420) (976)
Add: Opening Balance - Retained Earning 1,230 2,121
Add: Other Comprehensive Income 68 85
Balance at the end of the year- Retained Earning (1,122) 1,230

operated at 89% capacity, primarily due to a strategic 
decision to reduce the production of those yarns, 
where realizations did not justify marginal or variable 
costs. Further, Mélange yarn business established a 
solid foundation supported by increased customer 
engagement in both domestic and specific international 
markets. The Company's resulted consistent volume 
growth in last quarter of FY25, resulted in full capacity 
utilization by the end of the financial year.

In the fabric segment, overall performance was 
impacted by subdued global demand and pricing 
pressures, particularly during the first three quarters. 
The Company has set ambitious targets for the fabric 

2. Operational Performance
The Directors of your Company inform the members 
that the textile industry witnessed a gradual recovery 
in demand during the year under review, leading to 
improved capacity utilization across both the yarn 
and fabric segments. Despite this positive trend, the 
spinning division continued to face margin pressure 
due to an oversupply situation, and particularly 
affecting the basic grey yarn segment, where margins 
were severely impacted. The softness in international 
cotton prices further weighed on margins for basic 
yarns. However, value-added and sustainable yarns 
performed relatively better, contributing stronger 
margins. During the year, the spinning division 
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division, focusing on improved capacity utilization and 
enhanced realizations. With regard to the Garment 
segment, the business outlook remained positive 
across key customers, with improved engagement 
from a leading customer through an expanded range of 
categories, fabrics, and styles. The Company also aims 
to strengthen collaborations with premium brands in 
the US and EU. In view of the cost optimization strategy 
to enhance profitability and operational efficiency, the 
Company consolidated the operations of its Garment 
Unit located at A-11, Hosiery Complex, Phase-II 
(Extension), Noida – 201305, with its existing Units at 
D-347, Sector 63, Noida – 201301, and A-37, Sector 
64, Noida – 201301. Further, after consolidation of the 
said Unit, the lease shall be discontinued with effect 
from 15th April, 2025.

Your Company achieved a turnover of C 1,04,703 Lakh 
for the year ended 31st March, 2025 against C 96,006 
Lakh in the previous year ended 31st March, 2024. 
Further, the Company achieved an operational profit 
of C 4,522 Lakh as against C 5,975 Lakh in the previous 
year. The Company recorded a Net Loss of C 2,420 
Lakh as against a Net loss of C 977 Lakh reported in 
the previous year.

During the period under review, your Company 
recorded a production of 16,337 MT of grey yarn (FY24 
17,155MT), 3,183 MT of dyed yarn (FY24 2,852 MT), 
4,026 MT of grey knitted fabric (FY24 3,551 MT), 5,879 
MT of processed fabric (FY24 4,978 MT), 2,510 MT 
of Melange Yarn and 44.12 Lakh pieces of garments 
(FY24 36.05 Lakh pieces).

During the year under review, the Company’s exports 
(FOB value) were to the tune of C 46,435.12 Lakh 
(FY24 C 43,153 Lakh) and accounted for 44.35% 
(FY24: 44.95%) of the Company’s turnover. The yarn 
business accounted for 51.77% (FY24: 53.87%) while 
knitted fabric and garment business accounted 
for 25.84% (FY24: 24.17%) and 22.39% (FY24: 
21.96%) respectively.

3. Modernization, Expansion and Diversification
Your Directors in their previous report had informed the 
members about a modernization program comprising 
of Spinning, Processing, Knitting and Bio Fuel Boiler 
and Thermic Fluid Heater at a capital outlay of C 22.18 
Crores at its Sarovar Plant. During the previous year, 
the said modernization program of C 22.18 Crores 

had been fully completed and the Company started 
deriving benefits from the same.

Your Directors take pleasure in informing members 
that in order to enhance value and adapt to evolving 
market demands, during the year under review, the 
Company identified another capital expenditure plan 
of C 30.66 Crores for modernization, replacement 
of machinery and capacity additions in Yarn Dying 
Department and Dye house process fabric at the 
Sarovar plant. This will enhance capacity, efficiency 
and customer satisfaction, ultimately driving business 
growth and sustainability.

4. Number of meetings of Board of Directors
The particulars of the meetings of Board of Directors 
held during the year, along with details regarding the 
meetings attended by the Directors forms part of 
Corporate Governance Report. The composition of 
Board and its Committees has also been provided in 
detail in Corporate Governance Report.

5. Dividend and Other Appropriations
In view of the financial position of the Company during 
the year under review, the Board of Directors have 
not recommended any dividend on the Equity Shares 
of the Company.

6. Corporate Social Responsibility
Your Company considers Corporate Social 
Responsibility (‘CSR’) and sustainability initiatives and 
practices, as an important element of doing business, 
as a responsible corporate citizen. Your Company has 
been involved with social initiatives and engages in 
various activities in the fields of education, healthcare 
and community upliftment.

CSR initiatives and activities of the Company are 
aligned to the requirements of Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The composition and terms 
of reference of the CSR Committee are given in the 
Corporate Governance Report. The Annual Report 
on the CSR initiative undertaken by the Company as 
per the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014, is annexed as Annexure I forming 
part of this Report. The Company’s Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy as approved by the Board of 
Directors is disclosed on the website of the Company 
at https://www.maraloverseas.com/policy/MOL_
CSR_Policy.pdf.

7. Annual Return
Pursuant to Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, Annual Return for the 
financial year 2024-25, is available on the website 
of the Company at https://maraloverseas.com/
annualreturn.php .

8. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
The Board of Directors of your Company as on date of 
this report comprises Seven (7) directors, of which one 
(1) is a Chairman & Managing Director and CEO, one 
(1) Joint Managing Director, one (1) Non-Independent 
& Non- Executive Director and four (4) Directors are 
Non-Executive & Independent Directors.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 152 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, Shri Shantanu Agarwal (DIN-02314304) is 
liable to retire by rotation and being eligible offers 
himself for re-appointment at the 36th Annual General 
Meeting of your Company.

Your Directors further inform the members that 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(7) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, a declaration has been received 
from the Independent Directors at the beginning of the 
financial year stating that the criteria of independence 
have been met as specified under sub-section (6) of 
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 
16(1)(b) and 25(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 
amended form time to time.

During the year under review, Smt. Romi Jatta (DIN: 
10045383), Shri Amitabh Gupta (DIN: 01646370), 
and Shri Raman Singh Sidhu (DIN: 00121906) were 
appointed as Independent Director with effect from 
1st August, 2024 initially for a term of five consecutive 
years and their appointments was approved by the 
members at the 35th Annual General Meeting held on 
27th August, 2024 by passing of Special Resolution(s). 
Further, as per the Special Resolution(s) passed 
by members of the Company through postal ballot 
on 20th March, 2025, Shri Shekhar Agarwal (DIN: 
00066113) was re-appointed as Managing Director for 
a period of 3 years with effect from 1st April, 2025 and 
continue to hold the position of Chairman & Managing 
Director & CEO of the Company; and Shri Shantanu 
Agarwal (DIN: 02314304) was re-appointed as Joint 
Managing Director for a period of 3 years, with effect 
from 19th June, 2025.

During the year under review, Dr. Kamal Gupta 
(DIN: 00038490) and Shri Priya Shankar Dasgupta 
(DIN: 00012552), both had completed their tenure 
towards second term and consequently ceased to 
be Independent Directors of the Company with effect 
from close of business hours on 25th September, 2024.

Shri Shekhar Agarwal, Chairman & Managing Director 
and CEO, Shri Shantanu Agarwal, Joint Managing 
Director, Shri Manoj Gupta, Chief Financial Officer and 
Shri Sandeep Singh, Company Secretary & Compliance 
Officer are the Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company as on 31st March, 2025.

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified 
as per the provisions of Section 164 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Further, none of the Directors are debarred 
from holding the office of Director pursuant to any 
SEBI Order or any other such authority. The Directors 
have made necessary disclosures, as required 
under various provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

9. Nomination and Remuneration Policy
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 read with 
Schedule II Part D of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy had been framed 
for the appointment of Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management and fixation of 
their remuneration. The Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy of the Company is annexed as Annexure II and 
forms part of this Report.

Your Directors inform the members that the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee as well as your Directors 
endeavor to follow the policy and all appointments in 
Board and Senior Management are considered at the 
meeting of the Committee and the Board.

10. Annual Evaluation by the Board
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, annual evaluation 
has been done by the Board of its own performance, 
its Committees and individual Directors. The manner 
of evaluation is mentioned in the Nomination and 
Remuneration policy which forms part of this Report. 
Your Directors feel pleasure in informing the members 

https://www.maraloverseas.com/policy/MOL_CSR_Policy.pdf
https://www.maraloverseas.com/policy/MOL_CSR_Policy.pdf
https://maraloverseas.com/annualreturn.php
https://maraloverseas.com/annualreturn.php
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that the performance of the Board as a whole and its 
members individually was adjudged satisfactory.

Further, every Independent Director of the Company 
is familiarized with the Company, their roles, rights, 
responsibilities in the Company, nature of industry 
in which Company operates, business model of the 
Company, etc., through various programs.

11. Auditors
 Statutory Auditor

S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, 
(Firm Registration No. 000756N/N500441) were 
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the 
second term of five consecutive years, commencing 
from the conclusion of 33rd Annual General Meeting 
(‘AGM’) held on 25th August, 2022 till the conclusion of 
38th AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2027. 
S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, 
have confirmed their eligibility under section 141 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder.

During the year under review, the Auditor did not report 
any matter under Section 143(12) of the Companies 
Act, 2013; therefore, no detail is required to be 
disclosed under Section 134(3) (ca) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The observations of the Auditor, if any, are 
explained wherever necessary, in the appropriate notes 
to the accounts. The Statutory Auditor’s Report does 
not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse 
remark, disclaimer or emphasis of matter.

 Internal Auditors

Pursuant to Provisions of section 138 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed 
M/s. GSA & Associates, LLP, Chartered Accountants 
and M/s. Arvind Kaul and Associates, Chartered 
Accountants as Internal Auditors of the Company 
for the financial year 2024-25 for Sarovar Plant and 
Garment Units respectively.

The role of Internal Auditors includes but is not 
limited to review of internal systems, standard 
operating procedures, adherence to statutory laws & 
other operational norms as set by the management, 
monitoring of implementation of corrective actions 
required, reviewing of various policies and ensure its 
proper implementation, etc.

 Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
the Company had appointed M/s. Manisha Gupta 
& Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, as 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the year ended 
31st March, 2025. The Secretarial Audit Report does 
not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse 
remark. The Report of Secretarial Auditor is annexed 
as Annexure III forming part of this Report.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 
24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 204 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, 
the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors have 
approved and recommended the appointment of 
M/s. Manisha Gupta & Associates, Peer Reviewed Firm 
of Company Secretaries in Practice (Firm Registration 
Number: 3290/2023) as Secretarial Auditors of the 
Company for a term of upto 5(five) consecutive years 
to hold office from the conclusion of ensuing 36th 
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) till the conclusion 
of 41st Annual General Meeting of the Company to be 
held in the year 2030, for approval of the members at 
ensuing AGM of the Company. Brief profile and other 
details of M/s. Manisha Gupta & Associates, Company 
Secretaries in Practice, are separately disclosed in the 
Notice of 36th AGM.

M/s. Manisha Gupta & Associates have given 
their consent to act as Secretarial Auditors of the 
Company and confirmed that they are not disqualified 
to be appointed as Secretarial Auditors in terms of 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 & Rules made 
thereunder and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

 Cost Auditor

Pursuant to provisions of Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and the Companies 
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended, 
the Board of Directors of the Company on the 
commendation of Audit Committee had approved the 
appointment of M/s. K. G. Goyal & Co. as Cost Auditor 
to conduct the audit of cost records for the year ended 
31st March, 2025.

12. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments
Details of loans, guarantees and investments are 
given in the notes to the financial statements at 
appropriate places.

13. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with 
Related Parties
During the financial year all contracts/arrangement/
transactions entered into by the Company with 
related parties were in compliance with applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. Prior Omnibus approval of the 
Audit Committee was obtained for all related party 
transactions, which are foreseen and repetitive in 
nature. Pursuant to the said omnibus approval, details 
of transactions entered into are also reviewed by the 
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors on a 
quarterly basis.

All related party transactions entered into by the 
Company during the financial year with related parties 
were on arm’s length basis at prevailing market price and 
in the ordinary course of business. During the financial 
year, there was no material contract or arrangement 
entered into by the Company with any of the related 
parties. Your Directors draw attention of the members 
to note no. 40 to the financial statements which contain 
particulars with respect to related parties. The policy on 
dealing with the related party transactions as approved 
by the Board of Directors is disclosed on the website 
of the Company under the following link: https://
maraloverseas.com/policy/Related%20Party%20
Transactions%20policy.pdf

14. Significant and Material Orders Passed by the 
Regulators or Courts
There was no significant and material order passed by 
the regulators or courts during the year under review.

15. Risk Management
Your Company recognizes that risk is an inherent 
aspect of business and is committed to managing it 
proactively and effectively. Accordingly, your Company 
has adopted Risk Assessment and Mitigation Policy, 
as amended and approved by the Board of Directors, 
for identification, assessment and mitigation of the 
risks. The Policy outlines comprehensive framework 
for categorizing risks into External, Internal and Other 
Risks. Identified risks are systematically addressed 

through mitigating actions on a continuous basis. 
The Company endeavor to continuously sharpen its 
Risk Management systems and processes in line with 
rapidly changing business environment. The Company, 
through its risk management process, aims to contain 
the risks within its risk appetite. Further, the policy 
aims at creating and protecting shareholders’ value 
by minimizing threats, weaknesses and identifying 
and maximizing opportunities. Pursuant to the policy, 
your Directors periodically review the risks associated 
with the business or which threaten the prospects 
of the Company.

16. Corporate Governance
Your Company has a rich legacy of ethical governance 
practices and is committed to transparency in all its 
dealings and places high emphasis on business ethics. 
Your Company always emphasising on managing its 
affairs with diligence, transparency, responsibility 
and accountability thereby upholding the important 
dictum that an organization’s corporate governance 
philosophy is directly linked to its performance. 
The Company understands and respects its fiduciary 
role and responsibility towards its stakeholders and to 
the society at large, and strives to serve their interests, 
resulting in creation of value for all stakeholders.

A report on Corporate Governance along with the 
Certificate of Statutory Auditors confirming compliance 
of Corporate Governance as stipulated under point E 
of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as 
amended, forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

17. Whistle Blower Policy
The Vigil Mechanism as envisaged in the Companies 
Act 2013, the Rules prescribed thereunder and the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 are captured in the Company’s 
Whistle Blower Policy to enable all the stakeholders 
of the Company to report genuine concerns, to provide 
for adequate safeguards against victimization of 
persons who use such mechanism. The Company has 
appointed a Nodal Officer to whom the complaints 
can be made. In exceptional cases an opportunity 
is provided to the Whistle Blower to make a direct 
appeal to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 
All employees shall be protected from any adverse 
action for reporting any unacceptable or improper 
practice and/or any unethical practice, fraud, or 

https://maraloverseas.com/policy/Related%20Party%20Transactions%20policy.pdf
https://maraloverseas.com/policy/Related%20Party%20Transactions%20policy.pdf
https://maraloverseas.com/policy/Related%20Party%20Transactions%20policy.pdf
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violation of any law, rules, or regulations. The policy 
has been disclosed on the website of the Company at 
https://www.maraloverseas.com/policy/Whistle%20
Blower%20Policy.pdf.

18. Management Discussion and Analysis Report
Management Discussion and Analysis Report, as 
required under Schedule V read with Regulation 
34(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, forms 
part of this Annual Report.

19. Internal Control Systems
Your Company maintains adequate Internal Control 
system and procedures commensurate with its size and 
nature of operations of the Company. The Company’s 
governance framework is designed to enhance 
performance predictability, business continuity 
and ensure organization-wide compliance with all 
relevant laws of the land. Internal Control systems 
are designed to provide a reasonable assurance over 
reliability in financial reporting, ensure appropriate 
authorization of transactions, safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and prevent misuse/ losses and legal 
compliances. Internal Controls also facilitate optimum 
utilization of resources, protect Company’s assets 
and stakeholder’s interests. Internal Auditors also 
ensure proper compliance of all policies and Standard 
Operating Procedures (SOPs) adopted by the Company. 
Internal Audit reports are periodically reviewed by the 
management and the Audit Committee and necessary 
improvements are undertaken, if required.

20. Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption 
and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
Your Directors inform the members that your Company 
continuously evaluates various energy conservation 
measures in all areas of operation across all its 
manufacturing plants. The information required to 
be disclosed pursuant to Section 134(3) (m) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules, 8(3) of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given in 
Annexure–IV forming part of this Report.

21. Particulars of Employees
The information pursuant to Section 197 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is annexed as 
Annexure–V forming part of this Report.

Further, disclosures pursuant to Rule 5(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The relevant 
Statement is annexed as Annexure–VI forming part 
of this Report.

22. Significant material changes after balance sheet 
date affecting financial position
There is no change which affects the financial position 
of the Company between the end of the financial year 
of the Company to which the financial statements 
relate i.e. 31st March, 2025 and the date of Report 
i.e. 8th May, 2025.

23. Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates 
Companies
The Company does not have any Joint Ventures, 
Subsidiaries and Associate Companies.

24. Public Deposit
During the year under review, your Company has not 
accepted any public deposit within the meaning of 
provisions of section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 
Rules, 2014 and there is no outstanding deposit 
due for repayment.

25. Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013
In line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has complied 
with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal 
Complaints Committee for reporting concerns with 
regard to sexual harassment at workplace.

Your Directors inform the members that during the 
year under review, Internal Complaint Committee 
did not receive any complaint with regard to 
sexual harassment.

26. Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 
2013, the Directors state that:

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, 
applicable accounting standards have been 
followed and no material departures have been 
made from the same;

b. appropriate accounting policies have been 
applied consistently and have made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the Company as on 31st March, 2025 
and of the profit and loss for the year ended 
31st March, 2025;

c. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities;

d. the annual accounts have been prepared on a 
Going Concern basis;

e. proper internal financial controls were in place 
and financial controls were adequate and were 
operating effectively;

f. the systems to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of all applicable laws were in place, 
adequate and operating effectively.

27. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment
The Company has followed the same accounting 
treatment as prescribed in the relevant Indian 
Accounting Standards while preparing the 
Financial Statements.

28. Transfer to Investor Education and Protection 
Fund
In terms of the provisions of Section 124 and 125 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the provisions of 
Investor Education and Protection Fund (Accounting, 
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, there was no 
unclaimed amount or shares during the financial year 
that were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by 
the Central Government.

Details of unpaid / unclaimed amount of dividend 
pertaining to financial year 2021-22, are available 
at the website of the Company at https://
www.maraloverseas.com/unpaid&unclaimeddivened.
php. Pursuant to Section 124 and 125 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, dividend that are unpaid or not claimed  
within a period of 7 (seven) consecutive years from the 
date of transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account of the 
Company, are liable to be transferred by the Company 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”). 
Further, according to said IEPF Rules, shares in respect 

of which dividend remains unpaid/ unclaimed by the 
shareholder(s) for 7 (seven) consecutive years shall 
also be liable to be transferred to the Demat account of 
the IEPF Authority. Therefore, the Company requests 
all the members to encash/ claim their unpaid/ 
unclaimed dividend within the prescribed time.

29. Compliance with Secretarial Standards
The Company is in compliance with the applicable 
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India and approved by the 
Central Government under Section 118(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

30. General
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is 
required in respect of the following items as there were 
no transactions in these items during the financial 
year under review:

i. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as 
to dividend, voting or otherwise.

ii. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to 
employees of the Company under any scheme.

iii. No amount has been transferred to General 
Reserves during the year.

iv. There was no change in the nature of business 
of the Company.

v. There was no fraud detected which has been 
reported to the Audit Committee / Board of 
Directors as well as to the Central Government.

31. Acknowledgements
Your Directors place on record their acknowledgement 
and sincere appreciation to all our clients, customers, 
vendors, dealers, bankers, investors, other business 
associates, Central and State Governments for their 
continued support and encouragement during the 
year and their confidence towards the management. 
Your Directors would also like to thank employees at all 
levels for their hard work, dedication and commitment.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Maral Overseas Limited

Shekhar Agarwal
Chairman & Managing Director and CEO

DIN: 00066113
Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date: 8th May, 2025

https://www.maraloverseas.com/policy/Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf
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Annexure –I to Directors’ Report
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities 

for the financial year 2024-25

1 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company. The brief outline of CSR policy has been enumerated in the 
Directors’ Report under the para Corporate Social Responsibilities.

2 Composition of CSR Committee: 

S. 
No. Name of Director Designation / Category of 

Directorship

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year

Number of 
meetings of 

CSR Committee 
attended during 

the year
1 Shri Priya Shankar Dasgupta* Chairman, Independent Director 2 1
2 Dr. Kamal Gupta* Member, Independent Director 2 2

3 Smt. Archana Capoor** Chairperson/ Member, Independent 
Director 2 2

4 Shri Shekhar Agarwal Member, Executive Director 4 4
5 Shri Shantanu Agarwal Member, Executive Director 4 4

 * Shri Priya Shankar Dasgupta ceased to be Chairman and Dr. Kamal Gupta ceased to be a member of the CSR Committee with effect 
from 25th September, 2024.

 **Smt. Archana Capoor was appointed as Chairperson of CSR Committee with effect from 26th September, 2024.

3 Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects/activities 
approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company.

https://www.
maraloverseas.com/
policy/CSR_Policy

4 Provide the executive summary along with web-link of Impact assessment of CSR projects 
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable

Not Applicable

5 a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).

b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):

c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous 
financial years.

d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any

e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year {(b+c)-(d)}.

D 1,644.17 Lakh

D32.88 Lakh

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable

D32.88 Lakh

6 a) Amount spent on CSR Project :-
	 Ongoing Project

	Other than Ongoing Project

 
Nil

D32.88 Lakh

b) Amount spent in administrative overheads Nil

c) Amount spent on impact assessment, if applicable. Not Applicable

d) Total amount spent for the financial Year (a+b+c) D32.88 Lakh

e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

i. Total Amount Spent for the Financial Year D32.88 Lakh

ii. Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Account as per section 135(6). 
(Amount/ Date of transfer) Nil

iii. Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII as per second 
proviso to section 135(5). Not Applicable

f) Excess amount for set off, if any Nil

i. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) D32.88 Lakh

ii. Total Amount:

 • Spent for the Financial Year D32.88 Lakh

 • Transferred to Unspent CSR Accounts as per Section 135(6) for ongoing projects Nil

iii. Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Nil

iv. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous 
financial years, if any Nil

v. Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil

7 Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 

i. Preceding Financial Years 2023-24, 2022-23  
and 2021-22

ii. Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Account as per section 135(6) for Financial 
Year 2023-24 D27.18* Lakh

iii. Balance Amount in unspent CSR account under sub-section (6) of section 135 Nil

iv. Amount spent in the reporting Financial Year D27.18 Lakh

v. Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII as per second proviso 
to section 135(5). Amount / Date of transfer Not Applicable

vi. Amount remaining to be spent in succeeding financial years Not Applicable

vii. Deficiency, if any Not Applicable

 *Amount pertains to Ongoing Project for construction of two class room and related activity and the said project has been completed.

8 In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the  
asset so created or acquired through CSR amount spent in the financial year.

Not Applicable

9 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average 
 net profit as per section 135(5).

Not Applicable

Shekhar Agarwal
Chairman & Managing Director and CEO
DIN: 00066113

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Dated: 8th May, 2025

Archana Capoor
Chairperson of CSR Committee

DIN: 01204170

https://www.maraloverseas.com/policy/CSR_Policy -Revised.pdf
https://www.maraloverseas.com/policy/CSR_Policy -Revised.pdf
https://www.maraloverseas.com/policy/CSR_Policy -Revised.pdf
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Annexure –II to Directors’ Report
Nomination and Remuneration Policy

Pursuant to provisions of Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 
amended from time to time, every Listed Public Company 
is required to constitute a Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (NRC) with at least three Non-Executive 
Directors, out of which not less than two- thirds shall be 
Independent Directors.

The Company already had in place a Remuneration 
Committee which was made well in line with the 
above-mentioned requirements. Board has the authority 
to reconstitute this Committee from time to time. In order 
to align with the policy of the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to 
time, the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting 
held on the 22nd April, 2014, renamed the “Remuneration 
Committee” as “Nomination and Remuneration Committee”.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy being in compliance 
with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with the applicable Rules and Regulation 19 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, applies to the Board of Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and the Senior Management 
of the Company.

“Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) means and comprise-

 Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer or the  
Manager;

 Whole Time Director;

 Chief Financial Officer;

 Company Secretary.

“Senior Management” shall mean officers/personnel of 
the listed entity who are members of its core management 
team excluding Board of Directors and normally this shall 
comprise all members of management one level below 
the Chief Executive Officer/ Managing Director/ Whole 
Time Director/Manager (including Chief Executive Officer/
Manager, in case they are not part of the Board) and 
including Functional Heads and shall specifically include 
Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer.

Role and Objective of Committee:
1. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, 

positive attributes and independence of a Director and 
recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating 
to, the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other employees.

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall 
evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience 
on the Board for every appointment of an Independent 
Director and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare 
a description of the role and capabilities required of 
an Independent Director. The person recommended 
to the Board for appointment as an Independent 
Director shall have the capabilities identified in such 
description. For the purpose of identifying suitable 
candidates, the Committee may:

a) use the services of an external agencies, if required;

b) consider candidates from a wide range of 
backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and

c) consider the time commitments of the candidates.

3. Identify persons who are qualified and who may 
be appointed in senior management positions in 
accordance with the criteria laid down in the policy.

4. Recommend to the Board the appointment and 
removal of Directors and Senior Management.

5. Formulate criteria for effective evaluation of 
performance of Independent Directors, Board, its 
Committees and Individual Directors to be carried 
out either by the Board, by the Committee itself or 
by an independent external agency and review its 
implementation and compliance.

6. To devise a policy on Board diversity.

7. To ensure that the level and composition of 
remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, 
retain and motivate Directors of the quality required to 
run Company successfully. To ensure the relationship 
of remuneration to performance is clear and meets 
appropriate performance benchmarks.

8. To develop a Succession Plan for the Board and to 
review it regularly.

9. To recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in 
whatever form, payable to senior Management.

10. To perform such other functions as may be referred 
by the Board or be necessary in view of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

11. To recommend whether to extend or continue the 
term of appointment of the Independent Director, on 
the basis of the report of performance evaluation of 
Independent Directors.

12. Such other key issues/matters as may be referred by 
the Board or as may be necessary in view of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 as amended and provision of the 
Companies Act, 2013 & Rules thereunder.

Membership:
1. The Committee shall comprise at least three (3)  

Directors.

2. All members shall be Non- Executive Directors and at 
least two third of them shall be Independent Directors.

3. Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in 
the Annual Report.

4. Term of the Committee shall be continued unless 
terminated by the Board of Directors.

Chairman:
1. Chairman/Chairperson of the Committee shall be an 

Independent Director.

2. Chairman of the Company may be appointed 
as a member of the Committee but shall not 
Chair the Committee.

3. In the absence of the Chairman/Chairperson, 
the members of the Committee present at the 
meeting shall choose one amongst them to act as 
Chairman/ Chairperson.

4. Chairman/Chairperson of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee could be present at the 
Annual General Meeting or may nominate some 
other member of the Committee to answer the 
shareholders’ queries.

Frequency of Meetings:
The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular 
intervals as may be required. However, the Committee shall 
meet at least once in a year.

Quorum:
The quorum for a meeting of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee shall be either two members 
or one third of the members of the Committee, 
whichever is greater, including at least one Independent 
Director in attendance.

Committee Member’s Interests:
1. A member of the Committee is not entitled to 

be present when his or her own remuneration is 
discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance 
is being evaluated.

2. The Committee may invite such executives, as it 
considers appropriate, to be present at the meetings 
of the Committee.

Secretary:
The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as 
Secretary of the Committee.

Voting:
1. Matters arising for determination at Committee 

meetings shall be decided by a majority of votes of 
Members present and voting and any such decision 
shall, for all purposes, be deemed to be a decision 
of the Committee.

2. In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the 
meeting will have a casting vote.

Appointment of Directors/KMP/Senior Management:
While recommending a candidate for appointment, the 
Committee shall have regard to:

	 	Assessing the appointee against a range of criteria 
which includes but not limited to qualifications, skills, 
experience, integrity, background and other qualities 
required to operate successfully;

  The experience and knowledge that the appointee 
brings to the role of KMP/Senior Management, which, 
in turn, will enhance the skill sets and experience of 
the Board as a whole;
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The nature of existing positions held by the appointee 
including Directorship and such other relationship and the 
impact of the same on the Company’s welfare.

Term / Tenure:
Appointment of Managing Director / Whole  
time Director:
The terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration 
payable to a Managing Director and Whole-time 
Director(s) shall be recommended by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee to the Board for its approval 
which shall be subject to approval by shareholders of the 
Company as per the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder and in compliance of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulation, 2015, as amended time to time.

Independent Director:
An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to 
five consecutive years on the Board of the Company and 
will be eligible for re-appointment for a period up to five 
years or such other period as may be stipulated on passing 
of a Special Resolution by the Company and disclosure of 
such appointment in the Board’s report.

Removal/Retirement:
Due to any disqualification mentioned in the Companies 
Act, 2013, rules made thereunder or under any other 
applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may 
recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, 
removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management subject 
to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and 
regulations. The Directors, KMP and Senior Management 
shall retire as may be recommended by the NRC and 
approved by the Board as per the applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy 
of the Company.

Letter of Appointment:
Each Independent/KMP/Senior Management, Director 
is required to sign the duplicate copy of the letter of 
appointment issued by the Company, which contains the 
terms and conditions of his/her appointment.

Policy on Board Diversity:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall ensure 
that the Board of Directors has the combination of Directors 
from different areas/ fields or as may be considered 
appropriate in the best interests of the Company. The Board 
shall have at least one Board member who has accounting/
financial management expertise.

Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and Senior Management:
The salaries of Directors, Key Management Personnel and 
other Senior Management shall be based and determined 
on the individual person’s responsibilities and performance 
and in accordance with the limits as prescribed 
statutorily, if any.

1. Fixed Pay:

 Managerial Person, KMP and Senior Management 
shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may 
be approved by the Board on the recommendation 
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
in accordance with the applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made 
thereunder and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other 
applicable provisions, as amended from time to time. 
The salary paid need to be competitive and reflective 
of the individual’s role, responsibility and experience 
in relation to performance of day-to-day activities to 
be usually reviewed on an annual basis;

2. Minimum Remuneration:

 If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits 
or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay 
remuneration to its Managerial Person in accordance 
with the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and applicable provisions of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time.

3. Provision for excess remuneration:

 If any Managerial Person draws or receives, directly 
or indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums in 
excess of the limits prescribed under the Companies 
Act, 2013 or without the approval of members by way 
of Special Resolution, where required, he shall refund 
such sums to the company, within two years or such 
lesser period as may be allowed by the company, 
and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust 
for the Company.

4. Increment:

 Increments to the existing remuneration/ 
compensation structure may be recommended by 
the Committee to the Board, which should be within 
the slabs approved by the Shareholders in the case of 
Managerial Person.

5. Sitting Fees:

 A Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for 
attending meetings of Board or Committee(s) thereof 
unless he/she is not getting any remuneration by way 
of Salary. Provided that the amount of such fees per 
meeting of the Board or Committees shall not exceed 
the maximum amount as provided in the Companies 
Act, 2013 as amended from time to time.

6. Remuneration/Commission to Non-executive / 
Independent Director:

 The remuneration/commission to Non-executive / 
Independent Director shall be in accordance with the 
statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and 
the Rules made thereunder for the time being in force.

 Except with the approval of the Company in the 
general meeting by a Special Resolution the overall 
Commission to the Non-Executive Directors (including 
Independent Directors) may be paid within the 
monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject 
to the limit not exceeding 1% of the profits of the 
Company computed as per the applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 & rules thereto.

Evaluation/ Assessment of Directors of the Company:
The evaluation/assessment of the Directors, of the 
Company is to be conducted on an annual basis and to 
satisfy the requirements of the Listing Regulations, 2015, 
as amended from time to time.

The following criteria may assist in determining how 
effective the performance of the Directors has been:

 Leadership & stewardship abilities.

 Assess policies, structures & procedures.

	 	Regular monitoring of corporate results against  
projections.

 Contributing to clearly define corporate objectives  
& plans.

 Obtain adequate, relevant & timely information.

 Review achievement of strategic and operational 
plans, objectives, budgets.

 Identify, monitor & mitigate significant corporate risks.

 Review management’s Succession Plan.

 Effective meetings.

 Clearly defining role & monitoring activities  
of Committees.

 Review of ethical conduct.

Evaluation following the aforesaid parameters will be 
conducted by the Independent Directors for each of 
the Executive/Non-Independent Directors in a separate 
meeting of the Independent Directors.

The Executive Director/Non-Independent Directors along 
with the Independent Directors will evaluate/assess each 
of the Independent Directors relative to the aforesaid 
parameters. Only the Independent Director being evaluated 
will not participate in the said evaluation discussion.

Manner for Effective Evaluation of Performance of Board, 
its Committees and Individual Directors:

The Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors, the 
Board as a whole, its Committees shall be carried out on 
Annual Basis and be reported to the Board of Directors for 
further evaluation. The Director being evaluated will not 
participated in evaluation process.

Performance Evaluation of KMPs/ Senior Management 
of the Company.
The performance evaluation of KMPs/ Senior Management 
is measured with regard to the goals and objectives set for 
the year and increase in compensation & reward by way 
of variable bonus is linked to the evaluation of individual’s 
performance. Additionally, industry benchmarks are also 
used to determine the appropriate level of remuneration, 
from time to time.

Deviations from this Policy:
Deviations on elements of this policy, when deemed 
necessary in the interests of the Company, will be made 
if there are specific reasons to do so in an individual case. 
However, this shall be subject to the approval of the Board 
of Directors on the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Policy review:
a. This Policy is framed based on the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder and 
the requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 on the 
subject as may be notified from time to time.

b. Any such amendment shall automatically have the 
effect of amending this Policy without the need of 
any approval by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and/ or the Board of Directors.



ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

CORPORATE 
OVERVIEW

STATUTORY
REPORT

FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

5150

Annexure –III to Directors’ Report
FORM - MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

To,
The Members,
Maral Overseas Limited
(CIN: L17124MP1989PLC008255)
Maral Sarovar V & P.O., Khalbujurg Tehsil,
Kasrawad, Khargone, Madhya Pradesh - 451660

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of 
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Maral Overseas Limited (hereinafter 
called the ‘company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating 
the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and 
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, 
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I 
hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during 
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 
31st March, 2025 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism 
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms 
and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules 
made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 
(‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and 
byelaws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the 
rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment 
and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018 - Not Applicable;

(d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 
Equity) Regulations, 2021 - Not Applicable;

(e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 
Regulations, 2021 - Not Applicable;

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act, 
2013 and dealing with client;

(g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021- 
Not Applicable;

(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - 
Not Applicable;

(vi)  I further report that, I have also referred the following 
laws specifically applicable on the Company having 
regard to the nature of Industry in which company 
is operating: -

(a) Textiles (Development & Regulation) Order, 2001

(b) The Employees Provident Funds and 
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

(c) Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board 
of Directors and Secretarial Standard on General 
Meetings as issued and revised thereof by The 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”).

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied 
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

I further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted 
with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The following changes 
in the composition of the Board of Directors and KMP that 
took place during the period under review were carried out 
in compliance with the provisions of the Act and are being 
reported below:

  Shri Raman Singh Sidhu (DIN: 00121906), Smt. 
Romi Jatta (10045383) and Shri Amitabh Gupta (DIN: 
01646370) were appointed as Independent Directors for 
5 consecutive years w.e.f. 1st August, 2024 and whose 

appointments were duly approved by the members in 
the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 
27th August, 2024.

 • Dr. Kamal Gupta (DIN: 00038490) and Shri Priya 
Shankar Dasgupta (DIN: 00012552) ceased to be 
the Independent Director(s) of the Company due to 
completion of their tenure on 25th September, 2024.

Adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule 
the Board Meetings, agenda and generally detailed notes 
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advances other 
than those held at shorter notice, and a system exists for 
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting 
members’ views are captured (where they were) and 
recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and 
processes in the company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations 
and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the company 
has no specific events/actions having a major bearing 
on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above 
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.
referred to above.

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 'Annexure A' and forms an integral part 
of this report.

Date: 8th May, 2025
Place: Delhi

For Manisha Gupta & Associates
(Company Secretaries)

Manisha Gupta
Practicing Company Secretary

Mem. No. F6378
CP No. 6808

UDIN: F006378G000299979



ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

CORPORATE 
OVERVIEW

STATUTORY
REPORT

FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

5352

Annexure –A

To
The Members
Maral Overseas Limited
(CIN: -L17124MP1989PLC008255)
Maral Sarovar V & P.O. Khalbujurg Tehsil Kasrawad,
Khargone, Madhya Pradesh- 451660

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices I followed provide a reasonable 
basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc. Further, my verification to the compliance of the laws specifically to the 
Company are limited to test check on random basis without going into the detailed technical scrutiny.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Date: 8th May, 2025
Place: Delhi

For Manisha Gupta & Associates
(Company Secretaries)

Manisha Gupta
Practicing Company Secretary

Mem. No. F6378
CP No. 6808

UDIN: F006378G000299979

Annexure –IV to Directors’ Report
Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

 Required under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

A. Conservation of Energy:
1) Steps taken or Impact on conservation of energy:

 Sarovar:

i. Commissioned Biofuel based Boiler and 
Thermopack to reduce carbon emission.

ii. Through regular monitoring, audit and arresting 
air leakages of machines, we stopped compressor 
of 168 CFM in spinning division.

iii. In old Autoconer (238 model) we changed 
opening, splicing and Multijet pipelines for saving 
compressed air.

iv. In Suessen compact Ring Frame, duct design has 
been modified and saving 168 units/day.

 Plan for next year:

i. To replace old compressor with energy 
efficient compressor on high pressure line to 
achieve power saving due to lesser specific 
power consumption.

ii. To install VFD on supply and return fan in 
preparatory section Humidification plant in  
Unit 4 & 5.

iii. To continue regular monitoring, audit and 
maintenance of air, steam and water leakages to 
minimize losses on account of leakages.

 A-11 Hosiery Complex- Noida:

i. Installed 10 no. of highway lights in 
cutting/finishing with energy efficient low 
electricity consumption.

 D-347, Sector- 63-Noida:

i. Installed 20 no. of highway lights in finishing with 
energy efficient, low consumption of electricity.

 Plan for next year:

i. To install VFD compressor with capacity 200 CFM.

ii. To increase the solar panel capacity from 35KW  
to 59 KW.

 A-37, Sector 64, Noida:

i. PNG Based Boiler with capacity 500 kg installed.

ii. Installed 40 no. of highway lights in finishing 
& production with energy efficient of low 
consumption of electricity.

iii. PNG based 125 KVA DG set installed.

 Plan for next year:

i. To Increase the solar panel capacity from 
250 KW to 314 KW.

ii. To install VFD compressor with capacity 200 CFM.

2) Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate 
sources of energy:

 Sarovar:

i. Planning to install roof top solar power 
panels of 3 MW under OPEX, besides 1.0 MW 
already in operation.

 Noida:

i. Installed Roof Top Solar Plant.

3) Capital investment on energy conservation equipment:

 Sarovar: An investment of approx. H1375 Lakh has 
been done for switching onto biofuel (biomass) from 
conventional fuel (Coal) for energy conservation 
during 2024-25.

A-11, Hosiery Complex- Noida: Nil

D-347 Sector -63- Noida: Nil

A 37, Sector 64- Noida Unit: Nil

B. Technology Absorption:
1. Efforts made towards technology absorption:

 Sarovar:

a) The efforts made towards technology absorption:

i. Suessen compact attachment in Unit No. 
1 for increasing production of compact yarns.

ii. Five sets of most advanced Uster Quantum 
Q-4 clearer installed at the final stage of 
spinning to avoid Poly Propylene (PP) and 
colour contamination and in one machine PP 
module installed to improve the yarn quality.
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iii. More Ring frames are being run on 
value added products like Protex-C 
and Acrylic yarn.

iv. Eco HLLD spindles having unique bolster 
design that supports energy saving with 
higher speed have been installed on 
six Ring frames.

b) Research & Development:

  Sarovar:

i. Developed AIRism 190GSM fabric and got 
approved for the nomination business of Uniqlo.

ii. Developed new blend with Organic Cotton/
Hemp Jersey 190GSM and got approved for the 
nomination business of Columbia Export.

iii. Developed Double Jersey Popcorn -390 GSM 
fabric and got it approved for the nomination 
business of Marc O’Polo.

iv. Developed Pointelle Rib Jacquard -200 GSM 
fabric and got it approved for the nomination 
business of M&S.

 A-11, Hosiery Complex- Noida:

i. Installed the Digitization System to reduce the 
DHU and increase Efficiency.

 D-347 Sector -63- Noida:

i. Installed 20 no. of highway lights in finishing with 
energy efficient of low consumption of electricity.

 A 37, Sector 64- Noida Unit:

i. Installed 40 no. of highway lights in finishing 
& production with energy efficient of low 
consumption of electricity. (We have shifted the all 
cutting process at A-37 from A-11 as centralized 
and installed the highly lights in cutting section).

2. Benefits derived like product improvement, cost 
reduction, product development or import substitution:

 Sarovar:

 Yarn:

i. Parallel Yarn produced with Melange + Dyed yarn 
in Melange unit.

ii. 100 % FR Viscose yarn made for protective 
application for bedsheet and cover.

iii. Silwarm blended yarn developed which is 
a replacement of Miyabi fiber for thermal 
wear application.

 Fabric:

i. Developed Jersey Crepe Textured fabric, which 
is highly appreciated and selected by various 
customers and brands. It has been finalized for 
salesman sampling by brand Kosugi.

ii. Developed Seer Sucker Spandex fabric, which 
has got attention from various customers and 
brands. Best Apparels and Jockey have finalized 
it for salesman sampling.

iii. Developed wide product range by using our 
own Melange yarn to promote the Melange 
products further.

iv. Newness in Finish: Developed fabric with different 
finish applications Anti Odour, Anti UV, Wrinkle 
Free, Cool touch.

v. Newness in blends: Developed fabric range with 
different blends to expand product basket with 
Regen Agri Cotton/Cocona 70/30%, Silwarm/M.
Polyester 70/30 , Siro Cotton/Kooltex 52/48% etc.

vi. Nomination Business:

a. Developed AIRism 190GSM fabric 
and got approved for the nomination 
business of Uniqlo.

b. Developed new blend with Organic Cotton/
Hemp Jersey 190GSM and got approved for 
the nomination business of Columbia Export.

c. Developed Double Jersey Popcorn -390 
GSM fabric and got it approved for the 
nomination business of Marc O’Polo.

d. Developed Pointelle Rib Jacquard -200 GSM 
fabric and got it approved for the nomination 
business of M&S.

 Noida:

 D-347, Sector-63, Noida:

i. To Minimized the machine maintenance cost.

ii. Strengthen the online process to reduce the cost.

iii. Re-align the steam pipeline and insulated.

 A-37, Sector-64, Noida:

i. To minimize the machine maintenance cost and 
increase the production efficiency.

ii. Insulated the all steam pipeline and monitoring 
on regular basis.

3. In case of imported technology (imported during the 
last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year):

 Sarovar & Noida

i. The details of technology 
imported: 

N.A.

ii. The year of import: N.A.

iii. Whether the technology been 
fully absorbed: 

N.A

iv. If not fully absorbed, areas where 
absorption has nottaken place, 
and the reasons thereof: 

N.A

4. Expenditure incurred on Research and Development

 Sarovar: The expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development: H94.002 lakh for financial year 2024-25.

 Garment Units:

A-11, Hosiery Complex- Noida: Nil
D-347 Sector-63 - Noida: Nil
A 37, Sector-64 - Noida: Nil

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
 During the year, the Company has earned foreign 

exchange equivalent to H46,444.38 Lakh at FOB 
price against an outgo of H6359.49 Lakh compared 
to the previous year’s H43,540.54 Lakh and outgo of 
H4,902.70 Lakh respectively.
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Annexure –V to Directors’ Report
Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

1. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Company Secretary (CS) 
during the financial year 2024-25.

S. No. Name Designation % increase in remuneration

1 Shri Shekhar Agarwal Chairman & Managing Director and CEO 10.15
2 Shri Shantanu Agarwal Joint Managing Director 11.11
3 Shri Manoj Gupta Chief Financial Officer 5.00
4 Shri Sandeep Singh Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Nil*

 *Not eligible for increment, appointed on 20th March, 2024.

2. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company: The 
ratio of remuneration of Shri Shekhar Agarwal, Chairman & Managing Director and CEO to the median remuneration 
of the employees of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 is 113.92:1.

3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year is 6.80%.

4. There were 4858 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2025.

5. Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in the last 
financial year i.e. 2024-25 was 5.85% and average increase in the managerial remuneration for the same financial 
year was 8.75%.

6. It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

A. Top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn:

S.
No.

Name of 
Employee

Designa-
tion

Remu-
nera-
tion 
(D in 

Lakh)

Qualifica-
tion

Expe-
rience 
(Year)

Com-
mence-
ment of 
Employ-

ment

No. of 
Shares 

Held

Whether 
Perma-

nent/ Con-
tractual

Age 
(Years)

Last Employed

Organiza-
tion Post Held

Dura-
tion 

(Years)

1 Shri Shekhar 
Agarwal

Chairman 
& 

Managing 
Director 
and CEO

255.32
B.Tech. 

(ME) M.Sc 
(Chicago)

47 27.01.1989 7,55,573 Contractual 72 RSWM LTD.

Vice 
Chairman & 
Managing 
Director

25

2
Shri 

Shantanu 
Agarwal

Joint 
Managing 
Director

116.60

B.S. in Elec-
trical and 
Computer 
Engineer-
ing-CMU, 

USA & MBA 
(USA)

17 01.04.2022 5,54,500 Permanent 39 BMD Pvt. 
Ltd.

Managing 
Director 14

3
Shri Tarun 

Kumar 
Baldua

President 139.91 Chartered 
Accountant 37 02.12.2023 100 Permanent 62

Surya 
Roshni 
Limited

ED & CEO 11

4 Shri Manoj 
Gupta

Chief 
Financial 

Officer
68.33

Chartered 
Accountant

B.Com 
(Hons)

23 01.11.2022 - Permanent 48 Simbhaoli 
Sugars Ltd.

General 
Manager 5

5 Shri Mohit 
Maheshwari

Sr. Vice 
President 

- 
Marketing

65.05 MBA 27 01.04.1999 - Permanent 50 - - -

6
Shri Arvind 

Kumar 
Bhokse

Vice 
President  

Opera-
tions

60.00

B.Com, 
Diploma in 
Garment 
Manufac-

turing

28 01.04.2024 - Permanent 56
Alok 

Industries 
Ltd.

Vice 
President  

Operations
3.5

7 Shri Naveen 
Maheshwari

Sr. Vice 
President 58.84 B.Com 

(Hons) 39 01.04.2002 - Permanent 58 HEG Ltd.
Dy. General 
Manager-

MIS
7

8 Shri Navjot 
Walia

AVP-
Marketing 53.53 B. Tech 

Textile 33 07.03.2011 - Permanent 55
Souza 

Designs 
Ltd

General 
Manager 1

9 Shri Sanjay 
Bolya

Vice 
President 47.77 Chartered 

Accountant 22 03.10.2022 - Permanent 48
Vardhman 

Textiles 
Ltd.

Sr. Vice 
President 3

10
Shri Vinay 

Kumar 
Singhal

Vice 
President 41.69 BE 36 26.08.2023 - Permanent 59

Shahi 
Export 
Limited

Head 
Engineering 6

Annexure –VI to Directors’ Report
Statement of Particulars of Employees pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
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Notes:
1. Shri Shekhar Agarwal and Shri Shantanu Agarwal, being father and son respectively are related.

2. None of the persons was employed for part of the year in receipt of remuneration aggregating to rupees eight lakh fifty thousand or 
more per month.

3. None of the employees draw remuneration more than the remuneration drawn by the Managing Director and hold by themselves or 
along with their spouse and dependent children, more than two per cent of the equity shares of the Company.

4. Salary were proportionate from the date of appointment.

5. The above remuneration is CTC of the employees of the Company.

B. Persons employed throughout the financial year & paid Rupees One Crore Two Lakh p.a. or more

S.
No.

Name of 
Employee

Designa-
tion

Remu-
nera-
tion 
(D in 

Lakh)

Qualification
Expe-
rience 
(Year)

Com-
mencement 
of Employ-

ment

No. of 
Shares 

Held

Whether 
Perma-

nent/ Con-
tractual

Age 
(Years)

Last 
Employed 
Organiza-

tion

Post 
Held

Dura-
tion 

(Years)

1
Shri 

Shekhar 
Agarwal

Chairman 
& 

Managing 
Director 
and CEO

255.32
B.Tech.(ME)

M.Sc 
(Chicago)

47 27.01.1989 7,55,573 Contractual 72 RSWM 
LTD.

Vice 
Chairman 

& 
Managing 
Director

25

2
Shri 

Shantanu 
Agarwal

Joint
Managing 
Director

116.60

B.S. in 
Electrical and 

Computer 
Engineering-
CMU, USA & 
MBA (USA)

17 01.04.2022 5,54,500 Permanent 39 BMD Pvt. 
Ltd.

Managing 
Director 14

3
Shri Tarun 

Kumar 
Baldua

President 139.91 Chartered 
Accountant 37 02.12.2023 100 Permanent 62

Surya 
Roshni 
Limited

ED & CEO 11

CORPORATE  
GOVERNANCE REPORT
1. Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

The purpose of Corporate Governance is to cultivate 
effective and prudent management of the Company 
by describing the processes, structure, and 
mechanism that influence the control and direction 
of the organization through which the pursuits of 
the Company are set and the standards of attaining 
those objectives and monitoring performance are 
committed. A Corporate Governance structure 
should encourage the efficient and optimum use of 
resources and set accountability for the stewardship 
of resources. Good Corporate Governance is an 
essential part of a well-managed, successful business 
enterprise that delivers value to its shareholders and 
stakeholders. The Board of Directors of the Company 
plays a pivotal role in good Corporate Governance by 
building up strong principles, systems and values on 
which the Company operates.

The Corporate Governance philosophy of your Company 
is based on the tenets of integrity, accountability, 
transparency, value and ethics. As a part of the LNJ 
Bhilwara Group, your Company has a strong legacy of 
fair, transparent and ethical governance.

This Report has been prepared in accordance with 
the requirements laid down under Companies Act, 
2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations 
2015”) and with a view to meticulously attain the 
highest standards of governance.

2. Board of Directors

2.1. Composition

The Board of Directors comprises accomplished 
professionals from diverse backgrounds, bringing a 
wide range of expertise that enhances effectiveness of 
decisions. At Maral, we believe that a well-informed and 
visionary Board fosters a culture of strong leadership, 
guiding long-term strategy and governance.

Board comprises an optimum combination of Executive 
and Non-Executive Directors with the Chairman of 
the Board as an Executive Director. As on 31st March, 
2025, Board has Seven (7) Directors comprising Two 
(2) Executive Directors, One (1) Non-Independent 
Non-Executive Director and Four (4) Independent 
Directors (out of which two are Woman Directors). 
The Directors have expertise in the fields of finance, 
law, management, technical operations, marketing/
sales, administration etc. The Board discharges its 
fiduciary relationships by providing guidance and 
independent view to the Company’s Management. 
The Directors, except the Chairman & Managing 
Director and Independent Directors are liable to 
retire by rotation. Shri Shekhar Agarwal, Chairman 
& Managing Director and CEO and Shri Shantanu 
Agarwal, Joint Managing Director are looking after the 
day to day management of the Company subject to 
the supervision and control of the Board of Directors.
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The size and composition of the Board conforms to the requirements of Regulation 17(1) of Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013. As on 31st March, 
2025, details pertaining to directors comprising number of other Directorship, Chairmanship/Membership of Committees 
in other companies, attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and last Annual General Meeting, are given below:

Name,
Designation
& Category of 
Directorship

No. of 
Meetings

No. of other Directorships 
and Committee Membership 

/ Chairmanship

No. of other Directorship  
held in Listed Companies

Held Attended Director 
ships*

No. of Membership 
(s) / Chairmanship 

(s) of Board 
Committees in 

other  Companies 
as on 31.03.2025#

Name of the 
 Company

Category of 
Directorship

Shri Shekhar Agarwal, 
Chairman & Managing 
Director and CEO, 
Promoter Executive 
Director

4 4 4 3

Bhilwara 
Technical 
Textiles Limited

Chairman & Managing  
Director and CEO

BSL Limited Non- Executive Director
HEG Limited Non- Executive Director
RSWM Limited Non- Executive Director

Shri Ravi Jhunjhunwala,  
Non-Executive Director 4 4 7 3 (including 1 as 

Chairman)

BSL Limited Non- Executive Director

HEG Limited Chairman & Managing  
Director and CEO

Indian Glycols 
Limited

Independent Director  
(Ceased to be Director 
 w.e.f. 30th September, 
2024)

J K Lakshmi 
Cement Limited

Independent Director 
(Ceased to be Director 
w.e.f. 31st August, 2024)

RSWM Limited Non-Executive Director
Shri Shantanu Agarwal, 
Joint Managing Director,  
Promoter –Executive 
Director

4 4 1 1
Bhilwara 
Technical 
Textiles Limited

Non- Executive Director

Dr. Kamal Gupta, Non- 
Executive, Independent 
Director$

2 2 Nil Nil

HEG Limited

Independent Director  
(ceased to be 
Independent  Director 
w.e.f. 29th August,  2024)

RSWM Limited

Independent Director 
(ceased to be 
Independent  Director 
w.e.f. 15th September, 
2024)

Shri Priya Shankar  
Dasgupta, Non-Executive, 
Independent Director$

2 1 2 1
Vindhya Telelinks 
Limited Independent Director

HEG Limited Independent Director

Name,
Designation
& Category of 
Directorship

No. of 
Meetings

No. of other Directorships 
and Committee Membership 

/ Chairmanship

No. of other Directorship  
held in Listed Companies

Held Attended Director 
ships*

No. of Membership 
(s) / Chairmanship 

(s) of Board 
Committees in 

other  Companies 
as on 31.03.2025#

Name of the 
 Company

Category of 
Directorship

Smt. Archana Capoor , 
Non- Executive,  
Independent Director

4 4 6 8 (including 3 as 
Chairperson)

Birla Cable 
Limited

Independent Director  
(Ceased to be Director  
w.e.f. 9th November, 
2024)

RSWM Limited Independent Director
S. Chand and 
Company Limited Independent Director

Sandhar 
Technologies  
Limited

Independent Director

SAMHI Hotels
Limited Independent Director

Bhilwara 
Technical 
Textiles Limited

Independent Director

Shri Amitabh Gupta Non- 
Executive, Independent 
Director **

3 3 Nil Nil Nil Nil

Smt. Romi Jatta Non- 
Executive, Independent 
Director **

3 3 1 1
Netweb 
Technologies 
India Limited

Independent Director

Shri Raman Singh 
Sidhu Non- Executive, 
Independent Director **

3 3 4 4
Selan Exploration 
Technologies 
Limited

Independent Director

Notes: *Excludes Directorships held in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Companies registered under Section 8 of 
Companies Act, 2013, Membership of Management Committee of various Chambers / Bodies.

#Includes Chairmanship/Membership in Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Public Limited Companies.

$Ceased to be Independent Director consequent to completion of 2nd term of Independent Directorship w.e.f. 25th September, 2024, hence, 
all details pertaining to them are provided as on 25th September, 2024 instead of 31st March, 2025.

**Appointed as Independent Director w.e.f. 1st August, 2024

None of the Directors is a member of more than ten (10) Board level Committees and Chairman of five (5) such Committees 
across all the Public Companies in which he/she is a Director.

During the year under review, Independent Directors fulfilled the conditions specified in the Listing Regulations, 2015 
and are independent of the management. Independent Directors have given the declaration of their independence at the 
beginning of the financial year.

Further, Independent Directors have included their names in the data bank of Independent Directors maintained with the 
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

None of the Directors are related to each other except Shri Shekhar Agarwal and Shri Shantanu Agarwal, being father and 
son respectively.
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2.2. Matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the Board of Directors

The Matrix setting out the skills, expertise and competencies of Directors as on 31st March, 2025, in context of business 
of the Company is as under:

S. 
No. Name of Director

Skills/Expertise/Competence

Finance Law Management Technical 
Operations

Marketing/
 Sales Administration

1 Shri Shekhar Agarwal, Chairman 
& Managing Director and CEO √ - √ √ √ √

2 Shri Ravi Jhunjhunwala, Non- 
Executive Director √ - √ √ √ √

3 Shri Shantanu Agarwal, Joint 
Managing Director √ - √ √ √ √

4 Smt. Archana Capoor, 
Independent Director √ - √ - √ √

5 Shri Amitabh Gupta, 
Independent Director √ √ √ - √ √

6 Smt. Romi Jatta,  
Independent Director √ - √ - √ √

7 Shri Raman Singh Sidhu, 
Independent Director √ - √ - √ √

year ended 31st March, 2025 and was attended by 
all the Directors except Shri Ravi Jhunjhunwala. 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee, Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee were present at the 
aforesaid AGM to answer queries of members of the 
Company. Statutory and Secretarial Auditors also 
attended the said AGM.

2.4. Directors with materially significant pecuniary 
relationship or business transaction with the Company

Executive Directors receive salaries, allowances and 
perquisites while other Directors are paid sitting fees 
for attending the Board meeting and other Committee 
meetings of the Board. There have been no materially 
significant pecuniary relationship or transaction 
between the Company and its Directors during the 
financial year under review.

2.5. Familiarization program for Independent Directors

During the year, the Independent Directors, from time 
to time, were apprised with overview of the business 
and operations of the Company. Presentations were 
made by the Chairman & Managing Director and 
CEO and by the Joint Managing Director giving an 
overview of the annual operating plans and budgets 
of the Company. All Independent Directors meet 
periodically with other Key Managerial Personnel, 
functional heads of the units etc. to understand 

2.3. Number of Board meetings

During the year, there were four (4) Board meetings 
held on 9th May, 2024, 1st August, 2024, 4th November, 
2024, and 4th February, 2025. Video conferencing 
facilities were used as and when required to facilitate 
Directors to participate in the meeting(s). The Board 
of Directors meet at least once in every quarter 
to review quarterly results and other items on the 
agenda. Additional meetings are also convened when 
necessary. The maximum time gap between any two 
consecutive meetings was less than 120 days.

The frequency of the meetings is enough for the Board 
to perform their duties effectively. In case of any 
exigency or urgency of matters, resolution(s) is also 
passed by circulation in accordance with provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Agenda papers containing 
all the necessary information were sent in advance to 
all the Directors on a timely basis to facilitate them 
in planning their schedule and to ensure meaningful 
participation in the meetings. Presentations are 
made on various business plans, budgets etc. 
Relevant decisions taken by Board / Committee 
meeting(s) were then communicated to the concerned 
departments / divisions.

Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company was 
held on 27th August, 2024 through Video Conferencing 
/ Other Audio Visual Means during the financial 

 • Information on recruitment and remuneration 
of senior officers just below the level of Board, 
including the appointment or removal of Chief 
Financial Officer and Company Secretary;

 • Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and 
penalty notices, which are materially important;

 • Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences;

 • any material effluent or pollution problems;

 • Any material default in financial obligations to and 
by the Company or substantial non-payment for 
goods sold by the Company;

 • Any issue, which involves possible public or product 
liability claims of substantial nature, including 
any judgment or order which, may have passed 
strictures on the conduct of the Company or taken 
an adverse view regarding another enterprise that 
can have negative implications on the Company;

 • Details of any joint venture or collaboration 
agreement, if any;

 • Transactions that involve substantial 
payment towards goodwill, brand equity or 
intellectual property;

 • Significant labour problems and their proposed 
solutions. Any significant development in 
human resources/industrial relations like 
wage agreement, implementation of voluntary 
retirement scheme, etc.;

 • Sale of investments, subsidiaries, assets of 
material nature, which are not in the normal 
course of business;

 • Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures 
and the steps taken by the Management 
to limit the risks of adverse exchange rate 
movement, if material;

 • Report on the risks enumerated in the Risk 
Assessment and Mitigation Policy;

 • Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or 
listing requirements and shareholders service 
such as non-payment of dividend, delay in share 
transfer among others;

the service and product management and such 
other areas related to the Company. The details 
on the Company’s Familiarization Program for 
Independent Directors and Familiarization Policy are 
made available on the website of the Company at  
https://www.maraloverseas.com/familiar.php.

2.6  Directors and Officers Insurance

The Company has taken a Directors and Officers 
Insurance (‘D and O Insurance’) Policy, for all its 
Directors, including Independent Directors, based on 
the quantum and risks as determined by the Board of 
Directors of the Company.

2.7. Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors

Number of Equity Shares held by Non-Executive 
Directors as on 31st March, 2025 are given below:

S. 
No.

Name of 
Director Category

Number 
of Shares 

held
1. Shri Ravi 

Jhunjhunwala
Non-Executive 
Director

Nil

2. Smt. Archana 
Capoor

Independent- Non-
Executive Director

Nil

3. Shri Raman 
Singh Sidhu

Independent- Non-
Executive Director

Nil

4. Smt. Romi 
Jatta

Independent- Non-
Executive Director

Nil

5. Shri Amitabh 
Gupta

Independent- Non-
Executive Director

1200

2.8. Information placed before the Board

Board has complete access to all the information about 
the Company. Information pertaining to mandatory 
items as specified in the Listing Regulations, 
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, along 
with other business issues, is regularly provided to 
the Board. The following information is regularly 
provided to the Board:

 • Annual operating plan & budgets and any 
update thereof;

 • Capital budgets and any updates thereof;

 • Quarterly results of the Company and operating 
divisions and business segments;

 • Minutes of the meetings of Audit Committee and 
other Committees of the Board;

https://www.maraloverseas.com/familiar.php
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 • Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report 
under SEBI (Depositories and Participants) 
Regulations, 2018;

	Quarterly Report on Corporate Governance and 
Investor Grievance.

 Board is presented with detailed notes on these matters, 
as part of the agenda papers of the meeting or directly 
tabled at the Board meetings, as and when required.

 Board reviews the declaration made by the Management 
regarding compliance with applicable laws on quarterly 
basis as well as steps taken by the Company to rectify 
instances of non-compliances, if any.

3. Committees of the Board

In terms of the applicable provisions of Listing 
Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Board has constituted Four (4) Committees viz. 
Audit Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

Keeping in view the requirements of the Companies 
Act, 2013 as well as Listing Regulations, the Board 
decides the terms of reference of these Committees 
and the assignment of members to various Committees. 
The recommendations, if any, of these Committees are 
submitted to the Board for approval.

 3.1. Audit Committee

Audit Committee is constituted in compliance 
with the provisions of Regulation 18 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended, 
read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Majority of the members of the Audit Committee 
are Non-Executive and Independent Directors.

During the year under review, Smt. Archana Capoor 
was appointed as Chairperson of Audit Committee 
with effect from 26th September, 2025 in place of 
Dr. Kamal Gupta who ceased to be Chairman & 
Member of Audit Committee due to completion 
of his 2nd term as Independent Director. 
Smt. Archana Capoor possesses financial 
management expertise and all members of the 
Committee have sound accounting and financial 
knowledge. During the year under review, all the 

recommendations made by Audit Committee 
were accepted by the Board.

During the year, there were four (4) Audit Committee 
meetings held on 9th May, 2024, 1st August, 2024, 
4th November, 2024 and 4th February, 2025. The details of 
attendance of members and composition of the Committee 
are as follows:

Name of the  
member

Chairman/ 
Member

No. of 
meetings 

held

No. of 
meetings 
attended

Dr. Kamal Gupta* Chairman 2 2
Shri Priya Shankar 
Dasgupta* Member 2 1

Smt. Archana  
Capoor**

Member/ 
Chairperson 4 4

Shri Shantanu 
Agarwal Member 4 4

Shri Amitabh Gupta** Member 2 2
*Dr. Kamal Gupta ceased to be the Chairman & Member and 
Shri Priya Shankar Dasgupta ceased to be a Member of Audit 
Committee with effect from 25th September, 2024.
**Smt. Archana Capoor was appointed as Chairperson and Shri 
Amitabh Gupta was appointed as Member of Audit Committee with 
effect from 26th September, 2024.

Company Secretary of the Company, acts as the Secretary 
to the Audit Committee.

Invitees to the Audit Committee include the Chairman & 
Managing Director and CEO, other Directors, Chief Financial 
Officer, Unit Head of Sarovar plant, Unit Head of Garment 
plants and representative of the Statutory Auditor and Internal 
Auditors, and other senior executives of the Company. 
Auditors update the Audit Committee with the Audit findings 
along with their recommendations and management 
comments on the same and Action Taken Report is 
presented in the next meeting. Auditors have attended all 
the Audit Committee meetings held during the year.

Committee has performed all functions mentioned in the 
terms of reference decided by the Board of Directors in 
accordance with provisions the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Listing Regulations.

The roles of the Audit Committee include the following:

 Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting 
process and the disclosure of its financial information 
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, 
sufficient and credible;

 Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and 
terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

 Reviewing, with the management, performance  
of Auditors;

 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, 
if any, including the structure of the internal audit 
department, staffing and seniority of the official 
heading the department, reporting structure coverage 
and frequency of internal audit;

 Discussion with internal auditors of any significant 
findings and follow up thereon;

 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations 
by the Internal Auditors in matters where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal 
control systems of a material nature and reporting the 
matter to the Board;

 Discussion with Statutory Auditor before the audit 
commences, about the nature and scope of audit 
as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any 
area of concern;

 To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in 
the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non- payment of declared 
dividends) and creditors;

 To review the functioning of the Whistle 
Blower Mechanism;

 Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer 
after assessing the qualifications, experience & 
background, etc. of the candidate;

 Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances 
from/investment by the holding company in the 
subsidiary exceeding C 100 crore or 10% of the asset 
size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including 
existing loans / advances / investments;

 Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the 
terms of reference of the Audit Committee; and

 Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits 
and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger, 
amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and 
its shareholders.

The Company has systems and procedures in place to 
ensure that the Audit Committee mandatorily reviews:

 Management discussion and analysis of financial 
condition and results of operations;

 Management letters / letters of internal control 
weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditor;

 Approval of payment to Statutory and Internal Auditors 
for any other services rendered by the statutory and 
internal auditors;

 Reviewing with the management, the annual financial 
statements and auditor’s report thereon before 
submission to the Board for their approval, with 
particular reference to:

	 Matters required being included in the Directors’ 
Responsibility Statement to be included in 
the Board’s Report in terms of clause (c) 
of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013;

		Changes, if any, in accounting policies and 
practices and reasons for the same;

	 Major accounting entries involving estimates 
based on the exercise of judgment by management;

 Significant adjustments made in the financial 
statements arising out of audit findings;

 Compliance with listing and other legal 
requirements relating to Financial Statements;

 Disclosure of any related party transactions; and

 Modified opinion(s) in the draft Audit Report.

 Reviewing, with the management, the statement of 
uses / application of funds raised through an issue 
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the 
statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 
those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice 
and the report submitted by the monitoring agency 
monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or 
rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations 
to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

 Review and monitor the Statutory and Internal 
Auditors’ independence and performance and 
effectiveness of audit process and adequacy of the 
internal control systems;

 Approval or any subsequent modification of 
transactions of the Company with related parties;

 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, 
wherever it is necessary;

 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk 
management systems;
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 Internal Audit Reports relating to internal 
control weaknesses;

 Review with the management the quarterly 
and annually financial statements before 
submission to the Board;

 Review of appointment, removal and terms of 
remuneration of the Internal Auditor (s); and

 Statement of deviations:

 Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including 
report of monitoring agency, if applicable 
submitted to the Stock Exchanges in 
terms of Regulation 32(1) of the Listing 
Regulation 2015.

 Annual statement of funds utilized for 
purposes other than those stated in the 
offer document/prospectus/notice in 
terms of Regulation 32(7) of the Listing 
Regulation 2015.

Pursuant to its terms of reference, Audit Committee 
is empowered to:

 Investigate any activity within its terms of 
reference and to seek any information it requires 
from any employee; and

 Obtain legal or other independent professional 
advice and to secure the attendance of 
outsiders with relevant expertise, when 
considered necessary.

3.2. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is constituted 
in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 20 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended, read with Section 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013. During the year, 
Smt. Archana Capoor was appointed as Member and 
Chairperson of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 
with effect from 26th September, 2025 in place of 
Dr. Kamal Gupta who ceased to be Chairman and 
Member of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee due 
to completion of his 2nd term as Independent Director.

During the year, there were four (4) meetings held on 
9th May, 2024, 1st August, 2024, 4th November, 2024 and 
4th February, 2025. Details of attendance of members 
and composition of Committee are as under:

Name of the 
member

Chairman/ 
Member

No. of 
meetings 

held

No. of 
meetings 
attended

Dr. Kamal Gupta* Chairman 2 2
Smt. Archana 
Capoor**

Member/ 
Chairperson 2 2

Shri Shekhar 
Agarwal Member 4 4

Shri Shantanu 
Agarwal Member 4 4

*ceased to be Chairman and Member with effect from 
25th September, 2024.
**appointed as Member and Chairperson with effect from 
26th September, 2024.

Shri Sandeep Singh, Company Secretary & Compliance 
Officer, acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 
The Committee ensures cordial investor relations, oversees 
the mechanism for redressal of investors’ grievance(s) 
and specifically looks into various aspects of interest 
of shareholder(s). The Committee specifically looks 
into redressing shareholders’/ investors’ complaint(s)/ 
grievance(s) pertaining to share transfers/ transmission, 
non-receipts of annual reports, non- receipt of declared 
dividend, issue of new/duplicate certificates and other 
allied complaints. The terms of reference of the Committee 
are as follows:

 Resolve the grievances of the shareholder(s) of the 
Company including complaint(s) related to transfer/ 
transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual 
report, non-receipt of declared dividends issue 
of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings, 
dematerialization / rematerialization etc.

 Review measures taken for effective exercise of  
voting rights by shareholders.

 Review adherence to the service standards adopted 
by the Company in respect of various services being 
rendered by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
(RTA) of the Company.

 Review various measures and initiatives taken by the 
Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed/
unpaid dividend(s) and ensuring timely receipt of 
dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices 
by the shareholders of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company had received 
two(2) complaints and the same was resolved to 
the satisfaction of the shareholders. No request for 
dematerialization/ rematerialization of equity shares of the 
Company was pending for approval as on 31st March, 2025.

Details of Shareholders’/Investors’ Complaints received and attended by the Company during the year ended 
31st March, 2025 are given below:

S. 
No. Nature of complaint (s) Pending as on 

1st April, 2024
Received 

during the year
Resolved 

during the year
Pending as on  

31st March, 2025

1. Non-receipt, Transmission / Issue 
of  Duplicate Shares/ Others - 2 2 -

2.
Non-receipt of Dividend,  Non-
receipt of Refund  Order & Non-
receipt of  Annual Report

- - -
-

3. Dematerialization/Rematerialization 
of shares - - - -

Total - 2 2 -

Member of CSR Committee due to completion of his 
2nd term as Independent Director.

During the year, there were four (4) meetings held on 
9th May, 2024, 1st August, 2024, 4th November, 2024 
and 4th February, 2025. The details of attendance of 
members and composition are as under:

Name of the 
member

Chairman/ 
Member

No. of 
meetings 

held 
during 

the year

No. of 
meetings 
attended

Shri Priya 
Shankar 
Dasgupta*

Chairman 2 1

Dr. Kamal Gupta* Member 2 2
Smt. Archana 
Capoor**

Member/ 
Chairperson 2 2

Shri Shekhar 
Agarwal Member 4 4

Shri Shantanu 
Agarwal Member 4 4

*Shri Priya Shankar Dasgupta ceased to be the Chairman & 
Member and Dr. Kamal Gupta ceased to be a Member of CSR 
Committee with effect from 25th September, 2024.
**Smt. Archana Capoor was appointed as Member 
and Chairperson of CSR Committee with effect from 
26th September, 2024.

The role of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee  
are as under:

 Formulate and recommend to the Board, the 
Corporate Social Responsibility policy and the 
activities to be undertaken by the Company;

 Recommend the amount of expenditure 
to be incurred on the activities undertaken 
by the Company;

The Company has a Share Transfer Committee as well 
to deal with the request of transfer/transmission of 
equity shares, issue of confirmation letter in lieu of 
duplicate share certificates etc. During the year, Share 
Transfer Committee was reconstituted and with effect 
from 26th September, 2024, Smt. Archana Capoor was 
appointed as member of the Committee in place of 
Dr. Kamal Gupta, who ceased to be member of the 
Committee with effect from 25th September, 2024. 
As on 31st March, 2025, the Committee comprises of 
following members:

 i. Shri Shekhar Agarwal, Chairman

 ii. Smt. Archana Capoor, Member

In terms of SEBI press release no 12/2019 dated 
27th March, 2019, physical transfer of shares is not 
permitted with effect from 1st April, 2019. Further, the 
SEBI has come out with circular dated 25th January, 
2022, whereby it has stipulated that the processing 
of service request in relation to Issue of Duplicate 
Shares Certificate, Claim from Unclaimed Suspense 
Account, Renewal/ Exchange of Shares Certificate, 
Endorsement, Sub division / Splitting of Shares, 
Certificate, Consolidation of Shares Certificates/Folios, 
Transfer /Transmission and Transposition would 
henceforth be carried out in dematerialized form only.

3.3.  Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee 
is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereunder. Company Secretary of the Company, acts 
as the Secretary to the Committee. During the year 
under review, Smt. Archana Capoor was appointed 
as Member and Chairperson of CSR Committee with 
effect from 26th September, 2024 in place of Shri Priya 
Shankar Dasgupta who ceased to be Chairman and 
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 Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility 
policy from time to time; and

 Carry out such other functions as are required or 
appropriate in discharging their duties.

Committee is not only responsible for the philanthropy 
activities carried out by the Company but also to 
ensure that the same is properly undertaken within 
the agreed time frame. Further, while considering 
the benefit of the shareholders, the Committee also 
considers the social and environment responsibilities 
to fulfill the expectations of the society at large.

The Company has formulated the CSR policy 
wherein the activities mentioned under Schedule VII 
of Companies Act 2013 are covered. The detail of 
amount spent on CSR by the Company is forming part 
of Directors' Report. The CSR policy of the Company 
is available on the website of the Company under 
the following link https://www.maraloverseas.com/
policy/MOL_CSR_Policy.pdf.

3.4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee is 
constituted in compliance with provisions of Section 
178 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 
19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended. 
During the year under review, Dr. Kamal Gupta 
ceased to be the Chairman & Member and Shri 
Priya Shankar Dasgupta ceased to be member of 
the Committee with effect from 25th September, 
2024, upon completion of their 2nd term as 
Independent Directors. Accordingly, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee was reconstituted, and Smt. 
Archana Capoor was appointed as Chairperson, while 
Smt. Romi Jatta, Shri Amitabh Gupta and Shri Shekhar 
Agarwal were appointed as members, with effect from 
26th September, 2024.

During the year, there were three (3) Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee meetings were held on 
1st August, 2024, 4th November, 2024 and 4th February, 
2025. The details of attendance of members and 
composition of the Committee are as under:

Name of the 
member

Chairman / 
Member

No. of 
meetings 

held 
during 

the year

No. of 
meetings 
attended

Dr. Kamal Gupta* Chairman 1 1
Shri Priya 
Shankar 
Dasgupta*

Member 1 1

Smt. Archana 
Capoor**

Member/ 
Chairperson 3 3

Smt. Romi 
Jatta** Member 2 2

Shri Amitabh 
Gupta** Member 2 2

Shri Shekhar 
Agarwal** Member 2 2

*Dr. Kamal Gupta ceased to be the Chairman & Member 
and Shri Priya Shankar Dasgupta ceased to be Member of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee with effect from 
25th September, 2024.

**Smt. Archana Capoor was appointed as Chairperson, and 
Smt. Romi Jatta, Shri Amitabh Gupta and Shri Shekhar Agarwal 
were appointed as Members of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee with effect from 26th September, 2024.

The terms and reference of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee inter-alia include  
the following:

 Identify persons who are qualified to become 
Directors and who may be appointed in 
Senior Management in accordance with the 
criteria and recommend to the Board for their 
appointment and removal;

 Formulate the criteria for evaluation of 
performance of Independent Director’s and 
Board of Directors;

 Formulate the criteria for determining qualification, 
positive attributes and independence of a Director;

 To devise a policy on Board diversity;

 To determine whether to extend or continue the 
term of appointment of the Independent Director, 
on the basis of the Report of performance 
evaluation of Independent Directors;

 Recommend to the Board a policy relating to 
the remuneration for the Directors, KMP, Senior 
Management and other employees;

 Succession planning for the Board and Senior 
Management of the Company;

 Specify the manner for effective evaluation 
of performance of Board, its Committee and 
individual Directors to be carried out either by 
the Board, by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee or by an Independent external agency 
and review its implementation and compliance;

 Recommendation to the Board, total 
remuneration, in whatever form, payable to the 
Senior Management;

 Carry out such other functions as are required or 
appropriate in discharging their duties; and

 Such other key issues/matters as may be referred 
by the Board or as may be necessary in view of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended 
and provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rules thereunder.

 Nomination and Remuneration Policy

Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and relevant 

provision of Companies Act 2013, the Company 
has framed a policy relating to the remuneration of 
the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management which is reviewed and approved by 
the Board of Directors on the commendation of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The policy 
is in consonance with the existing industry practice 
and forms part of Directors’ Report. The policy is 
available on the website of the company under the 
following link: https://www.maraloverseas.com/
policy/Nomination%20&%20Remuneration%20
Policy.pdf.

Remuneration of Executive Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management

The remuneration of Executive Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management is 
paid on a monthly basis as approved by the Board 
on the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and the remuneration of 
Executive Directors is also subject to the approval 
of the shareholders in accordance with the statutory 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules 
made thereunder for the time being in force.

4. Details of Remuneration paid to Director(s)

Directors excluding Executive Directors, were paid sitting fees for attending the Board and Committee meetings. 
Details of remuneration of Directors for the financial year 2024-25 are given below:

(H in Lakh)

Name of Director Category Sitting  
Fee5 Salary

Benefits, 
perquisites and 

allowances6

Com-
mission Total

Shri Shekhar Agarwal1 Promoter- Chairman & Managing 
Director and CEO - 220.16 35.16 - 255.32

Shri Shantanu Agarwal2 Promoter Group- Joint Managing 
Director - 100.40 16.20 - 116.60

Shri Ravi Jhunjhunwala Non-Executive Director 2.00 - - - 2.00
Dr. Kamal Gupta3 Independent- Non Executive Director 3.30 - - - 3.30
Shri Priya Shankar 
Dasgupta3 Independent- Non Executive Director 1.50 - - - 1.50

Smt. Archana Capoor Independent- Non Executive Director 6.80 - - - 6.80
Shri Amitabh Gupta4 Independent- Non Executive Director 4.00 - - - 4.00
Smt. Romi Jatta4 Independent- Non Executive Director 3.00 - - - 3.00
Shri Raman Singh 
Sidhu4 Independent- Non Executive Director 2.00 - - - 2.00

1Shri Shekhar Agarwal, Chairman & Managing Director and CEO holds 1.82 % of Equity Shares in the Company as on 31st March, 2025.
2Shri Shantanu Agarwal, Joint Managing Director holds 1.34% of Equity Shares in the Company as on 31st March, 2025.
3Ceased to be Independent Directors with effect from 25th September, 2024.
4Appointed as Independent Directors with effect from 1st August, 2024.
5Includes Sitting Fees for all Committee meetings.
6Includes retirement benefits excluding leave encashment & gratuity.

https://www.maraloverseas.com/policy/MOL_CSR_Policy.pdf
https://www.maraloverseas.com/policy/MOL_CSR_Policy.pdf
https://www.maraloverseas.com/policy/Nomination%20&%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf
https://www.maraloverseas.com/policy/Nomination%20&%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf
https://www.maraloverseas.com/policy/Nomination%20&%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf
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During the year ended 31st March, 2025, the Company 
did not advance any loans to any of its Directors. 
Further, during the year the Company did not give 
any performance incentive, Stock Option and Bonus 
Scheme to any Director(s).

5. Senior Management

In terms of Clause 5B of Schedule V of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the following are the particulars of 
Senior Management Personnel of the Company as on 
31st March, 2025:

S. 
No. Name Designation

1 Shri Manoj Gupta Chief Financial Officer
2 Shri Tarun Kumar 

Baldua
President

3 Shri Mohit 
Maheshwari

Sr. Vice President –
Marketing

4 Shri Naveen 
Maheshwari

Sr. Vice President

5 Shri Sandeep Singh Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer

The details of changes in the Senior Management 
Personnel during the financial year ended 31st March, 
2025 is mentioned below:

S.
No. Name Designation Change

1 Shri Sanjay 
Janghala

Vice 
President 
Operation

Resigned with 
effect from  

18th July, 2024

6. Independent Directors’ meeting

Pursuant to the Code of Independent Directors and 
Regulation 25(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as 
amended, the meeting of the Independent Directors 
was held on 4th February, 2025, without the attendance 
of Non-Independent Directors and members of 
management. The Independent Directors in their 
meeting, inter-alia:

i.  Reviewed the performance of Non-Independent 
Director(s) and the Board as a whole;

ii.  Reviewed the performance of the Chairman of 
the Company, taking into account the views 
of Executive Directors and Non-Executive  
Directors; and

iii.  Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness 
of flow of information between the Company 
management and the Board which is necessary 
for the Board to effectively and reasonably 
perform their duties.

7. Terms of Appointment of Independent Directors

The terms and conditions of the appointment 
of the Independent Director are available on the 
Company’s website under the following link: 
https://www.maraloverseas.com/pdf/Letter_of_
Appointment_Independent_Director.pdf

8. Board Evaluation Mechanism

Upon recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, Board of Directors have 
devised an evaluation framework in line with the 
applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and 
Listing Regulations, 2015 and has laid down the 
process, format, attributes and criteria which includes 
professional ethics, integrity, industry expertise, 
leadership experience, strategic planning, and other 
relevant skills, for performance evaluation of the Board 
of the Company, its Committees and of the individual 
Board members (including Independent Directors). 
Board is responsible for undertaking a formal annual 
evaluation of its own performance, Committees 
and individual Directors with a view to review their 
functioning and effectiveness. During the year, the 
Board carried out the performance evaluation of itself, 
Committees and each of the Executive Directors/
Non-executive Directors/Independent Directors 
excluding the Director being evaluated.

9. Performance evaluation of Independent Director(s)

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Regulation 17(10) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended, performance 
evaluation of Independent Directors was carried by 
the entire Board of Directors (excluding the Director 
being evaluated) which included the performance 
of the Directors and fulfilment of the independence 
criteria as specified in the Listing Regulations and 
their independence from the management. The criteria 
for the evaluation of performance are laid down in the 
Nomination and Remuneration policy of the Company. 
As on 31st March, 2025, the Company has the following 

Independent Directors: Smt. Archana Capoor, Smt. Romi Jatta, Shri Amitabh Gupta and Shri Raman Singh Sidhu. 
The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the outcome of the evaluation process.

10. Management Discussion and Analysis

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this Annual Report. During the financial year ended 
31st March, 2025, there was no material financial or commercial transactions by the Company with its Promoters, 
Directors, Management or relatives, etc. that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

11. General Body Meetings

 11.1. Annual General Meeting

 The details of the location and time of the Annual General Meetings held during the preceding three years are as follows:

Financial Year Date & Time Mode of meeting and details of Special Resolutions, if any
2021-22 Thursday, 25th 

August, 2022 at 
02:00 p.m.

33rd Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) was held through Video Conferencing (“VC”) 
/ Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”). The deemed venue of the AGM was the 
registered office of the Company at Maral Sarovar, V& P.O. Khalbujurg, Tehsil 
Kasrawad, Distt. Khargone Madhya Pradesh – 451660.

There was no Special Resolution passed by the members.
2022-23 W e d n e s d a y , 

20th September, 
2023 at 02:00 
p.m.

34th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) was held through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) /Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”). The deemed venue of the AGM 
was the registered office of the Comapany at Maral Sarovar, V& P.O. Khalbujurg, 
Tehsil Kasrawad, Distt. Khargone Madhya Pradesh – 451660.

There was no Special Resolution passed by the members.
2023-24 Tuesday,

27th August , 
2024 at 02:00 
p.m.

35th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) was held through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) /Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”). The deemed venue of the AGM 
was the registered office of the Company at Maral Sarovar, V& P.O. Khalbujurg, 
Tehsil Kasrawad, Distt. Khargone Madhya Pradesh – 451660.

Special Resolutions were passed by the members for:

i. Appointment of Shri Raman Singh Sidhu (DIN: 00121906) as an Independent 
Director of the Company.

ii. Appointment of Smt. Romi Jatta (DIN: 10045383) as an Independent Director 
of the Company.

iii. Appointment of Shri Amitabh Gupta (DIN: 01646370) as an Independent 
Director of the Company.

 11.2. Extra-Ordinary General Meeting

No extra-ordinary general meeting of the members 
was held during the financial year 2024-25.

11.3. Details of Resolutions passed by members 
through Postal Ballot

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108, 
110 and other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with regulation 
44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2025, the Company 
had sought the approval of the members by 
way of Special Resolution through postal ballot 
notice dated 4th February, 2025, for:

a. Re-appointment of Shri Shekhar Agarwal 
(DIN: 00066113) as Managing Director of the 
Company for a period of three (3) years w.e.f. 
1st April, 2025; and

b. Re-appointment of Shri Shantanu Agarwal (DIN: 
02314304) as Joint Managing Director of the 
Company for a period of three (3) years w.e.f. 
19th June, 2025.

 All the aforesaid special resolutions were duly 
passed on 20th March, 2025 (the last date of 
e-voting) and the results were announced on 
21st March, 2025.

https://www.maraloverseas.com/pdf/Letter_of_Appointment_Independent_Director.pdf
https://www.maraloverseas.com/pdf/Letter_of_Appointment_Independent_Director.pdf
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Smt. Manisha Gupta, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 6378 and Certificate of Practice No. 
6808) of M/s. Manisha Gupta & Associates, was appointed as Scrutinizer for conducting the Postal Ballot Process 
through the remote e-voting in a fair and transparent manner. Details of the voting pattern are provided below:

Item no.1 To approve the re-appointment of Shri Shekhar Agarwal (DIN: 00066113) as Managing 
Director of the Company for a period of three (3) years w.e.f. 1st April, 2025

Resolution required Special Resolution

Total number of 
votes cast (shares)

Number of votes 
cast in ‘favour’ 

(shares)

Percentage of 
votes cast in 

‘favour’

Number of votes 
cast ‘against’ 

(shares)

Percentage 
of votes cast 

‘against’

Number of invalid 
votes, if any 

(shares)
3,17,96,217 3,17,66,442 99.9064 29,775 0.0936 Nil

Item no.2 To approve the re-appointment of Shri Shantanu Agarwal (DIN: 02314304) as Joint 
Managing Director of the Company for a period of three (3) years w.e.f. 19th June, 2025

Resolution required Special Resolution

Total number of 
votes cast (shares)

Number of votes 
cast in ‘favour’ 

(shares)

Percentage of 
votes cast in 

‘favour’

Number of votes 
cast ‘against’ 

(shares)

Percentage 
of votes cast 

‘against’

Number of invalid 
votes, if any 

(shares)
3,17,96,217 3,17,66,442 99.9064 29,775 0.0936 Nil

Note: The voting rights of the members were in proportionate to their shareholding in the paid up equity shares capital of the 
Company as on the Cut-Off Date i.e. Friday, 14th February, 2025. As on the said cut-off date, there were 17162 members holding 
41508000 equity shares of C 10 each.

Procedure for Voting by Postal Ballot and E-voting: The 
postal ballot was carried out pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 110 and Section 108 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 20 and Rule 22 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014, Regulation 44 of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, Secretarial Standard on General Meeting issued 
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India  
(“SS–2”), also read with General Circular No. 
09/2024 dated 19th September, 2024 issued by 
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“the MCA”) read 
together with previous circulars issued by the MCA 
in this regard.

11.4. Details of special resolution proposed to be 
conducted through postal ballot

There is no special resolution proposed to be 
passed through postal ballot.

12. Means of Communication

The Company recognizes communication as a 
key element of the overall Corporate Governance 
framework and therefore emphasizes on prompt, 
continuous, efficient and relevant communication 
to Stock Exchanges. The Company interacts with 

their shareholders through various means of 
communication i.e. print media, Company website, 
Annual Report etc.

The quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results 
are sent within the specified timeframe to the Stock 
Exchanges after approval by the Board of Directors. 
The same is also displayed on Company’s website at 
www.maraloverseas.com. The Company publishes 
its results, in accordance with Regulation 47 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended, in at least one 
prominent national and one regional newspaper. 
The Company has a designated email-id maral.
investor@lnjbhilwara.com.

13. Disclosures:

 13.1. Basis of Related Party Transactions

 During the period under review, there is 
no materially significant related party 
transaction (s) with any of the related parties.

 In accordance with Regulation 23(9) of 
Listing Regulation, 2015, disclosure of 
related party transactions is made to the 
Stock Exchange within stipulated time 
as per law from the date of publication of 
financial results. The same is also updated 
on the website of the Company.

13.4.1. Board Disclosures – Risk Management

The Company has adopted Risk Assessment and 
Mitigation Policy approved by the Board of Directors. 
Under this Policy, the management identifies and 
monitors business risks on a continuous basis and 
initiates appropriate risk mitigation steps as and when 
deemed necessary. The Company has established 
procedures to periodically place before the Board 
of Directors/Audit Committee, the risk assessment 
and minimization procedures being followed by the 
Company and steps taken by it to mitigate those risks.

13.4.2. Disclosures by Board members & senior management

Board members and senior management personnel 
make disclosures to the periodically regarding:

 their dealings in the Company’s shares;

 all material, financial and commercial and other 
transaction with the Company; and

 where they have personal interest, stating that 
the said dealings and transactions, if any, have 
no potential conflict with the interests of the 
Company at large.

13.4.3. Material Subsidiary

The Company does not have any subsidiary. However,  
the policy of the same as approved by the Board of 
Directors is disclosed on the website of the Company 
under the following link: www.maraloverseas.com/
pdf/%20Key_Managerial_Personnel.pdf

13.4.4. Discretionary Requirements

The Company has complied with all mandatory 
requirements prescribed under Listing Regulations, 
2015 and the Company has also complied with below 
mentioned discretionary requirements as stated under 
Part E of Schedule II to Listing Regulations 2015:

i. Your Company’s financial statements are unmodified 
and your Company continues to adopt best practices 
to ensure the requirement of unmodified opinion.

ii. The reports of Internal Auditors of all Units are placed 
directly before the Audit Committee in every quarter.

 Related party transactions are being done on an 
arm’s length basis at prevailing market price 
and in the ordinary course of business and do 
not have any possible conflict with the interests 
of the Company. Omnibus Approval of Audit 
Committee was taken for transactions entered 
into with related parties by the Company and the 
same were placed before the Audit Committee 
on quarterly basis for review and noting.

 As required by Accounting Standards (Ind-AS-24), 
the details of related party transactions are given 
in note 40 to the Financial Statements.

 The policy for dealing with the Related Party 
Transactions as approved and amended by the 
Board of Directors is disclosed on the website 
of the Company under the following link: https://
maraloverseas.com/policy/Related%20Party%20
Transactions%20policy.pdf

13.2. Non-Compliance by the Company in previous years:

No penalties/strictures were imposed on the 
Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any 
statutory authority relating to capital markets during 
the last three years.

13.3. Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism

The Company has implemented a vigil mechanism, 
through which the employees, Directors and other 
stakeholders can report matters to the Nodal Officer, 
with the objective of pursuing its business in a fair and 
transparent manner by adopting the highest standards 
of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical 
behavior and to encourage and protect the employees 
who wish to raise and report their genuine concerns 
about any unethical behavior, actual or suspected 
fraud or violation of Company’s Code of Conduct. 
The Company has adopted a framework whereby the 
identity of the complainant is not disclosed. During the 
year under review, no person was denied access to the 
Audit Committee.

13.4. Compliance with disclosure requirements

The Company is fully compliant with the requirements 
of disclosures under SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the 
Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time.

http://www.maraloverseas.com
mailto:maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com
mailto:maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com
http://www.maraloverseas.com/pdf/%20Key_Managerial_Personnel.pdf
http://www.maraloverseas.com/pdf/%20Key_Managerial_Personnel.pdf
https://maraloverseas.com/policy/Related%20Party%20Transactions%20policy.pdf
https://maraloverseas.com/policy/Related%20Party%20Transactions%20policy.pdf
https://maraloverseas.com/policy/Related%20Party%20Transactions%20policy.pdf
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13.10. Initiatives on Prevention of Insider 
Trading Practices

The Company has a policy of prohibiting 
Insider Trading in compliance with applicable 
regulations of the SEBI (Prohibition and Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 2015. The objective of 
this policy is to prevent dealing in shares of the 
Company by an insider on the basis of UPSI 
Information. Necessary procedures have been 
laid down for Directors, officers and designated 
employees, for trading in the shares of the 
Company. To deal in shares, beyond specified 
limit, permission of compliance officer is 
required. The policy and the procedures are 
periodically communicated to the employees 
who are considered as insiders of the Company. 
Trading Window closure, are intimated to all the 
Directors, designated employees and insiders, 
in advance, whenever required. During the year 
under review, the Company is maintaining the 
structural digital data base in line with the 
requirement of SEBI under PIT Regulation and 
obtained the compliance certificates from the 
Practicing Company Secretary.

13.11. Certificate of non-disqualification of Directors

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule 
V para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, M/s Manisha Gupta & 
Associates, Company Secretary in practice 
has confirmed that none of the Directors on the 
Board of the Company have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing 
as Directors of Companies by the SEBI/Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs or any such Statutory 
Authority. A certificate of non-disqualification 
of Directors is forms part of this Report.

14. Code of Conduct

The Company’s Board has laid down a Code of Conduct 
for all Board members and Senior Management of 
the Company. Commitment to ethical professional 
conduct is a must for every employee, including Board 
members and Senior Management personnel of the 
Company. The Company is committed to conduct its 
business in accordance with pertinent laws, rules and 
regulations and with the highest standards of business 

13.5. Disclosure of accounting treatment in preparation of 
financial statements

The Company has followed the same accounting 
treatment as prescribed in the relevant Indian 
Accounting Standards while preparing the 
Financial Statements.

13.6. Compliance with Corporate Governance requirements

During the year under review, the Company has 
complied with corporate governance requirements 
specified in Chapter IV, Regulation 17 to 27 and 
clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 
46 of the Listing Regulations, 2015 and necessary 
disclosures thereof have been made in this Corporate 
Governance Report. Compliance Certificate from  
S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, 
(Firm Registration No. 000756N/N500441), Statutory 
Auditor of the Company regarding compliance of 
the condition of Corporate Governance forms part 
of this Report.

13.7. SEBI Complaints Redressal System (SCORES)

The investor complaint(s) are processed in a 
centralized web-based complaints redressal system.

13.8. Disclosure on Website

The Company’s website www.maraloverseas.com 
has separate section “Investor Relations” where 
the information for the shareholders is available. 
Annual Report, Financial Result, Shareholding Pattern, 
Corporate Governance Report etc. are also available 
on the website of the Company in user friendly 
manner. The Company ensures that the relevant 
provision of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, 
2015, as amended, are complied with.

13.9. Disclosure in respect of information to be disclosed 
under clause 5A of Para A of Part A of Schedule 
III of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

During the year, no information was required to be 
disclosed by the Company under clause 5A of Para A 
of Part A of Schedule III of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
None of the shareholders, promoters, promoter group 
entities, related parties, directors, key managerial 
personnel and employees of the Company have 
submitted any information as specified under the 
said regulations.

ethics. A copy of Code of Conduct, as amended from 
time to time, has been placed on the Company’s 
website: www.maraloverseas.com. All members of 
the Board and Senior Management Personnel have 
confirmed compliance with the code of conduct for 
the year under review and a declaration for the same 
included in certificate signed by Chief Executive Officer 
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, which 
forms part of this Report.

15. CEO and CFO Certification

In terms of Listing Regulations, 2015 as amended, the 
Certification of CEO and CFO on the financial statements 
for the year forms part of this Annual Report.

16. Directors seeking appointment /re-appointment

In compliance with provisions of Section 152 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, two Non-Independent Directors 
of your Company are liable to retire by rotation. 
Of these Directors, at least one-third retires every year 
and if eligible, propose themselves for reappointment. 
This year, Shri Shantanu Agarwal is retiring by rotation 
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment 
in the 36th Annual General Meeting. As required under 
Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations, 2015 
and Secretarial Standard-2, particulars of Director 
seeking appointment/re-appointment at ensuing 
36th Annual General Meeting (AGM), are provided in 
the Notice of AGM.

17. General Shareholders’ Information

 17.1. Annual General Meeting

Date :  29th August, 2025

Day :  Friday

Time :  2:00 P.M

Mode :   Video Conferencing (VC) or Other  
Audio Visual Mean (OAVM)

Venue :    The Venue of meeting shall be 
deemed to be Registered Office of the 
company at Maral Sarovar. V. & P.O. 
Khalbujurg, Tehsil Kasrawad, Dist. 
Khargone-451660, Madhya Pradesh

17.2. Financial Calendar/Results

Financial year : 1st April, 2024 to 31st 
March, 2025

For the year ended 31st March, 2025, results were 
announced on:

1st August, 2024 : First quarter ended on  
30th June, 2024

4st November, 2024 :  Second quarter and 
Half year ended on 30th 
September, 2024

4th February, 2025 :   Third quarter and Nine 
months ended 31st 
December, 2024

8th May, 2025 :   Fourth quarter and year 
ended 31st March, 2025.

For the year ended 31st March, 2025, quarterly/annual 
results were announced within 45 days from the end 
of each quarter.

17.3. Equity Dividend Payment : Not Applicable

17.4. Listing of Equity Shares on Stock Exchange: At 
present, equity shares of the Company are listed on 
stock exchanges, as given below:

i.  BSE Limited (“BSE”), having office at 25th Floor,  
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, 
Mumbai-400 001.

ii. National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) 
having registered office at Exchange Plaza, C-1, 
Block G, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), 
Mumbai - 400 051.

Listing fee as prescribed has been paid to BSE Limited 
and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
upto 31st March, 2026.

17.5. Registrar and Transfer Agents

MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited is the Registrar 
& Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company. 
The Shareholders may contact MCS Share Transfer 
Agent Limited at the following address:

MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited
(Unit – Maral Overseas Limited)

179-180, DSIDC Shed, 3rd Floor,  
Okhla Industrial Areas, Phase-I, New Delhi-110020.  
Phone No.: 011-41406149-51,  
Fax No : 011-41709881,  
E- Mail : admin@mcsregistrars.com;  
helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com 
Website: www.mcsregistrars.com

http://www.maraloverseas.com
http://www.maraloverseas.com
mailto:admin@mcsregistrars.com
mailto:helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com
http://www.mcsregsitrars.com
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17.6 Share Transfer System

As per provisions of Regulation 40 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 as amended, the shares of the 
Company can only be transferred in dematerialized 
mode w.e.f. 1st April, 2019. Further, as per the SEBI 
Circular dated 25th January, 2022, the transmission 
or transposition of securities held in physical 
or dematerialized form shall be effected only in 
dematerialized form. Matters related to issuance 
of duplicate shares/letter of confirmation, share 
transmission etc. were attended by the delegated 
authorities as and when required.

Further, in compliance with the provisions of 
Master Circular issued by SEBI on 7th May, 2024, 
while processing the service requests in relation to 
Issue of Letter of Confirmation in lieu of duplicate 
share certificate/Claim from Unclaimed Suspense 
Account and Suspense Escrow Demat Account, 
Replacement / Renewal / Exchange of share 
certificate, Endorsement, Sub-division / Splitting of 
share certificate, Consolidation of share certificates/
folios, Transmission, Transposition and Change in the 
name of the holder, the Company shall issue shares 
only in dematerialized form.

For processing any of the aforesaid service requests 
the securities holder/claimant is required to submit 
duly filled up Form ISR-4/ISR-5 along-with all the 
necessary documents to the Registrars & Share 
Transfer Agents i.e. MCS Share Transfer Agent 
Limited (“RTA”). A member also needs to submit 
Form ISR-1 for updating PAN and other KYC details 
to the RTA of the Company. Member(s) may submit 

Form SH-13 to file Nomination. However, in case a 
Member do not wish to file nomination ‘declaration 
to Opt-out’ in Form ISR-3 shall be submitted. In case 
of mismatch in the signature of the members(s) as 
available in the folio with the RTA and the present 
signature or if the signature is not available with the 
RTA, then the member(s) shall be required to furnish 
Banker’s attestation of the signature as per Form 
ISR-2 along-with the documents specified therein. 
Hence, it is advisable that the members send the 
Form ISR-2 along-with the Form ISR-1 for updating 
of the KYC Details or Nomination. If the KYC of all the 
holders of shares is duly updated in the relevant folio 
and duly filled-in and signed ISR form along-with all 
necessary supporting documents are received, the 
RTA process such requests.

The Company has sent latest communication by 
registered post to the concerned shareholders on 
10th July, 2024 for updating the aforementioned 
details. The said communication is available along 
with SEBI circulars on website of the company 
www.maraloverseas.com

Therefore, Shareholders who have yet not updated the 
above said information are requested to download the 
necessary Forms from the website of the Company 
i.e. www.maraloverseas.com under the path Investor 
Relations > Disclosure under Regulation 46 of Listing 
Regulation, 2015 > Intimation to Stock Exchange 
as per Reg. 30 of Listing Regulation > Procedure 
for Updation of PAN/KYC/Nomination by Physical 
Shareholders and submit the same duly completed 
in all respect to Company’s RTA.

17.7. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2025

No. of Equity shares held No. of Shareholders % of Shareholders No. of Shares % of Shareholding
1-500 15,428 90.03 18,45,735 4.45
501-1000 790 4.61 6,49,173 1.56
1001-10000 817 4.77 24,13,624 5.82
10001 and above 101 0.59 3,65,99,468 88.17
Total 17,136 100.00 4,15,08,000 100.00

17.8. Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2025

Category No. of Shares held % of Shareholding
A Promoters & Promoter Group 3,11,09,229 74.95
B. Public Shareholding

1. Banks / Financial Institutions 300 0.00
2. Mutual Funds, Insurance Companies & UTI 1,000 0.00
3. Foreign Portfolio Investors 33,840 0.08
4. NRIs 1,19,142 0.29
5. Bodies Corporate 21,45,270 5.17
6. Foreign Bodies Corporate 200 0.00
7. Individuals/HUF 80,67,424 19.44
8. Clearing Member 31,595 0.07

Total 4,15,08,000 100.00

17.9. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

 Equity Shares as on 31st March, 2025

S. 
No. Description No. of Share holders No. of Shares % of Equity

1. Central Depository Services India Limited (CDSL) 6847 2,42,00,395 58.30
2. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 5708 1,67,32,947 40.31
3. Physical 4581 5,74,658 1.39

Total 17136 4,15,08,000 100.00

The ISIN number for Equity Shares of the Company in NSDL and CDSL is INE882A01013. 4,09,33,342 equity shares 
were dematerialized till 31st March, 2025 which is 98.61% of the total paid-up equity share capital of the Company. 
Trading in Shares of the Company is permitted only in dematerialized form.

17.10. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments during the year under review.

17.11. Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities

	 	 Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities

The Company regulates its activities as laid down under Forex Hedging Policy. The Company regularly reviews 
the forex exposure along with the hedging positions. The Company had been continuing with its existing policy 
of booking Vanilla Forward Cover to the extent of Sales orders in hand to hedge its exposure. The Company 
enters into forward contracts for hedging foreign exchange exposures against exports and imports.

	 		Commodity Price Risk and Commodity Hedging Activities

The Company does not have any exposure hedged through commodity derivatives except foreign currency 
hedging. In compliance with Regulation 34(3) read with clause 9(n) of Part C of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended, the exposure of the listed entity to 
commodity and commodity risks faced by the entity throughout the year:-

A. Total exposure of the listed entity to commodities in H - Nil

http://www.maraloverseas.com
http://www.maraloverseas.com
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B. Exposure of the listed entity to various commodities

Commodity 
Name

Exposure in 
D  towards 

the particular 
commodity

Exposure in Quantity 
terms towards the 

particular commodity

% of such exposure hedged 
through commodity derivatives

TotalDomestic 
market

International 
market

OTC Exchange OTC Exchange
NIL

17.14. Credit Rating

During the year under review, CARE Ratings Limited 
(Rating Agency) has reviewed and revised the  
rating(s) for Long-Term and Short-Term Bank 
Facility of the Company as follows:

a) Ratings of long-term and short-term bank 
facilities of the Company were reviewed on 
27th August, 2024, as given herein below:

S. 
No. Facilities Revised Ratings Rating Action

1 Long-
Term Bank 
Facilities

CARE BBB-;  
Negative 
(Triple B 
Minus, Outlook: 
Negative

Reaffirmed, 
Outlook 
revised from 
Stable

2 Short-
Term Bank 
Facilities

CARE A3  
(A Three)

Reaffirmed

b) Ratings of long-term and short-term bank 
facilities of the Company were reviewed on 
11th February, 2025, as given herein below:

S. 
No. Facilities Revised Ratings Rating Action

1 Long-
Term Bank 
Facilities

CARE BB+; 
Stable

Downgraded 
from CARE  
BBB-
;Negative

2 Short-
Term Bank 
Facilities

CARE A4+ Downgraded 
from A3

17.15. Other information to the Shareholders.

  i.  Green Initiative

As a responsible corporate citizen, the 
Company welcomes Green Initiative, by sending 
communications/documents including Notices 
for General Meeting and Annual Reports from 
time to time through in electronic mode to 
those members who have provided their e-mail 
addresses to the Company or their Depository 
Participants (DP).

17.12. Plant/Unit Locations

1. Maral Sarovar. V. & P.O. Khalbujurg, Tehsil  
Kasrawad, Distt. Khargone - 451660, Madhya  
Pradesh.

2. A-37, Sector 64, Noida, Uttar Pradesh.

3. D-347, Sector-63, Noida-201307, Uttar Pradesh.

4. A-11, Hosiery Complex, Phase-II (Extension), 
Noida– 201305, Uttar Pradesh (w.e.f. 15th April, 
2025, Operations of this Unit was consolidated 
with the Unit mentioned at no.2 and 3 above).

5. 12/4, Main Mathura Road, Faridabad-121003 
(Haryana) (w.e.f. 1st May, 2024, Operations 
of this Unit was consolidated with the Unit 
mentioned at no.2 and 3 above).

17.13. Address for Correspondence

Investor correspondence should be addressed to:

a) Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
 MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited

(Unit – Maral Overseas Limited)
179-180, DSIDC Shed, 3rd Floor, Okhla Industrial
Areas, Phase-I, New Delhi-110020. 
Phone No.: 011-41406149-51, 
Fax No : 011-41709881,
E-mail : admin@mcsregistrars.com;
helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com

b) Shri Sandeep Singh, Company Secretary
Maral Overseas Limited,
Corporate office: Bhilwara Towers, A-12, 
Sector 1, Noida- 201301, Uttar Pradesh 
Phone No: 0120 -4390000,
Fax No. : 0120-4277841
E-mail: maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com

Registered Office: Maral Sarovar,  
V. & P.O. Khalbujurg, Tehsil Kasrawad, Dist.  
Khargone-451660,Madhya Pradesh.
Phone No:91-7285-265401-265405;
E-mail: maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com

 Shareholders who have not registered their e-mail 
addresses are requested to register/update their 
e-mail addresses in respect of equity shares held in 
demat form with their respective DPs and in case of 
physical form, with the RTA/Company.

ii. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC)

 As per the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013 the Company has constituted an Internal 
Complaints Committee that ensure protection of 
women employees and a work environment free of all 
forms of sexual harassment- verbal, written, physical, 
visual or otherwise.

 The Committee is formed as per the statute, and 
is headed by a women employee, the Committee 
comprises of more than half representation of women 
and it has adequate independent representation of 
women from the social and legal fields. It lays down 
the whole procedure of filing complaint, enquiry, 
redressal of grievance and taking action against 
those who are found guilty by the Committee in a 
fairly transparent manner. The Disclosures in relation 
to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 are 
tabulated hereunder:

No. of 
Complaints 
Filed during  

the year

No. of 
Complaints 

Disposed off 
during the year

No. of 
Complaints 

Pending as at the 
end of the year

Nil

iii.   Information pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with 
part F of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 as amended.

 The Company transferred 5100 equity shares in 
respect of 43 shareholders in the name of “Maral 
Overseas Limited – Unclaimed Suspense Account” on 
7th August, 2012 and these shares were subsequently 
dematerialized. During the financial year, 2014-15 
and 2015-16, two shareholders comprising 200 (100 
each) equity shares had approached for claiming their 
shares which were duly transferred in the name of 
the respective shareholders. As on 31st March, 2025, 
4900 equity shares of 41 shareholders were still lying 
in the Unclaimed Suspense Account and there was 
no claim received during the financial year 2024-25. 
The voting rights on these equity shares shall remain 
frozen till the rightful owner of such shares claims 
the equity shares.

Place: Noida(U.P)
Date: 8th May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board
Maral Overseas Limited

Shekhar Agarwal
Chairman & Managing Director and CEO

DIN: 00066113

iv.  Investors Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

 Pursuant to provisions of Section 124 and 125 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, 
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”), 
dividend, if not claimed within a period of seven years 
from the date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account 
of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”).

 Further, pursuant to provisions of Section 124 (6) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the IEPF rules, all 
shares in respect of which dividend has not been paid 
or claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall 
also liable to be transferred to the demat account of 
the IEPF Authority.

 Accordingly, the shareholders are requested to 
immediately claim their unpaid / unclaimed dividends, 
if any, failing which the said dividend & shares will 
be transferred to the IEPF. The details of unpaid/
unclaimed dividend are available on the website of 
the Company i.e. www.maraloverseas.com

v. During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Company did 
not raise any funds through preferential allotment or 
qualified institutions placement.

vi.  The total fees for all services paid by the Company 
on a consolidated basis to the Statutory Auditor are 
disclosed at note 32 (iv) of the Financial Statements.

vii.  There were no recommendations of any Committee 
requiring mandatory approval of the Board, which were 
not accepted by the Board.

viii.  Company has not obtained any public funding in the 
last three years.

ix.  The Company has no Outstanding Warrant /
Convertible Instruments.

x.  During the Year under review the Company has not 
given any loans and advances to any firms/companies 
wherein the Directors of the Company are interested.

mailto:admin@mcsregistrars.com
mailto:helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com
mailto:maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com
mailto:maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com
http://www.maraloverseas.com
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Certification by Chief Executive Officer and 
Chief Financial Officer of the Company

We, Shekhar Agarwal, Chairman & Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and Manoj Gupta, Chief Financial Officer 
of Maral Overseas Limited, hereby certify to the Board that:

a) We have reviewed financial and cash flow statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 and that to the best of our 
knowledge and belief:

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading;

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by Maral Overseas Limited during the 
year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

c) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting in Maral Overseas Limited 
and we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial 
reporting. We have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of 
such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify 
these deficiencies.

d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

(i)  Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii)  Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and the same have been disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements; and

(iii)  Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system.

e) We affirm that we have not denied any personnel access to the Audit Committee of the Company (in respect of matters 
involving alleged misconduct).

f)  We further declare that all Board members and designated senior management have affirmed compliance with the 
Code of Conduct for the current year.

Shekhar Agarwal Manoj Gupta
Chairman & Managing Director and CEO Chief Financial Officer

Place: Noida (U.P.) DIN: 00066113 FCA-500020
Date: 8th May, 2025

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of the SEBI 

 (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,
The Members of
MARAL OVERSEAS LIMITED
Maral Sarovar V & P.O., Khalbujurg Tehsil,
Kasrawad, Khargone- 451660
Madhya Pradesh, India

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Maral 
Overseas Limited having CIN: L17124MP1989PLC008255 and having registered office at Maral Sarovar, V. & P.O. 
Khalbujurg, Tehsil Kasrawad, Khargone, Madhya Pradesh-451660, India (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), 
produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with the Regulation 34(3) 
read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the 
Company, its officers and authorised representatives, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

S. 
No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment

1.  Shri Shekhar Agarwal 00066113 27th January, 1989
2.  Shri Ravi Jhunjhunwala 00060972 27th November, 1996
3.  Dr. Kamal Gupta* 00038490 13th July, 1991
4.  Shri Priya Shankar Dasgupta* 00012552 28th September, 2004
5.  Smt. Archana Capoor 01204170 6th November, 2015
6.  Shri Shantanu Agarwal 02314304 22nd April, 2014
7.  Shri Amitabh Gupta 01646370 1st August, 2024
8.  Smt. Romi Jatta 10045383 1st August, 2024
9.  Shri Raman Singh Sidhu 00121906 1st August, 2024

*Ceased to be Independent Director due to completion of tenure on 25th September, 2024.

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate 
is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Date: 5th May, 2025
Place: Delhi

For Manisha Gupta & Associates
(Company Secretaries)

Firm Peer Review No. 3290/2023  

Manisha Gupta
Company Secretary
Mem. No. FCS 6378

COP 6808
UDIN: F006378G000267749

http://www.mca.gov.in
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AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF 
 CONDITONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members of
Maral Overseas Limited

1. We S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, 
the Statutory Auditor of Maral Overseas Limited 
(“the Company”) have examined the compliance of 
conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, 
for the year ended on 31st March 2025, as stipulated in 
Regulations 17 to 27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 
46(2) and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing Regulations’).

Managements’ Responsibility

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate 
Governance is the responsibility of the Management. 
This responsibility includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal control 
and procedures to ensure the compliance with the 
conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in 
Listing Regulations.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is limited to examining the 
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted 
by the Company for ensuring compliance with the 
conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither 
an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
statements of the Company.

4. We have examined the books of account and other 
relevant records and documents maintained by the 
Company for the purposes of providing reasonable 
assurance on the compliance with Corporate 
Governance requirements by the Company.

5. We have carried out an examination of the relevant 
records of the Company in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate 
Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered 
Accountants of India (the ICAI), to the extent relevant, 
the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as 
applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as 
per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for 
Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires 

that we comply with the ethical requirements of the 
Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable 
requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 
1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and 
Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other 
Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

7. Based on our examination of the relevant records 
and according to the information and explanations 
provided to us and the representations provided by 
the Management, we certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance 
as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) 
to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule 
V to the Listing Regulations during the year ended 
31st March, 2025.

8. We further state that such compliance is neither 
an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the Management has conducted the affairs 
of the Company.

Restriction on use

9. The certificate is addressed and provided to the 
members of the Company solely for the purpose to 
enable the Company to comply with the requirement of 
the Listing Regulations, and it should not be used by any 
other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we 
do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of 
care for any other purpose or to any other person to 
whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it 
may come without our prior consent in writing.

Date: 8th May, 2025
Place:  New Delhi

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s ICAI Regd. 
No.: 000756N/N500441

Vivek Raut

Partner

(Membership No: 097489)

 UDIN: 25097489BNUISS4511
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S 
REPORT
To the Members of Maral Overseas Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 
Maral Overseas Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2025, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)), 
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement 
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of the material 
accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(herein after referred to as “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the 
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs 
of the company as at 31 March, 2025, and its loss, total 
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows 
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act 
(SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the  

Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statement.

Key Audit Matters
Key Audit Matters (KAM) are those matters that, in our 
professional judgement were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to 
communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and 
Auditor’s Report thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Management Discussion and 
analysis, Director’s Report including annexures to Director’s 
Report, Report on corporate Governance and Shareholder 
information’s, but does not include the financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or 
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. Based on the records, 
information and explanation provided, we have nothing to 
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged 
with Governance for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
including other comprehensive income / loss, cash flows 
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under 
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (Ind AS”).

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatements, whether 
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors 
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing 
the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 • Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

 • Obtain an understanding of internal financial 
controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

 • Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

 • Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
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to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 • Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonable knowledgeable user of the financial statements 
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit 
work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters, communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless 
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government of India 

in terms of section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013, we 
give in “Annexure – A” a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, 
we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss including other comprehensive income /(loss), 
Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in 
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 
the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements 
comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 
133 of the Act;

e. On the basis of the written representations received 
from the Directors as on 31 March 2025, and taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2025, from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate report in “Annexure – B”. Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy 
and operating effectiveness of the company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements 
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

As per the information and explanation given to us 
and on the basis of our examination of the records, 
managerial remuneration has been paid or provided 
as specified by the provisions of Section 197 read with 
Schedule V to the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position in 
the financial statements - Refer Note 36 to the 
Financial Statements;

ii) The Company did not have long term contracts 
including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii) There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

 1) The Management has represented that, 
to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either individually 
or in the aggregate) have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company 
to or in any other person or entity, including 
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

 2) The Management has represented, that, 
to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are material either individually 
or in the aggregate) have been received by 
the Company from any person or entity, 
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

 3) Based on the audit procedures that have been 
considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances, nothing has come to our 
notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) 
of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) 
above, contain any material misstatement.

iv) The company has not declared or paid any 
dividend during the year, therefore reporting 
under this clause is not applicable.

v) Based on our examination, which includes test 
checks, the company has used two integrated 
accounting softwares for maintaining its books 
of account which has a feature of recording audit 
trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the softwares. Further, at database 
level log was enabled throughout the year, the 
audit trail has been preserved by the company 
as per statutory requirements for record retention 
w.e.f. 20.05.2024.

For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000756N/N500441

Place: Delhi   Vivek Raut
Date: 08th May 2025    Partner
UDIN: 25097489BNUISQ3709  Membership No. 097489
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Report on the matters specified in paragraph 3 of the 
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) 
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of 
section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
as referred to in paragraph 1 of “Report on Other Legal 
and Regulatory Requirement’s “section

(1)  (a) (A)  The Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of 
Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has physically verified these 
Property, Plant and Equipment as per its program 
of physical verification that covers every item 
of Property, Plant and Equipment over a period 
of two years. According to information and 
explanation given to us, no material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verification;

(c) According to information and explanation 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the company, title deeds 
of all the immovable properties (other than 
properties where the company is the lessee 
and the lease agreement are duly executed in 
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial 
statements are held in the name of the company. 
However the direct confirmation for title document 
for properties which are mortgaged as security 
with IFCI Limited for securing the facilities is yet 
to be received from IFCI Limited.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, 
Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use 
assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) As per information and explanation given to us, no 
proceedings have been initiated during the year or 
are pending against the Company as at March 31, 
2025 for holding any benami property under the 
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as 
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(2) (a) The physical verification of inventory has 
been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 
management. In our opinion, the coverage and 
procedure of such verification by the management 
is appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on 
verification between the physical stocks and the 
book records that were 10% or more in aggregate 
for each class of inventory.

(b) The company has been sanctioned working 
capital limits in excess of 5 crore rupees during 
the year, in aggregate, from banks or financial 
institutions on the basis of security of current 
assets; the quarterly returns or statements filed 
by the company with such banks or financial 
institutions are in agreement with the books of 
account of the Company.

(3)  The Company has not made any investments in, 
provided any guarantee or security or granted any 
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured 
or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties.

(4) According to the information and explanation given 
to us and based on our examination, the Company 
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 
186 of The Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, 
investments, guarantees, and security made;

(5) According to the information and explanation given to 
us and based on our examination, the Company has not 
accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to 
be deposits during the year. Further, we have not came 
across any such deposits nor the management has 
reported any such deposits, therefore the directives 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions 
of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of 
the Companies Act and the rules framed thereunder is 
not applicable.

(6) We have broadly reviewed the books and records 
required to be maintained as specified by the Central 
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of 
Companied Act, 2013 and we are of the opinion that 
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records 
are being maintained. We have not, however, made a 
detailed examination of the same.

“ANNEXURE – A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
MARAL OVERSEAS LIMITED

(7) (a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services 
Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, 
Value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. There are no arrears 
of outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six 
months from the date, they became payable.

(b) The particulars of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited on account 
of any dispute are as under:

Name of the 
Statute Nature of Dues Related Year *Amount 

D  In Lakh
Forum where the dispute is 
pending

Income Tax 
Act

Disallowance of deduction u/s 
10B, 35D & 80HHC u/s 115JB

AY 2002-03 45.01 CIT (Appeals) & Dy CIT (For 
rectification)

AY 2003-04 27.64 CIT (Appeals)
Custom Act Duty on Coal Import FY 2012 5.56 Comm (Appeals)

Duty on Coal Import FY 2012 28.48 CESTAT
Non/Part Realization of Exports 
Proceeds for Draw Back

FY 2014 to 2019 386.36 Comm. of Customs, Mumbai

State Sales 
Tax Act

Entry Tax FY 2016-2017 10.90 Asst. Comm. Sales Tax 
Gautam budh Nagar

Goods and 
Service Tax

RCM FY 2020-2021 5.89 Assessing Officer

 • This includes interest & penalty.

(d)  According to the information and explanations 
given to us, and the procedures performed by us, 
and on an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the company, we report that the 
company has used funds raised on short term 
basis aggregating to C 213.46 Lakhs (Long term 
assets C 37,441.16 Lakhs and Long term funds 
including total equity C 37,227.70 Lakhs) for 
long-term purposes.

(e) The company has no subsidiaries, associate 
or joint venture and therefore reporting under 
this sub clause (e) and (f) of Clause (ix) are 
not applicable.

(10) (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of 
initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year and therefore 
reporting under this clause is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly 
or optionally) and therefore reporting under this 
clause is not applicable.

(8) According to the information and explanation given 
to us and based on our examination, there were no 
transactions relating to previously unrecorded income 
that have been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(9) (a) According to the information and explanation 
given to us and based on our examination, the 
company has not defaulted in repayment of loans 
or other borrowings or in the payment of interest 
thereon to any lender.

(b)  According to the information and explanation 
given to us and based on our examination, the 
Company has not been declared wilful defaulter 
by any bank or financial institution or government 
or any government authority.

(c)  According to the information and explanation 
given to us and based on our examination, the 
term loans were applied for the purpose for which 
loans were obtained.
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(11) (a) According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on our examination, no 
fraud by the Company or on the Company by 
its officers or employees has been noticed or 
reported during the year;

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 
of the Companies Act has been filed in Form 
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government, during the year and upto the date 
of this report.

(c) According to the information and explanation 
given to us and based on our examination, there 
is no whistle-blower complaints received during 
the year by the company.

(12) The Company is not a Nidhi Company, therefore 
reporting under this clause is not applicable.

(13) According to the information and explanation given to 
us and based on our examination, transactions with 
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 
& 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and 
the details of such transactions have been disclosed in 
the financial statements as required by the applicable 
Accounting Standards;

(14) (a) According to the information and explanation 
given to us and based on our examination, in our 
opinion, the Company has an adequate internal 
audit system commensurate with the size and 
the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports 
for the year under audit, issued to the Company 
during the year.

(15) According to the information and explanation given 
to us and based on our examination, the Company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
its Directors or persons connected with its directors. 
therefore provisions of section 192 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(16) (a) As per the information and explanation given to 
us and based on our examination, the Company is 
not required to be registered under section 45-IA 

of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 therefore, 
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is 
not applicable.

(b) As per the information and explanation given to 
us and based on our examination, in continuation 
of sub clause (a) of above clause (xvi) as there is 
no requirement to be registered under section 45- 
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and the 
Company has not conducted any Non- Banking 
Financial or Housing Finance activities therefore, 
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is 
not applicable.

(c) As per the information and explanation given to 
us and based on our examination, the company is 
not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined 
in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of 
India, therefore reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (c) 
of the order is not applicable.

(d) As per the information and explanation given to 
us, there is no core investment company within 
the Group (as defined in the Core Investment 
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and 
therefore reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the 
Order is not applicable.

(17) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the 
financial year covered by our audit and the immediately 
preceding financial year.

(18) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors 
of the Company during the year, therefore reporting 
under clause (xviii) is not applicable.

(19) According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on the basis of the analysis of financial ratios, 
the current ratio is less than 1 indicating that short 
term funds have been used for long term purposes 
which has been referred in above clause ix (d) and 
retained earnings is also negative during the year, these 
indicates there may be liquidity issue going forward. 
However, considering the realisability of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other 
information accompanying the financial statements 
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans and based on our examination of 

the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that 
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the 
audit report indicating that Company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability 
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report 
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the 
Company as and when they fall due.

(20) (a) According to the information and explanation 
given to us, based on our examination, there are 
no unspent amount towards Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing 
projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in 
Schedule VII to the Companies Act within a period 
of six months of the expiry of the financial year in 
compliance with second proviso to sub-section 
(5) of section 135 of the said Act.

(b) According to the information and explanation 
given to us, based on our examination, there is 
no amount required to be transferred to special 
account in respect to ongoing projects during the 
financial year.

For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000756N/N500441

Place: Noida  Vivek Raut
Date: 08th May 2025    Partner
UDIN: 25097489BNUISQ3709  Membership No. 097489
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“ANNEXURE – B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
MARAL OVERSEAS LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause 
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of 
‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Maral Overseas Limited (“the Company”) as of 
31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls
The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on “the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 
internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and the Standards on 
Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the 
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that:

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000756N/N500441

Place: Noida  Vivek Raut
Date: 08th May 2025    Partner
UDIN: 25097489BNUISQ3709  Membership No. 097489

Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls 
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 
March, 2025, based on “the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India”.
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025
(D in Lakh)

Particulars Notes As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3(i) 30,529.53 29,639.81
(b) Capital work - in - progress 3(ii) 121.49 921.27
(c) Other intangible assets 4 81.14 88.90
(d) Right of use Assets 3(iii) 3,033.68 4,846.06
(e) Biological Assets other than bearer plants 5 6.73 6.94
(f) Financial assets

(i) Loans 7 34.69 44.76
(ii) Other financial assets 8 2,406.55 3,096.28

(g) Other non-current assets 9 1,227.35 961.46
Total non-current assets 37,441.16 39,605.48
Current assets
(a) Inventories 10 13,587.99 16,398.02
(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments 11 117.11 114.21
(ii) Trade receivables 12 13,885.52 12,096.64
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 13 21.56 58.37
(iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 14 450.38 440.25
(v) Loans 7 71.81 99.82
(vi) Other financial assets 8 2,343.81 1,844.79

(c) Current tax assets (net) 15 73.64 226.79
(d) Other current assets 9 5,219.85 4,886.17
Total current assets 35,771.67 36,165.06
Total Assets 73,212.83 75,770.54

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 16 4,150.80 4,150.80
(b) Other equity 17 6,738.26 9,003.11
Total Equity 10,889.06 13,153.91
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 18 14,688.57 15,514.69
(ii) Lease liabilities 19(i) 2,964.22 4,733.99
(iii) Other financial liabilities 19(ii) 34.31 19.97

(b) Provisions 20 468.28 454.05
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6 334.61 425.95
(d) Deferred government grant 22 3,977.29 4,515.24
Total non-current liabilities 22,467.28 25,663.89
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 18 26,864.32 26,909.67
(ii) Lease liabilities 19(i) 398.22 447.42
(iii) Trade payables

total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 23 308.05 621.53
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises

23 6,093.99 2,999.52

(iv) Other financial liabilities 19(ii) 4,242.59 4,128.28
(b) Other current liabilities 21 1,677.21 1,656.13
(c) Provisions 20 272.11 190.19
Total current liabilities 39,856.49 36,952.74
Total liabilities 62,323.77 62,616.63
Total Equity and Liabilities 73,212.83 75,770.54

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-47

As per our report of even date attached

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants MARAL OVERSEAS LIMITED
Firm Registration No.000756N/N500441

Vivek Raut Shekhar Agarwal Shantanu Agarwal
Partner Chairman & Managing Director and CEO Joint Managing Director
Membership No. 097489 DIN: 00066113 DIN: 02314304
UDIN: 25097489BNUISQ3709

Place: Noida (U.P.) Manoj Gupta Sandeep Singh
Date: 8th May, 2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

FCA- 500020 FCS- 9877

As per our report of even date attached

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants MARAL OVERSEAS LIMITED
Firm Registration No.000756N/N500441

Vivek Raut Shekhar Agarwal Shantanu Agarwal
Partner Chairman & Managing Director and CEO Joint Managing Director
Membership No. 097489 DIN: 00066113 DIN: 02314304
UDIN: 25097489BNUISQ3709

Place: Noida (U.P.) Manoj Gupta Sandeep Singh
Date: 8th May, 2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

FCA- 500020 FCS- 9877

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2025
(D in Lakh except per share data)

Particulars Notes Year Ended
31st March 2025

Year Ended
31st March 2024

1.  Revenue from operations 25 1,04,703.43 96,005.61
2.  Other income 26 2,256.86 2,292.47
3.  Total Income (1+2) 1,06,960.29 98,298.08
4.  Expenses

a.  Cost of materials consumed 27(i) 65,104.70 60,137.26
b.  Purchases of stock-in-trade 27(ii) 410.43 36.71
c.  Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 28 (488.48) 651.31
d.  Employee benefit expenses 29 17,885.30 14,710.12
e.  Finance cost 30 3,668.27 3,394.88
f.  Depreciation and amortisation expenses 31 3,417.11 3,426.39
g.  Other expenses 32 19,526.17 16,787.95

Total Expenses 1,09,523.50 99,144.62
5.  Profit/(Loss) before tax (3-4) (2,563.21) (846.54)
6.  Tax expense

a.  Current tax 33 - -
b.  Deferred tax 33 (143.44) 129.81

Total tax expense (143.44) 129.81
7.  Profit/(Loss) for the year (5-6) (2,419.77) (976.35)
8.  Other comprehensive income/(Loss)

(i)  Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and 
loss

  Remeasurement of post-employment benefit plans 39 91.14 112.15
(ii)  Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 

statement of profit and loss
33 (22.94) (26.80)

(i)  Items that will be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
  Fair Value Gain/(Loss) on Cash flow hedges 41 115.89 (71.68)

(ii)  Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to 
statement of profit and loss

33 (29.17) 18.04

Total other comprehensive income/(Loss) 154.92 31.71
9.  Total comprehensive income for the year (7+8) (2,264.85) (944.64)
Earnings per equity share (Face value D 10 per share) 34

Basic (C ) (5.83) (2.35)
Diluted (C ) (5.83) (2.35)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-47
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Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March 2025
(D in Lakh)

Particulars Year Ended
31st March, 2025

Year Ended
31st March, 2024

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities

Profit/ (Loss) for the year before tax (2,563.21) (846.54)
Adjustments for non operating and non cash transactions:
Finance costs 3,589.73 3,286.60
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3,417.11 3,426.39
Unrealised exchange Loss/(Gain) (479.91) (475.07)
Interest income (590.20) (194.00)
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed) under ECL model (72.52) (595.90)
Provision/Liability no longer required written back (680.81) (304.67)
Loss/(Profit) on sale/discard of property, plant & equipment (5.43) (15.31)
Dividend Income (2.08) (1.72)
Fair value of investment through profit & loss (2.91) (34.82)
Operating Profit(+)/Loss(-) before working capital change 2,609.77 4,244.96
Movements in working capital:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Trade receivables (1,236.45) (1,114.06)
Financial assets 590.57 (3,761.13)
Other assets (924.96) 2,789.86
Inventories 2,810.03 1,552.08
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 3,461.80 (1,272.76)
Other current liabilities 21.08 (170.76)
Other financial liabilities 452.85 262.94
Provisions/other items 187.14 217.04
Deferred government grant (537.95) 3,429.88
Cash generated by/(used in) operations before tax 7,433.88 6,178.05
Income tax (paid)/refund 153.14 (63.18)
Net cash generated by/(used in) operating activities (A) 7,587.02 6,114.87

B. Cash flow from Investing Activities
Capital expenditure on capital assets, including capital advances (3,223.44) (12,469.85)
Proceeds from sale/disposal of capital assets 55.18 90.75
(Increase)/Decrease in fixed deposit under lien (10.13) (14.34)
Interest received 344.75 195.81
Dividend received 2.08 1.72
Net cash generated by/(used in) investing activities (B) (2,831.56) (12,195.91)

Particulars Year Ended
31st March, 2025

Year Ended
31st March, 2024

C.  Cash flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Term Loan 1,752.16 9,028.35
Repayment of Term loan (3,320.93) (2,346.11)
Proceeds from Unsecured Loan- Related party 1,000.00 1,000.00
Increase/(Decrease) in Working Capital facilities (303.01) 1,828.51
Interest paid (3,242.69) (2,747.00)
Payment of Lease liabilities (314.10) (415.27)
Payment of Interest on Lease liabilities (363.70) (497.56)
Net cash generated by/(used in) financing activities (C) (4,792.27) 5,850.92
Net Increase/(decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (36.81) (230.12)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 58.37 288.49
Closing Balance of Cash and cash equivalents 21.56 58.37
Balances with banks
In Current accounts 10.71 45.19
Cheques on hand 3.12 0.13
Cash in hand 7.73 13.05
Total 21.56 58.37

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March 2025 (contd.)
(D in Lakh)

Notes:

1. The above cash flows statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Ind AS 7 on cash 
flow statements.

2.  Figures in bracket indicate cash outflow/Loss.

3.  Refer Note No 30 Financial cost & 42 Reconciliation.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements   1-47

As per our report of even date attached

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants MARAL OVERSEAS LIMITED
Firm Registration No.000756N/N500441

Vivek Raut Shekhar Agarwal Shantanu Agarwal
Partner Chairman & Managing Director and CEO Joint Managing Director
Membership No. 097489 DIN: 00066113 DIN: 02314304
UDIN: 25097489BNUISQ3709

Place: Noida (U.P.) Manoj Gupta Sandeep Singh
Date: 8th May, 2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

FCA- 500020 FCS- 9877



Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

CORPORATE 
OVERVIEW

STATUTORY
REPORT

FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

99
ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

98
ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2025

a. Equity share capital (D in Lakh)

Balance as at 1st 
April 2024

Changes in Equity share capital 
due to prior period errors

Restated balance 
as at 1st April 2024

Changes in Equity share 
capital during the year

Balance as at 31st 
March 2025

4,150.80 - 4,150.80 - 4,150.80

(D in Lakh)

Balance as at 1st 
April 2023

Changes in Equity share capital 
due to prior period errors

Restated balance 
as at 1st April 2023

Changes in Equity share 
capital during the year

Balance as at 31st 
March 2024

4,150.80 - 4,150.80 - 4,150.80

Refer Note 16

b. Other equity (D in Lakh)

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive 
Income

TotalRetained 
earnings

General 
reserve

Securities 
premium

Preference 
share 

capital 
redemption 

reserve

Capital 
reserve

Effective 
portion of 
cash flow 

hedges

Remeas-
urement of 

post-employ-
ment benefit 

plans
Balance as at  
1st April 2024 1,174.04 10.16 2,590.07 5,085.40 113.47 (25.95) 55.92 9,003.11

Profit/(Loss) for the year (2,419.77) (2,419.77)
Other comprehensive 
Income/(Loss) - 86.72 68.20 154.92
Total Comprehensive 
Income for the year (2,419.77) - - - - 86.72 68.20 (2,264.85)

Balance as at  
31st March 2025 (1,245.73) 10.16 2,590.07 5,085.40 113.47 60.77 124.12 6,738.26

(D in Lakh)

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive 
Income

TotalRetained 
earnings

General 
reserve

Securities 
premium

Preference 
share 

capital 
redemption 

reserve

Capital 
reserve

Effective 
portion of 
cash flow 

hedges

Remeas-
urement of 

post-employ-
ment benefit 

plans
Balance as at  
1st April 2023 2,150.39 10.16 2,590.07 5,085.40 113.47 27.69 (29.43) 9,947.75

Profit/(Loss) for the year (976.35) (976.35)
Other comprehensive 
Income/(Loss) - (53.64) 85.35 31.71
Total Comprehensive 
Income for the year (976.35) - - - - (53.64) 85.35 (944.64)

Balance as at  
31st March 2024 1,174.04 10.16 2,590.07 5,085.40 113.47 (25.95) 55.92 9,003.11

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-47

Notes: Nature and Purpose of Reserves (Refer Note 17 & 44)

As per our report of even date attached

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants MARAL OVERSEAS LIMITED
Firm Registration No.000756N/N500441

Vivek Raut Shekhar Agarwal Shantanu Agarwal
Partner Chairman & Managing Director and CEO Joint Managing Director
Membership No. 097489 DIN: 00066113 DIN: 02314304
UDIN: 25097489BNUISQ3709

Place: Noida (U.P.) Manoj Gupta Sandeep Singh
Date: 8th May, 2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

FCA- 500020 FCS- 9877

1. Corporate Information
Maral Overseas Limited (the Company) is a public 
limited company incorporated and domiciled in India 
having its registered office at Maral Sarovar, V&P.O. 
Khalbujurg Tehsil Khasrawad, District Khargone, 
Madhya Pradesh, India. The Company has its primary 
listing on the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange 
India Limited in India.

The Company is one of India’s largest vertically 
integrated textile companies, having multiple facilities 
to produce Grey Yarn, Dyed Yarn, Knitted Fabric and 
Garments. The manufacturing plants of the Company 
are located in India.

1.1. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements are the separate financial 
statement which are prepared in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), as prescribed 
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013(‘the 
Act’) (to the extent notified) read with the Rule 3 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 
as amended and relevant amendment rules issued 
thereafter. These Ind AS had been adopted w.e.f. 
1 April, 2017 as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 as amended

1.2.  Basis of preparation and presentation

The Financial Statements have been prepared on 
historical cost basis except for following that are 
measured at fair value:

 • Defined benefit plan-plan assets measured  
at fair value,

 • Certain financial assets and liabilities (including 
derivative instruments).

Historical cost is generally based on the fair 
value of the consideration given in exchange for 
goods and services.

1.3.  Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian 
Rupees, which is the functional currency of the 
Company and the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates. 

All values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs (C  00,000) 
except when otherwise indicated.

1.4. Disclosure of material accounting policy

During the year the company have evaluated the 
amendment of disclosing their material accounting 
policy in place of significant accounting policy and 
the impact of the amendment is insignificant to the 
company’s financial statement.

2. Accounting Policies:
2.1. Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current 

and Non-Current

Assets are classified as current when any of following 
criteria are satisfied:

i. it expects to realise the asset, or intends to sell 
or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;

ii. it holds the asset primarily for the 
purpose of trading;

iii. it expects to realise the asset within twelve 
months after the reporting period;

iv. The asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the 
asset is restricted from being exchanged or used 
to settle a liability for at least twelve months after 
the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current

Liabilities are classified as current when any of 
following criteria are satisfied:

i. expects to settle the liability in its normal 
operating cycle;

ii. it holds the liability primarily for the purpose  
of trading;

iii. the liability is due to be settled within twelve 
months after the reporting period; or

iv. It does not have an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that 
could, at the option of the counterparty, result in 
its settlement by the issue of equity instruments 
do not affect its classification.

 All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
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2.2. Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers for sale of 
goods or services is recognised when the Company 
satisfies performance obligation by transferring 
promised goods or services to the customer at an 
amount that reflects the consideration which the 
Company is expected to be entitled to in exchange for 
those goods or services.

 Sale of goods

Sale of goods: Revenue from sale of products is 
recognized when the control on the goods have 
been transferred to the customer. The performance 
obligation in case of sale of product is satisfied at a 
point in time i.e., when the material is shipped to the 
customer or on delivery to the customer, as may be 
specified in the contract.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the 
transaction price, which is adjusted for, net of returns 
and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates/
claims etc. Sales exclude Value added tax/sales tax / 
Service Tax / Goods & Service Tax

 Other Operating Income

Incentives on exports and other Government incentives 
related to operations are recognised in books after due 
consideration of certainty of utilization/receipt of such 
incentives. For Government grant refer Para 2.3.

 Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised 
using effective interest rate (EIR) method.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated 
future cash payments or receipts over the expected 
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, 
where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the 
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial 
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, 
the Company estimates the expected cash flows by 
considering all the contractual terms of the financial 
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call 
and similar options) but does not consider the expected 
credit losses. Interest income which are earned on 
temporary investment of borrowings are deducted 
from borrowing costs. Any other interest income is 
recognized as interest income in profit or loss.

 Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s 
right to receive the payment has been established, which 
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

2.3. Government Grant & Government Assistance

Government grants are not recognised until there is 
reasonable assurance that the Company will comply 
with the conditions attaching to them and that the 
grants will be received.

Government grant are recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss on a systematic basis over the periods in 
which the Company recognise as expenses the related 
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

The Capital Subsidy under Technology Up-gradation 
Fund Scheme (TUFS) Government on specified 
machinery and Duty saved under EPCG is recognized 
on a systematic and rational basis by adopting 
Deferred Income Approach. Such allocation to income 
is done prospectively over the remaining useful life 
of the respective assets and is adjusted against the 
depreciation in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Pending the utilization of the grant received, the same 
is presented as ‘Deferred Income’.

2.4. Inventories

Inventories including goods-in-transit are measured 
at lower of cost and estimated net realisable value. 
However, Raw materials and other items held for use 
in the production of inventories are not written down 
below cost if the finished products in which they will be 
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

 Raw materials, embellishment, stores & spares and 
packing material:

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Cost is determined on 
weighted average basis.

 Finished goods and work in progress:

Cost includes cost of direct materials (net of realizable 
value of waste / by product) and labour and a 
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the 
normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing 
costs and selling expenses.

 Traded goods:

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Cost is determined on 
weighted average basis.

 Waste:

Valued at Net realisable value. Net realisable value is 
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business, less estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.5. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

 Recognition and measurement:

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any.

The cost of Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 
comprises its purchase price including any import 
duties and non-refundable taxes and net of any trade 
discounts and rebates. It also includes any directly 
attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for 
its intended use, other incidental expenses, present 
value of decommissioning costs (where there is a 
legal or constructive obligation to decommission) and 
interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of 
qualifying assets up to the date the asset is ready for 
its intended use.

The company identifies and determines the cost of 
each component/ part of the asset separately, if the 
component / part has a cost which is significant to the 
total cost of asset and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of remaining assets.

Items of stores and spares that meet the definition 
of property, plant & equipment are capitalised at 
cost and depreciated over the useful life of asset. 
Otherwise such items are classified as inventories.

 Capital work-in-progress

Projects under which property, plant and equipment are 
not yet ready for their intended use are carried at cost 
less any recognised impairment loss. Cost comprises 
direct cost, related incidental expenses and borrowing 
cost. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis 
as other property assets, commences when the assets 
are ready for their intended use.

 Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised for Property, Plant and 
Equipment (PPE) so as to write-off the cost less 
residual values over their estimated useful lives. 
The estimated useful lives, residual values and 
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes 
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis 
taking into account commercial and technological 
obsolescence as well as normal wear and tear.

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight 
line method (SLM) over the useful life of the assets.

For following class of assets, based on technical 
evaluation by chartered engineer and internal 
assessment, the management has reassessed the 
useful lives as different from the useful lives indicated 
under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013. 
Management believes that the useful lives as given 
below, best represent the period over which these 
assets are expected to be used.

Asset Class Useful Life based on 
technical evaluation

Useful Life indicated under 
Part C of Schedule II

Building 5 to 60 years 3 to 60 years

Plant and Machinery (General) 9 years 2 months
(Triple shift)

15 years
(Single Shift)

Plant and Machinery (Spinning unit melange) 15 years
(Triple shift)

15 years
(Single Shift)

Plant and Machinery (Textile Made-ups) 9 years
(Single shift)

15 years
(Single shift)

Plant and Machinery (Power) 18 years 40 years
Vehicles 5 years 8 – 10 years
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Residual value in respect of vehicles, furniture’s, 
computers, provided under the company employee 
benefit scheme is considered in accordance with the 
said scheme and is higher than 5% of the original 
cost of the assets.

Depreciation commences when the assets are 
available for intended use and is being calculated 
on monthly basis.

Free hold land is not depreciated.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the 
primary period of lease.

 Impairment

Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that an asset may be impaired. If an impairment loss 
is determined, the remaining useful life of the asset is 
also subject to adjustment.

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost 
of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based 
on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to 
their present value using pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and risk specific to the assets.

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting 
period is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimate of recoverable amount.

 Derecognition of PPE

An item of property, plant and equipment and any 
significant part initially recognised is derecognized 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss 
arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as 

the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the Property, Plant and 
Equipment) is recognized in profit or loss when the 
Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized.

2.6. Biological Assets

Biological assets comprise of livestock.

Biological assets are measured at fair value less cost 
to sell. Changes in fair value of biological assets is 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

2.7. Intangible assets

 Recognition and measurement

An Intangible Assets is recognised when it is probable 
that the expected future economic benefits that are 
attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and the 
cost of the asset can be measured reliably. All other 
expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that 
are acquired separately are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

The cost of a separately acquired intangible asset 
comprises of its purchase price, including import 
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after 
deducting trade discounts and rebates; and any 
directly attributable cost of preparing the asset for 
its intended use.

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised 
development costs, are not capitalised and the related 
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in 
which the expenditure is incurred.

Goodwill acquired and/or arising upon business 
combinations initially recognized at cost and 
at subsequent period at cost less accumulated 
impairment loss, if any.

Asset Class Useful Life based on 
technical evaluation

Useful Life indicated under 
Part C of Schedule II

Depreciation rates considered in preparation of financial statement are as per schedule II of companies Act 2013
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Computers & Software 3 – 6 years

 Amortisation

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed 
as either finite or indefinite. The amortisation period 
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset 
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end 
of each reporting period. Changes in the expected 
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption 
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset 
are considered to modify the amortisation period or 
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes 
in accounting estimates.

 Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over 
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the intangible 
asset may be impaired. The amortisation expense on 
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure 
forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not 
amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, 
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

Asset Class Useful Life
Software 3 – 6 years

 Derecognition of Intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, 
or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from 
derecognition of an intangible asset, are determined 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised 
in Statement of profit or loss when the asset 
is derecognised.

2.8. Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies 
to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. 
Identification of a lease requires significant judgement. 
The Company uses significant judgement in assessing 
the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and 
the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the 
non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both 

periods covered by an option to extend the lease if 
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that 
option; and periods covered by an option to terminate 
the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not 
to exercise that option. In assessing whether the 
Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option 
to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to 
terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and 
circumstances that create an economic incentive 
for the Company to exercise the option to extend the 
lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the 
lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is 
a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental 
borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or 
for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

 (i) The Company as a lessee

 The Company’s lease asset classes primarily 
consist of leases for land and buildings. 
The Company assesses whether a contract 
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. 
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset for a period of time in exchange 
for consideration. To assess whether a contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

 • The contract involves the use of an 
identified asset

 • The Company has substantially all of the 
economic benefits from use of the asset 
through the period of the lease and

 • The Company has the right to direct the 
use of the asset.

 At the date of commencement of the lease, 
the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset 
(“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for 
all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, 
except for leases with a term of twelve months 
or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. 
For these short-term and low value leases, the 
Company recognizes the lease payments as an 
operating expense on a straight-line basis over 
the term of the lease.
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Certain lease arrangements includes the options to 
extend or terminate the lease before the end of the 
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes 
these options when it is reasonably certain that they 
will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at 
cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or 
prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any 
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are 
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the 
commencement date on a straight-line basis over 
the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the 
underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated 
for recoverability whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts 
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the 
fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is 
determined on an individual asset basis unless the 
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, 
the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash 
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized 
cost at the present value of the future lease payments. 
The lease payments are discounted using the interest 
rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, 
using the incremental borrowing rates in the country 
of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are 
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the 
related right of use asset if the Company changes its 
assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or 
a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately 
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments 
have been classified as financing cash flows.

(ii) The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified 
as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms 
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 

rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract 
is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are 
classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it 
accounts for its interests in the head lease and the 
sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a 
finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-
use asset arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a 
straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The practical expedient in paragraph 46A applies only 
to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence 
of the covid-19 pandemic and only if all of the 
following conditions are met:- (a) the change in lease 
payments results in revised consideration for the lease 
that is substantially the same as, or less than, the 
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the 
change; (b) any reduction in lease payments affects 
only payments originally due on or before the 30th June, 
2021 (for example, a rent concession would meet this 
condition if it results in reduced lease payments on 
or before the 30th June, 2021 and increased lease 
payments that extend beyond the 30th June, 2021); 
and (c) there is no substantive change to other terms 
and conditions of the lease.

2.9. Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are 
presented in INR.

 Transactions and balances

In preparing the financial statements, transactions 
in foreign currencies are recognised at the rates of 
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. 
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange 
transactions settled during the period are recognised 
in the Statement of profit and loss of the period.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items 
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at 
the rates prevailing at that date. Exchange differences 
on translation of monetary items are recognised in 
profit or loss in the period in which they arise with the 
exception of the following:

Monetary items that are designated as part of cash flow 
hedge instrument are recognised in OCI.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at 
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was 
determined. Non-monetary that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using 
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting

The Company uses derivative instruments i.e. 
forward contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. 
The Company designated these forward contracts as 
cash flow hedges to mitigate the risk of foreign exchange 
exposure on highly probable forecast cash transactions. 
The Company has designated forward instruments on spot 
to spot basis. The Company recognises the forward points 
in the statement of profit and loss.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity 
documents the relationship between the hedging instrument 
and the hedged item, along with its risk management 
objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge 
transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and 
on an ongoing basis, the Company documents whether the 
hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes 
in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable 
to the hedged risk.

Fair value hedges

Changes in fair value of the designated portion of derivatives 
that qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in profit or 
loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value 
of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the 
hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the designated 
portion of hedging instrument and the change in the hedged 
item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in profit 
or loss in the line item relating to hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging 
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or 
when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The fair 
value adjustment to carrying amount of the hedged item 
arising from the hedged risk is amortised to profit or loss 
from that date.

 Cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow 
hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes 
in the fair value of the derivatives recognised in 
other comprehensive income and accumulated 
in the cash flow hedging reserve. Any ineffective 
portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative 
is recognised immediately in the statement of profit 
or loss. If the hedging instrument no longer meets the 
criteria for hedge accounting, then hedge accounting 
is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging 
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, 
the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument 
recognised in cash flow hedging reserve till the period 
hedge was effective remains in cash flow hedging 
reserve until the forecasted transaction occurs. 
The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in 
the cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified to the 
profit or loss upon the occurrence of related forecasted 
transaction. If the forecasted transaction no longer 
expected to occur, then the amount accumulated in 
cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified to net profit 
in the statement of profit or loss.

2.10. Employee benefits

 Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits obligation is measured 
on undiscounted basis and are expensed as the 
related service is provided. A liability is recognised 
for the amount expected to be paid if the Company 
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay 
this amount as a result of past service provided by the 
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

 Defined Contribution Plan:

The Company makes defined contribution to 
employee’s provident fund organization, pension 
fund, superannuation fund and Employees state 
insurance (ESI), which are accounted on accrual 
basis as expenses in the statement of Profit and Loss 
in the period during which the related services are 
rendered by employees.

Prepaid contribution are recognized as an assets to 
the extent that a cash refund or reduction in future 
payments is available.
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Defined Benefit Plan:

The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement 
plan (‘the Gratuity Plan’) covering eligible employees of 
company The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment 
to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation 
or termination of employment, of an amount based on the 
respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment 
with the company.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined 
by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent 
actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected 
unit credit method.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount 
rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and 
fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee 
benefit expense in the profit or loss.

Re-measurement gain and loss arising from experience 
adjustments and change actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly 
in other comprehensive income. They are included in 
retained earnings in the statement of change in equity and 
in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation 
resulting from plan amendments and curtailments are 
recognised immediately in profit or loss as service cost.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term 
employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that 
employees have earned in return for their service in the 
current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to 
determine its present value and fair value of any related 
assets is deducted. The liability for other long-term 
employee benefits are provided based on actuarial 
valuation as at the Balance Sheet date, based on Projected 
Unit Credit Method, carried out by an independent actuary. 
Re-measurements are recognised in profit or loss in the 
period in which they arise.

If the benefits are not expected to be settled wholly 
within twelve months of the reporting date, then they are 
discounted to present value.

 Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense in 
the period in which they are incurred. The Company 
recognises a liability and expense for termination 
benefits at the earlier of the following dates:

(a) When the entity can no longer withdraw the offer 
of those benefits; and

(b) When the entity recognises costs for a 
restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37 
and involves the payment of termination benefits.

If the benefits are not expected to be settled wholly 
within twelve months of the reporting date, then they 
are discounted to present value.

2.11. Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax 
currently payable and deferred tax.

 Income Tax – Current & Deferred

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax 
payable on the current period’s taxable income based 
on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes 
in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to 
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability 
method on temporary differences arising between the 
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amount in the financial statement. Deferred income 
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have 
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of 
the reporting period and are expected to apply when 
the related deferred income tax assets is realised or 
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences and unused tax losses, only if, it 
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available 
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when 
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred 
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. 
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where 
the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset 

and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that 
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity, respectively

2.12. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent 
Assets

Provisions are recognised for present obligation (legal 
or constructive) of certain timing or amount arising as 
a result of past event where a reliable estimate can be 
made and it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation.

When it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required or the 
amount cannot be estimated reliably the obligation 
is disclosed as a contingent liability unless the 
possibility of outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefit is remote.

Possible obligations, whose existence will only be 
confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events, not wholly 
with in the control of entity are also disclosed as 
contingent liabilities.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are 
disclosed in notes.

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when 
the realization of income is virtually certain, then the 
related asset is no longer a contingent asset, but it is 
recognised as an asset.

2.13. Segment reporting

The Company’s operating segments are established 
on the basis of those components of the company 
that are evaluated regularly by the Board of Directors 
(the ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ as defined in 
Ind AS 108 - ‘Operating Segments’), in deciding how 
to allocate resources and in assessing performance. 
Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or 

loss and is measured consistently with the profit or 
loss in the financial statements.

The Operating Segments have been identified on the 
basis of the nature of products/services.

a) Segment revenue includes sales and other 
income directly identifiable with/allocable to the 
segment including inter segment revenue.

b) Expenses that are directly identifiable with/
allocable to segments are considered 
for determining the segment results. 
Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole 
and not allocable to segments are included under 
unallocable expenditure.

c) Income which relates to the Company as a whole 
and not allocable to segments are included under 
unallocable income.

d) Segment result includes margin on inter segment 
sales which are reduced in arriving at the profit 
before tax of the Company.

e) Segment assets & liabilities include those 
directly identifiable with the respective segments. 
Unallocable assets & liabilities represent the 
assets and liabilities that relate to the Company 
as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

 Inter-Segment transfer pricing

Segment revenue resulting from transactions with 
other business segments is accounted on the basis 
of transfer price agreed between the segments. 
Such transfer prices are either determined to yield a 
desired margin or agreed on a negotiated basis and 
are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to 
transactions with third parties.

2.14. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the 
net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period. The weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for 
events, such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights 
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issue and shares split that have changed the number 
of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding 
change in resources. For the purpose of calculating 
Diluted Earnings per share, the net profit or loss for 
the period attributable to the equity shareholders and 
the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.

2.15. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, 
whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects 
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or 
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or 
payments and item of income or expenses associated 
with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows 
from operating, investing and financing activities of the 
Company are segregated. The Company considers all 
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

2.16. Borrowing

Borrowings are initially recognised at net of 
transaction costs incurred and measured at amortised 
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of 
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over 
the period of the borrowings using the effective 
interest method.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable 
on a specific date are classified as liabilities. 
The dividend on these preference shares is recognised 
in Statement of Profit and Loss as finance costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of qualifying assets, which 
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period 
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are 
added to the cost of the assets, until such time as 
the assets are substantially ready for their intended 
use or sale. Borrowing costs consist of interest and 
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with 
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes 
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an 
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in Statement 
of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.17. Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such 
as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The fair value measurement is 
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell 
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

 • In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

 • In the absence of a principal market, in most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability and 
the Company has access to the principal or the 
most advantageous market.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured 
using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset 
takes into account a market participant’s ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in 
its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market participant that would use the asset in its 
highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is 
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described 
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the 
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between 
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of 
each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company 
has determined classes of assets & liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and the risks of 
the asset or liability and the level of the fair value 
hierarchy as explained above. This note summarizes 
accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related 
disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

2.18. Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial 
instruments, which are readily convertible into known 
amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant 
risk of change in value and having original maturities 
of three months or less from the date of purchase, 
to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents 
consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted 
for withdrawal and usage.

For the purposes of the presentation of cash flow 
statement, cash and cash equivalents include 
cash on hand, in banks and demand deposits with 
banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand, book overdraft as they being 
considered as integral part of the Company’s cash 
management system.

2.19. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 
or equity instrument of another entity.

A. Financial assets

 Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets and liabilities are initially 
measured at fair value except for trade receivables 
which are initially measured at transaction price. 
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 
liabilities, which are not classified as subsequently 
measured at fair value through profit or loss, are 
adjusted to the fair value on initial measurement.

 Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial 
assets are classified in following categories:

 a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

 A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if 
it is held within a business model whose objective 
is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual 
cash flows and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b) Financial assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

 A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is 
held within a business model whose objective 
is achieved by both collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding. Interest income 
for these financial assets is included in other 
income using the effective interest rate method.

c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVTPL)

 A financial asset which is not classified in any of 
the above categories are measured at FVTPL.

B. Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are 
measured at fair value. Where the company decided to 
make an irrevocable election to present the fair value 
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gain and loss (excluding dividend) on non-current 
equity investments in other comprehensive income, 
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gain 
and loss to profit and loss even on sale of investments. 
However, the group may transfer the cumulative gain 
or loss within equity. The group makes such election 
on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

The company elected to measure the investment in 
subsidiary, associate and joint venture at cost.

C. Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses on a forward- looking basis 
the expected credit losses associated with the 
assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt 
instruments. The impairment methodology applied 
depends on whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk. If credit risk has increased 
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent 
period, credit quality of the instrument improves such 
that there is no longer a significant increase in credit 
risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts 
to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 
12-month Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Note No.41.6 
details how the group determines whether there has 
been significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the company applies the 
simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 
“Financial Instruments” which requires expected life 
time losses to be recognised from initial recognition 
of receivables. The Company uses historical default 
rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio 
of trade receivables. At every reporting date these 
historical default rates are reviewed and changes in 
the forward looking estimates are analysed

D. Financial liabilities

 Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value 
and in case of loans, net of directly attributable cost. 
Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost.

 Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using 
the effective interest method. For trade and other 

payables maturing within one year from the balance 
sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair 
value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

E. Derecognition of financial instruments:

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the 
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the 
transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. 
A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) 
is derecognized from the Company’s Balance Sheet 
when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged or cancelled or expires.

F. Reclassification of financial assets

The company determines classification of financial 
assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial 
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial 
assets which are equity instruments and financial 
liabilities. For financial assets which are debt 
instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is 
a change in the business model for managing those 
assets. Changes to the business model are expected 
to be infrequent. The company’s senior management 
determines change in the business model as a result 
of external or internal changes which are significant 
to the company’s operations. Such changes are 
evident to external parties. A change in the business 
model occurs when the company either begins or 
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to 
its operations. If the company reclassifies financial 
assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively 
from the reclassification date which is the first day 
of the immediately next reporting period following 
the change in business model. The company does 
not restate any previously recognised gains, losses 
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

G. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset 
and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet 
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset 
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously.

2.20. Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statement in 
conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to 
make estimates and assumptions considered in the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including 
contingent liabilities) and the reported income and 
expenses during the year. The Management believes 
that the estimates used in preparation of the financial 
statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results 
could differ due to these estimates and the differences 
between the actual results and the estimates are 
recognised in the periods in which the results are 
known / materialize.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimates are revised and current and / or future 
periods are affected.

 Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other 
post-employment medical benefits and the present 
value of the gratuity obligation are determined using 
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves 
making various assumptions that may differ from 
actual developments in the future. These include 
the determination of the discount rate, future salary 
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities 
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, 
a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to 
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are 
reviewed at each reporting date. (Refer note 2.10)

 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial 
liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be 
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, 
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques 
including the DCF model. The inputs to these models 
are taken from observable markets where possible, but 
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is 
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include 
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit 
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about 
these factors could affect the reported fair value of 
financial instruments. (Refer note 2.17)

2.21. Critical accounting judgements and key sources 
of estimation uncertainty

The Preparation of the Company’s financial statements 
requires management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the 
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of 
contingent liabilities.

2.21.1. Critical accounting judgements in applying 
accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from 
those involving estimations that the Management 
have made in the process of applying the 
Company’s accounting policies and that have most 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements.

 Valuation of Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent 
it is considered probable that those assets will be 
recoverable. This involves an assessment of when 
those deferred tax assets are likely to reverse and a 
judgment as to whether or not there will be sufficient 
taxable profits available to offset the tax assets when 
they do reverse. The Company reviews the carrying 
amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each 
reporting period. Any change in the estimates of 
future taxable income may impact the recoverability 
of deferred tax assets (Refer note 2.11.).

 Key Source of estimation uncertainty

Key source of estimation uncertainty at the date of 
the financial statements, which may cause a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect 
of impairment of investments, provisions and 
contingent liabilities.

 The areas involving critical estimates are:

 Useful lives and residual values of property, plant 
and equipment

Useful life and residual value of property, plant and 
equipment are based on management’s estimate of 
the expected life and residual value of those assets. 
These estimates are reviewed at the end of each 
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reporting period. Any reassessment of these may 
result in change in depreciation expense for future 
years (Refer note no 2.5).

 Impairment of Property Plant and Equipment

The recoverable amount of the assets has been 
determined on the basis of their value in use. 
For estimating the value in use it is necessary to project 
the future cash flow of assets over its estimated useful 
life. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying 
amount, the impairment loss is accounted for in 
statement of profit or loss. (Refer note no 2.5).

 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period 
when it becomes probable that there will be a future 
outflow of funds resulting from past operations or 
events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably 
estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification 
of the liability requires the application of judgement 
to existing facts and circumstances, which can be 
subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions 
and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to 
take account of changing facts and circumstances.

Note 3(i): Property, plant and equipment (PPE) consists of: (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Net Carrying Cost of :
Property, plant and equipment
  Land freehold 42.43 42.43
  Buildings 5,924.64 5,493.32
  Leasehold improvement 170.72 151.05
  Plant & equipment 23,570.85 23,216.06
  Office equipment 119.80 142.52
  Furniture and fixtures 347.53 316.08
  Vehicles 353.56 278.35
Sub-total (A) 30,529.53 29,639.81
Capital work-in-progress
 Projects in progress 121.49 921.27
Sub-total (B) 121.49 921.27
Right of use assets
 Right of use assets 3,033.68 4,846.06
Sub-total (C) 3,033.68 4,846.06
Total (A+B+C) 33,684.70 35,407.14

(D in Lakh)

Particulars Land 
freehold Buildings Leasehold 

improvement
Plant & 

equipment
Office 

equipment

Furniture 
and 

fixtures
Vehicles Total

Cost as at 1st April 2024 42.43 6,961.91 298.27 36,821.31 326.81 470.47 565.26 45,486.46
Additions - 715.28 - 3,363.31 21.79 76.98 176.99 4,354.35
Disposals - - (0.69) (127.41) (7.14) (0.73) (49.19) (185.16)

Cost as at 31st March 
2025 42.43 7,677.19 297.58 40,057.21 341.46 546.72 693.06 49,655.65

Accumulated depreciation 
as at 1st April 2024 - 1,468.59 86.34 13,666.13 184.30 154.39 286.91 15,846.65

Depreciation - 283.96 41.21 2,908.94 43.64 45.16 92.09 3,415.00
Disposals - - (0.69) (88.71) (6.28) (0.36) (39.50) (135.53)

Accumulated depreciation 
as at 31st March 2025 - 1,752.55 126.86 16,486.36 221.66 199.19 339.50 19,126.12

Net Carrying amount as at 
31st March 2025 42.43 5,924.64 170.72 23,570.85 119.80 347.53 353.56 30,529.53
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(D in Lakh)

Particulars Land 
freehold Buildings Leasehold 

improvement
Plant & 

equipment
Office 

equipment

Furniture 
and 

fixtures
Vehicles Total

Cost as at 1st April 2023 42.43 3,982.01 190.81 23,713.62 341.60 463.52 465.31 29,199.30
Additions - 2,982.11 64.17 13,349.39 17.04 48.75 153.64 16,615.10
Disposals - (2.21) (37.34) (161.07) (31.83) (41.80) (53.69) (327.94)

Cost as at 31st March 
2024 42.43 6961.91 217.64 36901.94 326.81 470.47 565.26 45,486.46

Accumulated depreciation 
as at 1st April 2023 - 1,287.74 53.09 11,300.39 168.82 141.54 243.85 13,195.41

Depreciation - 181.23 43.21 2,511.65 41.61 42.92 85.40 2,906.02
Disposals - (0.38) (29.71) (126.16) (26.13) (30.06) (42.34) (254.78)

Accumulated depreciation 
as at 31st March 2024 - 1,468.59 66.59 13,685.88 184.30 154.39 286.91 15,846.65

Net Carrying amount as at 
31st March 2024 42.43 5,493.32 151.05 23,216.06 142.52 316.08 278.35 29,639.81

Notes:

1. Assets are mortgaged/hypothecated against secured credit facilities availed from banks & financial institutions 
(refer note no. 18)

2. The Company has opted to continue with carrying value of all of its Property, plant and equipment as deemed cost 
and net carrying value under previous GAAP is recognised as gross carrying amount in Ind AS, on transition date 
i.e. 1st April 2016

3. Buildings include certain portion given on operating lease. It is not practical to give separate disclosure of gross 
block, depreciation charge for the year, accumulated depreciation and net block in respect of the same.

4. During the year cables, electrical & png fitting items amounting to C 80.63 Lakh (gross value) and C 19.75 Lakh 
(accumulated depreciation), extracted/carved out of plant & machinery and affixed with leasehold improvement.

5. Refer Note No 38 for the contractual commitment for the acquisitions of PPE.

Note 3(ii): Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) consists of:

Capital work-in-progress as at 31st March 2025 (D in Lakh)

Particulars
Amount in CWIP for a period of

Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years

Projects in progress 121.49 - - - 121.49
Total 121.49 - - - 121.49

Capital work-in-progress as at 31st March 2024 (D in Lakh)

Particulars
Amount in CWIP for a period of

Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years

Projects in progress 921.27 - - - 921.27
Total 921.27 - - - 921.27

Note 3(iii): Right of use assets (ROU) consists of: (D in Lakh)

Particulars Right of use assets Total
Cost as at 1st April 2024 7,018.77 7,018.77

Additions 56.82 56.82
Disposals (1,355.46) (1,355.46)

Cost as at 31st March 2025 5,720.13 5,720.13
Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April 2024 2,172.71 2,172.71

Depreciation 513.74 513.74
Disposals - -

Accumulated depreciation as at 31st March 2025 2,686.45 2,686.45
Net Carrying amount as at 31st March 2025 3,033.68 3,033.68

(D in Lakh)

Particulars Right of use assets Total
Cost as at 1st April 2023 5,613.61 5,613.61

Additions 1,466.71 1,466.71
Disposals (61.55) (61.55)

Cost as at 31st March 2024 7,018.77 7,018.77
Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April 2023 1,471.90 1,471.90

Depreciation 700.81 700.81
Disposals - -

Accumulated depreciation as at 31st March 2024 2,172.71 2,172.71
Net Carrying amount as at 31st March 2024 4,846.06 4,846.06

Notes:

1.Refer Note No 24 for right of use assets.

Note 4: Other Intangible Assets consists of: (D in Lakh)

Particulars Software Total
Cost as at 1st April 2024 614.84 614.84

Additions 29.98 29.98
Disposals (10.35) (10.35)

Cost as at 31st March 2025 634.47 634.47
Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April 2024 525.94 525.94

Depreciation 37.74 37.74
Disposals (10.35) (10.35)

Accumulated depreciation as at 31st March 2025 553.33 553.33
Net Carrying amount as at 31st March 2025 81.14 81.14
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(D in Lakh)

Particulars Software Total
Cost as at 1st April 2023 610.00 610.00

Additions 5.81 5.81
Disposals (0.97) (0.97)

Cost as at 31st March 2024 614.84 614.84
Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April 2023 453.18 453.18

Depreciation 73.57 73.57
Disposals (0.81) (0.81)

Accumulated depreciation as at 31st March 2024 525.94 525.94
Net Carrying amount as at 31st March 2024 88.90 88.90

Note 5: Biological Assets consists of: (D in Lakh)

Particulars Biological assets Total
Cost as at 1st April 2024 6.94 6.94

Additions 0.03 0.03
Disposals (0.24) (0.24)

Cost as at 31st March 2025 6.73 6.73
Net Carrying amount as at 31st March 2025 6.73 6.73

(D in Lakh)

Particulars Biological assets Total
Cost as at 1st April 2023 7.56 7.56

Additions 1.52 1.52
Disposals (2.14) (2.14)

Cost as at 31st March 2024 6.94 6.94
Net Carrying amount as at 31st March 2024 6.94 6.94

Note 6: Deferred tax assets /(liabilities)  (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Deferred tax assets 2,912.46 2,167.86
Deferred tax liabilities (3,247.07) (2,593.81)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)-Net (334.61) (425.95)

Movement in Deferred tax assets (D in Lakh)

FY 2024-25 Opening 
Balance

Recognised in 
Statement of 

profit and loss

Recognised in other 
comprehensive 

income
Closing Balance

Deferred tax assets in relation to:
Provision for employee benefits 317.14 (2.61) (22.94) 291.59
Income on ITR revised u/s 153 A for earlier years 526.23 - - 526.23
Lease liabilities 1,304.06 (457.80) - 846.26
Redeemable cumulative Preference share - - - -
Deferred Government grant - 850.81 - 850.81
Capital subsidy - 313.00 - 313.00
Others 20.43 64.14 - 84.57
Total 2,167.86 767.54 (22.94) 2,912.46

(D in Lakh)

FY 2023-24 Opening 
Balance

Recognised in 
Statement of 

profit and loss

Recognised in other 
comprehensive 

income
Closing Balance

Deferred tax assets in relation to:
Provision for employee benefits 292.24 24.90 - 317.14
Income on ITR revised u/s 153 A for earlier years 526.23 - - 526.23
Lease liabilities 1,067.65 236.41 - 1,304.06
Redeemable cumulative Preference share 1.27 (1.27) - -
Deferred Government grant - - - -
Capital subsidy - - - -
Others 154.08 (151.69) 18.04 20.43
Total 2,041.47 108.35 18.04 2,167.86

Movement in Deferred tax liabilities (D in Lakh)

FY 2024-25 Opening 
Balance

Recognised in 
Statement of 

profit and loss

Recognised in other 
comprehensive 

income
Closing Balance

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to:
Property, plant & equipment 1,329.77 1,106.02 - 2,435.79
Right of use Assets (ROU) 1,125.77 (362.25) - 763.52
Redeemable cumulative Preference share capital - - - -
Investment - 27.32 27.32
Cash flow hedge reserve & others 19.23 (27.96) 29.17 20.44
Borrowings at amortised cost - - - -
Provision for employee benefits 119.04 (119.04) - -
Total 2,593.81 624.09 29.17 3,247.07
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(D in Lakh)

FY 2023-24 Opening 
Balance

Recognised in 
Statement of 

profit and loss

Recognised in other 
comprehensive 

income
Closing Balance

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
Property, plant & equipment 1,207.04 122.73 - 1,329.77
Right of Use assets (ROU) 995.18 130.59 - 1,125.77
Redeemable cumulative Preference share capital 9.27 (9.27) - -
Cash flow hedge reserve & others 19.23 - 19.23
Borrowings at amortised cost 5.88 (5.88) - -
Provision for employee benefits 92.24 - 26.80 119.04
Total 2,328.85 238.17 26.80 2,593.81

Note 7: Loans (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Non- Current
Loans recoverable from employees considered good - Unsecured 34.69 44.76
Total 34.69 44.76
Current
Loans recoverable from employees considered good - Unsecured 71.81 99.82
Total 71.81 99.82

Note 8: Other financial assets (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Non- Current
Capital Subsidy receivable* 2,368.86 2,993.75
Security deposits 37.69 102.53
Total 2,406.55 3,096.28
Current
Capital Subsidy receivable* 2,050.69 1,764.58
Others 72.58 69.68
Security deposits 46.26 -
Forward Contract profit receivable (net)** (Refer Note No. 41.3.1) 174.28 10.53
Total 2,343.81 1,844.79

* During the Year 2023-24, Capital Subsidy was recognised towards the M.P. State Govt. capital subsidy scheme for eligible capital 
investment in plant & machinery, electric installation and factory building.

** Receivable from forward contract on hedging of foreign currency- as on 31st March 2025 C174.28 Lakh (C 10.53 Lakh as on 31st March 2024)

Note 9: Other assets (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Non- Current
Security and earnest money deposits 1,062.77 792.66
Prepaid expenses 6.16 10.38
Income tax refundable (Refer Note (i) Below) 158.42 158.42
Total 1,227.35 961.46
Current
Balances with government authorities -
GST receivable 2,528.48 2,452.20
Excise duty receivable 2.83 3.11
VAT and Sales tax receivable 6.71 6.71
Advance to vendors
Advances for capital goods 204.61 530.00
Advance other than capital goods 613.09 881.94
Less: Provision for doubtful advances - -
Others
Interest subsidy receivable under Technology upgradation fund scheme 
(TUFS)

119.23 119.24

Interest subsidy receivable under M.P. State Subsidy Scheme 670.87 227.59
Electricity subsidy receivable 239.00 -
Export incentives receivable 555.52 385.37
Prepaid expenses 267.21 258.78
Security Deposits 9.27 -
Advance to employees 3.03 21.23
Total 5,219.85 4,886.17

Note: (i) Income tax refundable represents amounts recoverable from Income Tax Department for various assessment 
years. In respect of disputed demands, company has filed appeals which are pending at various levels and for assessment 
years where the issues have been decided in favour of the company and company is in the process of reconciling / 
adjusting the same with the Income Tax Department. Necessary value if any, adjustments shall be made on final settlement 
by Income Tax Department.

Note 10: Inventories (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Raw materials 4,560.65 8,017.33
Work - in - progress 2,786.95 3,004.24
Finished goods 5,832.02 5,090.69
Stores & spares 148.05 133.05
Waste 56.26 91.82
Fuel and others 204.06 60.89
Total 13,587.99 16,398.02
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Note 11: Investments (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Current
Investments in fully paid equity instruments at FVTPL
Quoted Equity shares
State Bank of India 117.11 114.21
15,180 (PY 15,180) shares of C 1 /- each fully paid up
Total 117.11 114.21
Aggregate book value of Quoted investments 117.11 114.21
Aggregate market value of Quoted investments 117.11 114.21

Note 12: Trade receivables (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Current
(a)  Trade receivables - Unsecured
   Trade receivables considered good 13,885.52 12,096.64
   Trade receivables considered doubtful 336.05 408.57
Total 14,221.57 12,505.21
(b)  Trade receivables - credit impaired
  Less- Allowances for credit losses (336.05) (408.57)
Total 13,885.52 12,096.64

Note 12 (i): Trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March 2025  (D in Lakh)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not due Less than 6 
Months

6 Months to
1 Year

1 Year to
2 Year

2 Year to
3 Year

More than 3 
Years Total

(i)  Undisputed Trade receivables
 – considered good 11,225.54 2,597.66 62.32 - - - 13,885.52

(ii)  Undisputed Trade receivables
 – which have significant 

increase in credit risk
- - - - - - -

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables
 – credit impaired - 1.08 15.05 9.89 0.27 - 26.30

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables
 – considered good - - - - - - -

(v) Disputed Trade receivables
 – which have significant 

increase in credit risk
- - - - - - -

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables
 – credit impaired - 0.93 0.63 2.60 1.15 304.46 309.75

Total 11,225.54 2,599.67 78.00 12.49 1.41 304.46 14,221.57
Less:- Allowance for Doubtful trade receivables 336.05
Trade receivables 13,885.52

Note 12 (i): Trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March 2024 (D in Lakh)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not due Less than 6 
Months

6 Months to
1 Year

1 Year to
2 Year

2 Year to
3 Year

More than 3 
Years Total

(i)  Undisputed Trade receivables
 – considered good 9,023.79 2,325.87 0.46 - 736.46 2.78 12,089.36

(ii)  Undisputed Trade receivables
 – which have significant 

increase in credit risk
- - - - - - -

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables
 – credit impaired - 7.95 30.04 - - - 37.99

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables
 – considered good - - - - - - -

(v) Disputed Trade receivables
 – which have significant 

increase in credit risk
- - - - - - -

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables
 – credit impaired - 0.70 3.87 35.66 57.80 279.83 377.86

Total 9,023.79 2,334.52 34.37 35.66 794.26 282.61 12,505.21
Less:- Allowance for Doubtful trade receivables 408.57
Trade receivables 12,096.64

Note 13: Cash and cash equivalents (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Balances with banks
in current accounts 10.71 45.19

Cheques on hand 3.12 0.13
Cash on hand 7.73 13.05
Total 21.56 58.37

Note 14: Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Current
Fixed Deposit receipt (FDR) held as Margin Money* 437.95 427.36
Unpaid/Unclaimed Dividend in designated bank account 12.43 12.89
Total 450.38 440.25

* FDR towards margin for issuance of Letter of Credit, Bank Guarantee and towards Debt Service Retention Account(DSRA) held 
as margin money.
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Note 15: Current tax assets Net of Current tax liabilities (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Current tax assets
Advance tax - 100.00
Tax deducted at source 69.17 117.29
Tax collected at source 4.47 9.50

73.64 226.79
Less: Provision for tax - -
Total 73.64 226.79

Note 16: Share capital (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Authorised Share Capital
4,40,00,000 (PY 4,40,00,000) Equity Shares of C 10/- each 4,400.00 4,400.00
31,00,000 (PY 31,00,000) Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of 
C 100/- each

3,100.00 3,100.00

Total 7,500.00 7,500.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
4,15,08,000 (PY 4,15,08,000) fully paid up Equity Shares of C 10 /- each 4,150.80 4,150.80
Total 4,150.80 4,150.80

(i) Reconciliation of number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year (D in Lakh)

Particulars
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,15,08,000 4,150.80 4,15,08,000 4,150.80
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 4,15,08,000 4,150.80 4,15,08,000 4,150.80

(ii) Rights, Preferences and restriction attached to equity shares 

Company has only one class of Equity shares having a face value of C 10/-. Each holder of Equity shares is entitled to one 
vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors 
is subject to approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The holder of equity shares is entitled to 
receive dividend only after distribution of dividend to the holders of Preference Shares, if any.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of shares held 
by the equity shareholders.

(iii) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares:

Particulars
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Number of shares % Holding Number of shares % Holding
Agarwal Trademart Private Limited 1,97,60,000 47.61% 1,97,60,000 47.61%
Agarwal Finestate Private Limited 73,96,056 17.82% 73,96,056 17.82%
Total 2,71,56,056 65.43% 2,71,56,056 65.43%

(iv) Shares held by promoters/Promoter Group at the end of year

Name
As at 31st March 2025 (%) Change 

during the 
year*

As at 31st March 2024 (%) Change 
during the 

year*
Number of 

Shares
(%) of total 

shares*
Number of 

Shares
(%) of total 

shares*
Sh. Shekhar Agarwal 7,55,573 1.82% - 7,55,573 1.82% -
Sh. Shantanu Agarwal 5,54,500 1.34% - 5,54,500 1.34% -
Smt. Shashi Agarwal 10,37,600 2.50% - 10,37,600 2.50% -
Smt. Shuchi Poddar 56,100 0.14% - 56,100 0.14% -
Shekhar Agarwal HUF 4,03,800 0.97% - 4,03,800 0.97% -
Shantanu Agarwal HUF 2,750 0.01% - 2,750 0.01% -
Shekhar Agarwal-Trust 2,750 0.01% - 2,750 0.01% -
Smt. Alka Agarwal 4,200 0.01% - 4,200 0.01% -
Agarwal Trademart Private Limited 1,97,60,000 47.61% - 1,97,60,000 47.61% -
Agarwal Finestate Private Limited 73,96,056 17.82% - 73,96,056 17.82% -
Diplomat Leasing And Finance Private 
Limited

11,35,500 2.74% - 11,35,500 2.74% -

SSSA Family Private Limited (Trustee of 
Shekhar Agarwal Family Pvt. Trust)

100 0.00% - 100 0.00% -

SSSA Family Private Limited (Trustee of 
Shashi Agarwal Family Pvt. Trust)

100 0.00% - 100 0.00% -

SSSA Family Private Limited (Trustee of 
Shantanu Agarwal Family Pvt. Trust)

100 0.00% - 100 0.00% -

SSSA Family Private Limited (Trustee of 
Shuchi Agarwal Family Pvt. Trust)

100 0.00% - 100 0.00% -

Total 3,11,09,229 74.95% 3,11,09,229 74.95%

*Shareholding and change in shareholding in % is rounded off to the nearest figure.

Note 17: Other equity (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Retained earnings (1,121.61) 1,229.96
General reserve 10.16 10.16
Securities premium reserve 2,590.07 2,590.07
Preference share capital redemption reserve 5,085.40 5,085.40
Capital reserve 113.47 113.47
Cash flow hedge reserve 60.77 (25.95)
Total 6,738.26 9,003.11
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Note 17.1 Retained earnings (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Balance at the beginning of year 1,229.96 2,120.96
Profit/Loss for the year (2,419.77) (976.35)
Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement of defined 
benefit obligation net of income tax

68.20 85.35

Balance at the end of the year (1,121.61) 1,229.96

Note 17.2 General reserve (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Balance at the beginning of year 10.16 10.16
Balance at the end of year 10.16 10.16

Note 17.3 Securities premium reserve (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Balance at the beginning of year 2,590.07 2,590.07
Balance at the end of year 2,590.07 2,590.07

Note 17.4 Preference share capital redemption reserve (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Balance at the beginning of year 5,085.40 5,085.40
Balance at the end of year 5,085.40 5,085.40

Note 17.5 Capital reserve (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Balance at the beginning of year 113.47 113.47
Balance at the end of year 113.47 113.47

Note 17.6 Cash flow hedge reserve (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Balance at the beginning of year (25.95) 27.69
Other comprehensive income arising from cash flow hedge net of income tax 86.72 (53.64)

Balance at the end of year 60.77 (25.95)

Note 17.7 Nature and Purpose of Reserves 

Retained earnings

This reserve represents undistributed accumulated earnings of the Company as on the balance sheet date.

General reserve

This represents appropriation of profit after tax by the company.

Securities premium reserve

Amount received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been classified as securities premium. The reserve is 
utilised in accordance with the provision of the companies Act, 2013.

Preference share capital redemption reserve

Preference Share Capital Redemption reserve is created against the redemption of Cumulative Preference Shares.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve arises from erstwhile amalgamation of Asian Knitwear's Limited with the Company.

Cash flow hedge reserve

This reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of changes in Fair Value of derivatives that are designated as 
Cash Flow Hedges. It will be reclassified to profit or loss or included in the carrying amount of the non-financial asset in 
accordance with the Company's accounting policy.

Note 18: Borrowings (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Non-Current
Secured - at amortised cost
  Term loans from banks { Refer Note: 18 (i) and 18(ii) } 15,439.68 16,253.28
  Term loans from financial institutions { Refer Note: 18 (i) and 18(ii) } 1,120.25 1,875.42
  Interest accrued but not due on borrowings shown separately  

 { Refer Note no 19 (ii) }
51.04 67.73

Total Secured - at amortised cost 16,610.97 18,196.43
  Interest accrued but not due on borrowings- shown separately  

 { Refer Note no 19 (ii) }
(51.04) (67.73)

16,559.93 18,128.70
 Less: Current maturities of Long term debt 3,871.36 3,614.01
Total Non current secured - at amortised cost  A 12,688.57 14,514.69
Unsecured
 Unsecured loan from related party 2,000.00 1,000.00
Total Non current unsecured B 2,000.00 1,000.00
Total (A+B) 14,688.57 15,514.69
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Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Current
Secured

Working capital loan from banks repayable on demand  
{ Refer Note: 18 (viii) }

Cash Credit facilities from Banks 11,704.90 12,014.04
Export Credit facilities from Banks ( in Indian Rupees ) 8,786.68 8,320.69
Export Credit facilities from Banks ( in Foreign currency) 19.41 -
Current maturities of Long term debt 3,871.36 3,614.01
Foreign Bill Purchase (FBP) Bill Discounting 902.66 155.94

Unsecured
Bill discounting facility for MSME vendors through RXIL 1,579.31 2,804.99

Total 26,864.32 26,909.67

Summary of borrowing arrangements    

(i) Term loans from lenders viz banks & financial institutions are secured by mortgage and first charge shared amongst 
the lenders on pari passu basis over fixed assets of the company (movable & immovable) and collateraly secured 
by second charge shared amongst the lenders on pari passu basis over current assets of the company. During the 
financial year 2020-21 pursuant to notification DOR.No.BP.BC.47/21.04.048/2019-20 dated March 27, 2020 company 
had availed the extension in repayment of term loan installment including Interest.

(ii) Maturity Profile & Interest rate of Secured loans & Unsecured loans (D in Lakh)

Particulars Maturity Interest As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Secured Loans
Term loans from banks

Project term loans 2029 to 2033 MCLR+ 1% to 
1.70% 13,523.30 13,169.27

Covid Loan from banks under ECLGS 1, 2 & 2 
(extension) 2026 to 2029 MCLR+ 0.50% to 

1.00 % 1,916.38 3,084.01

Term loans from financial institutions
Project term loans 2025 to 2026 MCLR +1.30% 586.67 1,173.34
Covid Loan from financial institutions under 
ECLGS 1, 2 2025 to 2029 MCLR +1.00% 533.58 702.08

Total Secured Loans 16,559.93 18,128.70
Unsecured loan from related party 2029 to 2031 MCLR+ 0.40% 2,000.00 1,000.00

(iii) All secured loans are repayable in quarterly installments except ECLGS 1, 2 and 2 (extention) which are repayable on 
monthly installments basis.

(iv) Unsecured loan from related party, carries a rate of interest of 9.25% per annum on mutually agreed terms between 
both the parties, repayable in 6 years by way of twelve(12) equal quarterly installments after a moratorium period of 
3 years (previous year loan is repayable in 5 years by way of eight (8) equal quarterly installments after a moratorium 
period of 3 years).     

(D in Lakh) (v) Some of the lenders follow the practice to recover suo motto, payment of both principal as well as interest repayable 
on credit facilities from the working capital facilities availed by the company, under instructions from the Company. It is 
regarded as accepted practice that the due date for payment shall be the date next following the date when interest 
is charged. Any delay on part of the lender to recover payment, either in line with past practice or specific instructions 
given in this regard by the Company, is not attributable to default on part of the Company Accordingly, there is no 
default in repayment of the principal and interest repayable on credit facilities.

(vi) Working capital loan from banks, repayable on demand, are secured by way of hypothecation through first charge, 
ranking pari-passu, on stocks of raw material, stock in process, finished goods, book debts / receivables and all current 
assets stored in the company’s factory premises, at all plants and / or elsewhere including those in transit covered by 
documents of title thereto, local and export usance bills and second charge on pari-passu basis on the entire movable 
and immovable assets of the Company (fixed assets), both present and future.

(vii) Working capital facilities from banks, are secured by pledge of stipulated promoter's equity shareholding, constituting 
36% of the issued equity capital, in favour of lenders on pari-passu basis.

(viii) Due to Covid-19 pandemic, Govt. notified the scheme of ECLGS 1, 2 & 2 (extension) to mitigate the working capital 
crisis and as per scheme, during the year company have been sanctioned and received a Loan of C  NIL. (previous year 
C 337.00 Lakh )

Note 19 (i): Financial liabilities (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Non-Current
Lease liabilities (refer note 24) 2,964.22 4,733.99

Total 2,964.22 4,733.99
Current

Lease liabilities (refer note 24) 398.22 447.42
Total 398.22 447.42

Note 19 (ii): Other financial liabilities (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Non-Current
Security deposits from employees 34.31 19.97

Total 34.31 19.97
Current

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 51.04 67.73
Other liabilities for expenses 1,667.71 1,678.87
Employee related liabilities 2,011.38 1,446.69
Security deposits-employees 90.38 72.60
Security deposits-others 67.59 268.18
Retention money from Vendors/Suppliers 255.56 218.32
Payable to vendors of Capital goods - -
Rebates & claims 52.85 313.06
Other payables 15.69 15.27
Forward contracts loss payable 17.96 34.67
Unpaid/ unclaimed dividend on Equity shares (Refer note 45) 12.43 12.89

Total 4,242.59 4,128.28
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Note 20: Provisions (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences* 468.28 454.05

Total 468.28 454.05
Current

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 180.40 116.63
Compensated absences* 91.27 59.64
Superannuation 0.44 13.92

Total 272.11 190.19

* Compensated absences includes actuarial liability for Earned leave and Sick leave of the employees, in accordance with IND AS 19.

Note 21: Other liabilities (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Non-Current - -
Total - -
Current
Statutory dues (contribution to PF, ESIC, Withholding tax, GST etc.) 295.79 293.67
Contested demands 277.31 406.48
Advance received from customers 1,104.11 955.98
Total 1,677.21 1,656.13

Note 22: Deferred Government grant (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,515.24 1,085.36
Add: Addition during the year* 11.42 3,683.89
Less: Apportioned to revenue ( M.P. state Govt Subsidy)** (540.91) (240.82)
Less: Apportioned to revenue (TUFS Subsidy) (8.46) (13.19)

Balance at the end of the year 3,977.29 4,515.24

* During the Year 2023-24, Deferred Government grant liability was recognised against the M.P. State Govt. capital subsidy for capital 
investment in eligible plant & machinery, electric installation and factory building.

** Deferred Government grant liability was recognised towards the capital subsidy receivable from M.P. State Govt & to be adjusted over 
the life of assets.

Note 23: Trade payables  (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
(Refer Note. No. 23.1)

308.05 621.53

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

6,093.99 2,999.52

Total 6,402.04 3,621.05

Note 23.1

Disclosure Under the Micro, Small and Medium enterprise Development Act, 2006 are provided as under for the year 2024-25, 
to the extent the company has received intimation from the "Suppliers" regarding their status under the Act.

(D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

(a) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to each 
supplier at the end of each accounting year (but within due date as per 
the MSMED Act.)
(i)  Principal amount due to Micro, Small and Medium enterprise. 308.05 621.53
(ii)  interest due on above - -

(b) Amount of payments made to suppliers beyond the appointed day during 
the year
(i)  Principal amount paid to Micro, Small and Medium enterprise. - -
(ii)  interest actually paid under section 16 of MSMED Act. - -

(c) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) 
but without adding interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Act,2006

- -

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
accounting year.

- -

(e) Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until 
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small 
enterprises.

- -

Dues of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been determined to the extent such enterprises was identified on the 
basis of information collected by the Management.
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Trade Payables ageing schedule  (D in Lakh)

Particulars Not Due

Outstanding amount for following periods from due 
date of payment

Total
Less than 1 

Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 
Years

As at 31st March 2025
(i) MSME* 314.32 (6.27) (0.01) - - 308.05
(ii) Others 3,258.16 2,694.42 79.37 - 10.19 6,042.14
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues – Others - - - - 51.85 51.85

Total 3,572.48 2,688.15 79.36 - 62.04 6,402.04
As at 31st March 2024

(i) MSME* 622.87 (0.74) (0.60) - - 621.53
(ii) Others 1,427.26 1,321.39 182.56 5.89 10.57 2,947.67
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues – Others - - - - 51.85 51.85

Total 2,050.13 1,320.65 181.96 5.89 62.42 3,621.05

*MSME as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006

Note 24: Right of Use assets (ROU)

Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets (D in Lakh)

Particulars
Category ROU Assets

Total
Tangible assets Land Buildings

Balance as at 1st April 2023 178.35 199.05 3,764.31 4,141.71
Reclassified on account of adoption of Ind AS 
116 (refer to note 3)

Additions - - 1,466.71 1,466.71
Deletion - - 61.55 61.55
Depreciation 22.65 2.06 676.10 700.81

Balance as at 1st April 2024 155.70 196.99 4,493.37 4,846.06
Additions - - 56.82 56.82
Deletion - - 1,355.46 1,355.46
Depreciation - 2.06 511.68 513.74

Balance as at 31st March 2025 155.70 194.93 2,683.05 3,033.68

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortisation expenses in the 
statement of Profit and Loss.   

Break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities: (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Current lease liabilities 398.22 447.42
Non-current lease liabilities 2,964.22 4,733.99
Total 3,362.44 5,181.41

Movement in lease liabilities during the year ended: (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Balance at the beginning 5,181.41 4,242.09
Additions 56.82 1,439.97
Finance cost accrued during the period 363.69 497.55
Deletions 1,561.68 85.37
Payment of lease liabilities 677.80 912.83
Balance at the end 3,362.44 5,181.41

Contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis: (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Less than one year 660.75 931.58
One to five years 2,568.04 3,916.66
More than five years 1,889.02 3,072.76
Total 5,117.81 7,921.00

Note:-     

The Company do not face significant liquidity risk with regard to lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to 
meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when becoming due.

Note 25: Revenue from operations (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

A. Sale of Goods
Manufactured goods
Yarn 45,995.68 43,609.09
Fabric 26,470.59 22,778.57
Garments/Made-ups 22,131.06 19,963.47
Cotton/Other waste 6,440.60 6,898.58
Traded Goods
Cotton 413.71 -
Yarn - 31.56

Total (A) 1,01,451.64 93,281.27
B. Sale of Services

Job charges 460.91 348.50
Total (B) 460.91 348.50
C. Other operating revenue

Sale of scrap 189.70 179.40
Export incentives 2,601.18 2,196.44

Total (C) 2,790.88 2,375.84
Total (A)+(B)+(C) 1,04,703.43 96,005.61
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Note 25.1: Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregation based on geography (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

India 58,268.31 52,853.04
Outside India 46,435.12 43,152.57
Total 1,04,703.43 96,005.61

Note 25.2: Revenue disaggregation on the basis of timing of revenue recognition (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

At the point in time 1,04,703.43 96,005.61
Over the period - -
Total 1,04,703.43 96,005.61

Note 25.3 Revenue based on Business Segment

The Company does not have any remaining performance obligation as contracts entered for sale of goods are for a shorter 
duration. There are no contracts for sale of services wherein, performance obligation is unsatisfied to which transaction 
period has been allocated.

Note 25.4: Reconciliation of Revenue from contracts with customers (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Revenue from contracts with customers as per contract price 1,04,763.76 96,091.33
Less: Incentives, Discounts and Claims 60.33 85.72
Revenue from Contracts with Customers as per Statement of Profit & Loss 1,04,703.43 96,005.61

The amount receivable from customers becomes due after fulfillment of performance obligation and becomes over due 
after expiry of credit period. There is no significant financing component in any transaction with the customer.

Note 26: Other Income  (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Net gain on foreign currency transaction & translation ( Other than 
considered as finance cost)

479.91 475.07

Interest income 590.20 194.00
State interest subsidy 4.71 -
Provision/Liability no longer required -written back 680.81 900.57
Miscellaneous income 473.87 630.28
Net gain on sale of capital assets 22.37 56.01
Dividend income 2.08 1.72
Fair value gain on Re-measurement of investment at FVTPL 2.91 34.82
Total 2,256.86 2,292.47

Note 27(i): Cost of materials consumed (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

A. Raw materials consumed
Cotton 41,063.47 39,598.41
Other fibers 3,905.16 2,675.68
Dyes & Chemicals 4,608.93 3,754.26
Embellishments 1,923.36 1,742.35

Total (A) 51,500.92 47,770.70
B. Purchases for consumption

Yarn 8,135.98 7,233.63
Fabric 4,197.60 4,030.47

Total (B) 12,333.58 11,264.10
C. Other materials consumed

Packing material 1,270.20 1,102.46
Total (C) 1,270.20 1,102.46
Total (A)+(B)+(C) 65,104.70 60,137.26

Note 27(ii): Purchases of stock-in-trade (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Purchases
Cotton/Yarn 410.43 36.71

410.43 36.71

Note 28: Changes in inventories of Finished goods and Work-in-progress (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Inventories at the end of the year
Finished Goods 5,832.02 5,090.69
Work-in-progress 2,786.95 3,004.24
Waste 56.26 91.82

Total A 8,675.23 8,186.75
Inventories at the beginning of the year

Finished Goods 5,090.69 6,051.96
Work-in-progress 3,004.24 2,732.38
Waste 91.82 53.72

Total B 8,186.75 8,838.06
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (B-A) (488.48) 651.31

Note 29: Employee benefit expenses (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Salaries & wages 16,123.78 13,110.44
Contribution to provident and other funds 1,542.98 1,427.86
Workman and staff welfare 218.54 171.82
Total 17,885.30 14,710.12
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Note 30: Finance costs (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Interest expense including corporate restructuring expense  
(refer note (i & ii) below)

3,589.73 3,286.60

Bank Charges related to borrowings 78.54 108.28
Total 3,668.27 3,394.88

Notes:

(i) Interest expenses are net of interest subsidy received/receivable under State Government subsidy scheme to the 
tune of C 557.99 Lakh for FY 2024-25 ( PY C 15.26 Lakh).

(ii) Recompense Expenses - Refer note number - 44      

Note 31: Depreciation and amortisation expenses (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment 3,928.74 3,606.84
Amortisation of Intangible assets 37.74 73.56
Less: Amortisation of deferred Govt. grant ( M.P. Govt Subsidy ) (540.91) (240.82)
Less: Amortisation of deferred Govt grant (TUFS Subsidy) (8.46) (13.19)
Total 3,417.11 3,426.39

Note 32: Other Expenses (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Consumption of stores & spare parts 2,248.56 1,906.05
Job work costs 2,722.16 2,020.49
Power & fuel 7,462.40 6,736.25
Repairs & maintenance
-Plant & Machinery 254.94 225.93
-Buildings 14.28 14.22
-Others 243.24 206.58
Freight & Forwarding 2,356.54 1,492.58
Selling expenses 753.23 824.71
Commission to selling agents 458.32 456.91
Provision for doubtful debts (ECL)/advances - 4.06
Insurance expenses 149.80 194.14
Rent 122.36 35.19
Rates & Taxes 96.44 96.42
Internet expenses 23.17 26.99
Subscription & membership expenses 48.06 24.81
Printing & Stationery 37.14 32.55
Postage & Telegraph 84.34 84.19
Security expenses 106.75 118.93
Other expenses 762.69 610.46

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Donation to political party - 300.00
Consultancy charges 467.86 421.68
Legal & Professional Charges 149.29 134.99
Payment to statutory auditor ( refer note (iv) below) 29.02 28.31
Conveyance 775.95 575.63
Vehicle Running & Maintenance 109.81 105.51
Loss on sale of Capital assets 16.94 40.70
Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expenditure ( refer note (i to iii) below) 32.88 69.67
Total 19,526.17 16,787.95

Notes:

(i) During FY 2024-25, Company has contributed and expensed C 32.88 Lakh towards CSR. (During 2023-24, Company 
has contributed C 69.67 Lakh, expensed C 42.49 Lakh and an amount of C 27.18 Lakh was transferred to designated 
bank account to be utilised exclusively for CSR project undertaken) in accordance with provisions of section 135 of 
Companies Act, 2013 to various trusts and social organization. The contributions have been made for promoting 
education as per note (iii) below.

(ii) Amount spent during the year (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Corporate social responsibility
In cash/Cheque 32.88 42.49
Amount transferred to designated bank account - 27.18
Total 32.88 69.67

(iii) Corporate Social Responsibility (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

1. Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 32.88 69.67
2. Amount of expenditure incurred on:

(i)  Promoting education, including special education and 
employment enhancing vocation *

 skills especially among children, women, elderly and the 
differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects.

31.76 59.20

(ii)  Enhancement of Women Professional Skills for Textile 
Industries 1.12 10.47

3. Shortfall at the end of the year - -
4. Total of previous years shortfall - -
5. Reason for shortfall NA NA
6. Nature of CSR activities As per S.No. 2 of 

above
As per S.No. 2 of 

above

*It includes an amount of C 27.18 Lakh as on 31st March 2024 transferred to unspent CSR bank account for on going project towards 
promoting education for construction of 2 class rooms. This amount has been spent on CSR activitivies during FY 2024-25.
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(iv) Payment to statutory auditor (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

(i) Statutory audit Fee 21.00 21.00
(ii) Limited review 1.50 1.50
(iii) Out of pocket expenses 6.52 5.81
Total 29.02 28.31

Notes 33:  Income Taxes 

33.1  Income taxes recognised in statement of Profit and Loss (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Current tax expense
Current year - -
Tax of earlier years Written off / (Written back) - -
Deferred tax expense
origination and reversal of temporary differences (143.44) 129.81
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year (143.44) 129.81

Reconciliation of  income tax expense to the accounting profit: (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Profit before tax (2,563.21) (846.54)
Statutory Income tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Tax at Indian statutory income tax rate - -
Tax due to timing differences (143.44) 129.81
Adjustment recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of 
prior years

- -

Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss (143.44) 129.81

33.2 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation (22.94) (26.80)
Effective portion of cash flow hedge reserve (29.17) 18.04
Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income (52.11) (8.76)

33.3 Reconciliation of tax expenses (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Total Amount Charged to statement of profit and loss as above  
Note no. 33.1 (143.44) 129.81

Add:- Amount of difference in Tax Provision & actual tax liability of  
Previous year - -

Add:- Provision for Income tax - -
Tax Expenses as per statement of Profit and Loss (143.44) 129.81

33.4 Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities (D in Lakh)

Particulars Amount
Opening Balance as on 1st April 2023 287.38
Amount Charged to statement of profit and loss

Deferred Tax Liability on provision for employees benefit, Doubtful Debts 
& Lease Liability

(108.35)

Deferred Tax Assets created on PPE & ROU 238.17
Total Amount charged to statement of profit and loss 129.81
Amount charged to other comprehensive income (OCI)

Deferred Tax Assets set off for cash flow hedge reserve (18.04)
Deferred Tax Liability set off for employees benefit 26.80

Total Amount charged to other comprehensive income (OCI) 8.76

Opening Balance as at 1st April 2024 425.95
Amount charged to statement of profit and loss

Deferred Tax Liability on provision for employees benefit, Doubtful Debts 
& Lease Liability (767.54)

Deferred Tax Assets created on PPE & ROU 624.09
Total Amount charged to statement of profit and loss (143.44)
Amount charged to other comprehensive income (OCI)

Deferred Tax Assets set off for cash flow hedge reserve 29.17
Deferred Tax Liability set off for employees benefit 22.94

Total Amount charged to other comprehensive income (OCI) 52.11
Closing Balance as at 31st March 2025 334.61



Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

CORPORATE 
OVERVIEW

STATUTORY
REPORT

FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

139138
ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

Note 34: Earnings per share (EPS) (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Profit/(Loss) after tax as per statement of Profit & Loss (2,419.77) (976.35)
Net earning for computing basic earnings per share (2,419.77) (976.35)
Add: Interest (net of tax) - -
Total (2,419.77) (976.35)
Number of equity shares 4,15,08,000 4,15,08,000
Weighted average number of equity shares used in computing the basic 
earnings per share 4,15,08,000 4,15,08,000

Weighted average number of equity shares used in computing the diluted 
earnings per share 4,15,08,000 4,15,08,000

Basic earnings per share of C 10 each (5.83) (2.35)
Diluted earnings per share of C 10 each (5.83) (2.35)
Face value per share ( in C ) 10 10

Basic earnings per equity share has been computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding for the year.

Note 35: Segment Reporting

The Company is currently operating into three business segments i.e., Yarn, Fabric and Garment. These segments offer 
different products and require different technology and marketing strategies.

Identification of Segments

The Board of Directors has been identified as Chief Operation Decision Maker who monitors the operating results of its 
business segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. 
Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial 
statements. Accounting policy in respect of segments is in conformity with accounting policy of the company as a whole.

Inter segment Transfer

Segment revenue resulting from transactions with other business segments is accounted for on the basis of transfer 
price agreed between the segments. Transfer prices between operating segments are on arm's length basis in a manner 
similar to transactions with third parties.

Segment Revenue & Results

The Revenue and Expenditures in relation to the respective segments have been identified and allocated to the extent 
possible. Other revenue and expenditures non allocable to specific segments are disclosed separately as unallocated and 
adjusted directly against total income of the Company.

Segment Assets & Liabilities

Segment Assets includes all operating assets used by the operating segment and mainly consists of property, plant & 
equipment, trade receivables, inventory and cash & cash equivalents etc. Segment Liabilities primarily include trade payables 
and other liabilities. Common assets & liabilities which can not be allocated to specific segments are shown as a part of 
net unallocable assets/liabilities.

(D in Lakh)

Particulars
Year ended 31st March 2025

Yarn Fabric Garment Inter Segment and 
Unallocated Items Total

Segment Revenue
External customers 54,209.93 27,050.33 23,443.17 - 1,04,703.43
Inter-segment 14,810.59 6,162.17 - (20,972.76) -

Total Revenue 69,020.52 33,212.50 23,443.17 (20,972.76) 1,04,703.43
Segment Expenses 67,043.52 31,843.12 25,330.25 (20,972.76) 1,03,244.13
Segment Results 1,977.00 1,369.38 (1,887.08) - 1,459.30

Un-allocable Expenses (370.94)
Un-allocable Other Income 16.70
Finance costs (3,668.27)

Profit before Tax (2,563.21)
Tax Expenses 143.44

Profit After Tax (2,419.77)
Other Information:
Depreciation, Amortization and 
Impairment

Allocable 1,772.79 691.48 952.84 - 3,417.11
Total 1,772.79 691.48 952.84 - 3,417.11
Capital Expenditures

Allocable 4,278.88 - 105.44 - 4,384.32
Total 4,278.88 - 105.44 - 4,384.32
Segment Assets

Allocable 46,371.41 14,800.36 11,691.50 - 72,863.27
Unallocable Other assets (net) - - - 14.57 14.57

Total Assets 46,371.41 14,800.36 11,691.50 14.57 72,877.84
Segment Liabilities

Allocable 40,586.98 13,616.75 7,785.14 - 61,988.87
Total Liabilities 40,586.98 13,616.75 7,785.14 - 61,988.87

(D in Lakh)

Particulars
Year ended 31st March 2024

Yarn Fabric Garment Inter Segment and 
Unallocated Items Total

Segment Revenue
External customers 51,714.88 23,205.29 21,085.44 - 96,005.61
Inter-segment 12,212.86 5,040.44 - (17,253.30) -

Total Revenue 63,927.74 28,245.73 21,085.44 (17,253.30) 96,005.61
Segment Expenses 61,388.01 26,348.97 22,642.18 (17,253.30) 93,125.86
Segment Results 2,539.73 1,896.76 (1,556.74) - 2,879.75

Un-allocable Expenses (379.83)
Un-allocable Other Income 48.42
Finance costs (3,394.88)

Profit before Tax (846.54)
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Particulars
Year ended 31st March 2024

Yarn Fabric Garment Inter Segment and 
Unallocated Items Total

Tax Expenses (129.81)
Profit After Tax (976.35)
Other Information:
Depreciation, Amortization and 
Impairment

Allocable 1,397.32 829.88 1,199.19 - 3,426.39
Total 1,397.32 829.88 1,199.19 - 3,426.39
Capital Expenditures

Allocable 16,436.20 - 184.71 - 16,620.91
Total 16,436.20 - 184.71 - 16,620.91
Segment Assets

Allocable 45,130.58 15,284.74 14,737.29 - 75,152.61
Un-allocable - - - 73.47 73.47

Total Assets 45,130.58 15,284.74 14,737.29 73.47 75,226.08
Segment Liabilities

Allocable 39,312.73 13,607.09 9,151.77 - 62,071.59
Un-allocable - - - - -

Total liabilities 39,312.73 13,607.09 9,151.77 - 62,071.59

Geographical information      

 a.  The Company is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of 
customers:        (D in Lakh)

Geography Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

India 58,268.31 52,853.04
North America 4,145.43 4,979.65
Europe 13,465.96 8,503.79
Gulf & Middle east 444.71 779.30
Far East & South east Asia 19,230.88 19,584.21
Africa 9,010.81 9,252.99
Rest of the world 137.33 52.63

1,04,703.43 96,005.61

b.  Information regarding geographical non-current assets:  (D in Lakh)

Geography Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

India 37,441.16 39,605.48
Outside India - -

37,441.16 39,605.48

(D in Lakh) Information about major customers

There are no customer having 10% or more of total revenue 

Revenue for Products & Services: (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Sale of goods 1,01,451.64 93,281.27
Sale of services 460.91 348.50

1,01,912.55 93,629.77

Note 36: Contingent liabilities (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Income tax matters in dispute 72.65 79.88
Excise / customs / service tax matters in dispute 531.74 423.23
Sales tax matters in dispute 10.90 19.52
Recall of certain DEPB benefits, in dispute 36.63 36.63
Labour cases involving claims for reinstatement, back wages etc. 185.52 170.00
GST Related cases involving tax & Interest etc. 5.89 322.68

Based on legal advice, discussions with the solicitors, professionals etc., the management believes that there are fair 
chances of decisions in favour of the company in respect of all the items listed above and hence no provision is considered 
necessary against the same. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a 
material adverse effect on the company’s financial position and operations.

Note 37: Commitments (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 
not provided for (net of advances)

596.05 1,060.45

Export obligations under the Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme, 
remaining to be fulfilled within the specified period

18,975.50 15,924.64

Note 38 : Ratios

Ratio Numerator Denominator
As at

31st March 
2025

As at
31st March 

2024
Variance % Reason for  

variance

Current Ratio  
(in times) Current Assets

Current Liabilities 
less Current 

Maturity of Term 
Loan & Lease 

Liabilities

1.01 1.10 (8.58%)

Debt Equity Ratio 
 (in times)

Long Term 
Debts (Excluding 
Lease Liabilities)

Shareholder's 
Equity 1.70 1.45 17.21%

Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio 

(DSCR) (in times)

Earning for Debt 
Service Debt Service 0.70 1.21 (42.22%) Majorly due to 

losses
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Ratio Numerator Denominator
As at

31st March 
2025

As at
31st March 

2024
Variance % Reason for  

variance

Inventory Turnover 
Ratio (in times)

Revenue from 
Operations

Average 
Inventory 6.98 5.59 24.92%

Trade Receivables 
Turnover Ratio (in 

times)

Revenue from 
Operations

Average Trade 
Receivables 8.06 8.72 (7.62%)

Trade Payables 
Turnover Ratio (in 

times)
Net Purchases Average Trade 

Payables 14.35 15.40 (6.81%)

Net Capital Turnover 
Ratio (in times)

Revenue from 
operations

Average Working 
Capital 60.55 21.77 178.11%

Majorly due to 
reduction in average 

working capital

Net Profit (in %) Net Profit after 
tax

Revenue from 
operations (2.31%) (1.02%) (127.25%) Majorly due to 

losses

Return on Equity 
(ROE) (in %)

Net Profit 
after tax less 
Preference 

Dividend

Average 
Shareholders 

Equity
(20.13%) (7.17%) (180.92%) Majorly due to 

losses

Return on Capital 
Employed (ROCE) 

(in %)
PBIT Capital Employed 2.10% 4.55% (53.98%) Majorly due to 

losses

Return on Investment 
(ROI) (in %)

Income 
generated from 

Investments

Average 
Investments 4.31% 37.74% (88.58%)

Majorly due 
to decrease in 

investment income

Note 39: Employee Benefits

A Defined Contribution plans

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund and superannuation fund, to defined contribution retirement 
benefit plans for qualifying employees. The provident fund plan is operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner 
and the Superannuation fund is administered by Trustees of ‘Maral Overseas Limited Senior Executive Superannuation 
Fund’. Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement 
benefit schemes to fund the employee benefits.

The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. The amount 
recognized as expense for defined contribution plans are as follows:

(D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Provident fund 990.56 828.88
Superannuation fund 62.66 73.72

B Defined Benefit Plans

The Company makes annual contributions towards funding the defined benefit plans for qualifying employees and also 
contributes towards the insurance scheme of ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Co. Ltd. The scheme provides for lump sum 
payment to vested employees on retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment, an amount 
equivalent to 15 days salary (last drawn monthly salary) payable for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess 
of six months. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost were measured using the Projected 
Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date.

i) The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuation were as follows: (D in Lakh)

Assumptions As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Economic Assumptions
Discount rate 7.09% 7.15%
Salary escalation 5.00% 5.00%

Demographic Assumptions
Retirement Age 60 60
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM 

(2012-14)
100% of IALM 

(2012-14)
Attrition at Ages Withdrawal Rate (%)

-Up to 30 Years 3% 3%
-From 31 to 44 years 2% 2%
-Above 44 years 1% 1%

ii) Movement in present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 2,113.07 2,004.15
Interest cost 151.09 149.11
Current service cost 238.56 213.40
Past Service Cost including curtailment Gains/Losses - 115.25
Benefit paid (119.65) (329.27)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Change in Demographic Assumption - 7.56
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss- arising from Change in Financial Assumption 12.53 55.10
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss- arising from Experience Adjustment (73.12) (102.23)

Liability at the end of the year 2,322.48 2,113.07

iii) Movement in fair value of Plan Assets (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 1,996.44 2,031.22
Actual return on Plan Assets 173.30 223.72
Benefits paid (27.66) (258.50)

Fair value of the Plan Assets at end of the year 2,142.08 1,996.44

iv) Net Asset/(Liabilities) recognized in Balance Sheet (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Present Value of the obligation at end of the year 2,322.48 2,113.07
Fair value of Plan Assets at end of the year 2,142.08 1,996.44
Funded (Liabilities)/Asset recognised in the Balance Sheet (Net) (180.40) (116.63)
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v) Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Current service cost 238.56 328.65
Net Interest cost 8.34 (2.01)
Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 246.90 326.64

vi) Other Comprehensive Income (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Actuarial gain / (loss) for the year on Projected benefit obligation (PBO) 60.59 39.56
Actuarial gain /(loss) for the year on Plan Asset 30.55 72.59
Unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss) at the end of the year 91.14 112.15

vii) Description of Plan Assets: (D in Lakh)

Major categories of Plan Assets As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Insurer managed fund 100% 100%

viii) Change in Net Benefit Obligations (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Net defined benefit liability at the start of the year 116.63 (27.08)
Acquisition adjustment - -
Total Service Cost 238.56 328.65
Net Interest cost (Income) 8.34 (2.01)
Re-measurements (91.14) (112.15)
Benefit paid directly by the enterprise (91.99) (70.77)
Net defined benefit liability at end of the year 180.40 116.63

ix) Bifurcation of PBO at the end of year in current and non current. (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Current liability (Amount due within one year) 247.45 193.97
Non-Current liability (Amount due after one year) 2,075.03 1,919.10
Total PBO at the end of year 2,322.48 2,113.07

x) Sensitivity Analysis of the Defined Benefit Obligation (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

a) Impact of the change in discount rate
-Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (97.76) (92.75)
-Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 105.19 101.00

b) Impact of the change in salary increase
-Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 106.84 102.63
-Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (100.10) (95.03)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement 
& life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

xi) The estimates of future salary increase is considered in actuarial valuation, along with inflation, seniority, promotion 
and other relevant factors.

xii) The employer ’s best estimate of contribution expected to be paid during the FY 2025-26 is C 302.37 Lakh

xiii) Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligation (D in Lakh)

Year As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

0 to 1 Year 247.45 193.97
1 to 2 Year 93.70 76.66
2 to 3 Year 108.72 98.41
3 to 4 Year 107.24 98.04
4 to 5 Year 138.43 97.38
5 to 6 Year 151.84 118.97
6 Year onwards 1,475.11 1,429.64

B.2. Defined Benefit Plans- Compensated absences (Leave Encashment)

i) The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuation: (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Economic Assumptions
Discount rate 7.09% 7.15%
Salary escalation 5.00% 5.00%

Demographic Assumptions
Retirement Age 60 60
Leave Availment Rate 5% 5%
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM 

(2012-14)
100% of IALM 

(2012-14)
Ages Withdrawal Rate (%)

-Up to 30 Years 3% 3%
-From 31 to 44 years 2% 2%
-Above 44 years 1% 1%

Leave
Leave Availment Rate 5.00% 5.00%
Leave Lapse rate while in service Nil Nil
Leave Lapse rate on exit Nil Nil
Leave encashment Rate while in service Nil Nil
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ii) Movement in present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 469.88 433.85
Interest cost 33.60 32.28
Current service cost 138.80 136.14
Benefit paid (264.25) (206.15)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Change in Demographic Assumption 0.11 7.30
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss- arising from Change in Financial Assumption 3.11 20.97
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss- arising from Experience Adjustment 138.83 45.49

Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 520.08 469.88

iii) Net Asset/(Liabilities) recognized in Balance Sheet (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 520.08 469.88
Fair value of plan asset - -
Unfunded Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet (520.08) (469.88)

iv) Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Current service cost 138.80 136.14
Net Interest cost 33.60 32.28
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 142.05 73.76
Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 314.45 242.17

v) Change in Net Benefit Obligations (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Net defined benefit liability at the start of the year 469.88 433.85
Total Service Cost 138.80 136.14
Net Interest cost (Income) 33.60 32.28
Re-measurements 142.05 73.76
Benefit paid directly by the enterprise (264.25) (206.15)

Net defined benefit liability at end of the year 520.08 469.88

vi) Bifurcation of PBO at the end of year in current and non current. (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Current liability (Amount due within one year) 83.23 50.35
Non-Current liability (Amount due after one year) 436.85 419.52
Total PBO at the end of year 520.08 469.87

vii) Sensitivity Analysis of the Defined Benefit Obligation (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

a)  Impact of the change in discount rate
-Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (24.14) (23.42)
-Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 25.82 25.03

b)  Impact of the change in salary increase
-Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 26.43 25.63
-Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (24.43) (23.71)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement 
& life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

viii) The estimates of future salary increase is considered in actuarial valuation, and also considered inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors.

ix) The employer ’s best estimate of contribution expected to be paid during the next year is C 205.28 Lakh

x) Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligation (D in Lakh)

Year As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

0 to 1 Year 83.23 50.35
1 to 2 Year 24.91 17.91
2 to 3 Year 27.13 17.46
3 to 4 Year 24.57 29.79
4 to 5 Year 25.39 22.10
5 to 6 Year 22.24 23.20
6 Year onwards 312.61 309.05

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as Investment risk, salary risk, discount rate risk, mortality 
risk, withdrawals risk.

Salary risk Actual salary increase will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in assumption of salary 
increase rate in future valuations will also increase the liability.

Investment risk If Plan is funded, then assets liabilities mismatch & actual return on investment assets is 
lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation date, can impact the liability

Discount rate risk Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

Mortality & disability risk Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can 
impact the liabilities.

Withdrawals Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of 
withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liability.



Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

CORPORATE 
OVERVIEW

STATUTORY
REPORT

FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

149148
ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

B.3. Defined Benefit plans- Leave Obligations (Compensated Expenses)

The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for sick and earned leave.

The amount of provision of C 8.04 lakh ( PY C 9.30 Lakh) is presented as current liability, since the Company does not have 
an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations.

Note: 40 Related Party Disclosures

Notes :40.1 List of Related Parties as per Ind As 24 & Regulation 23 of Sebi (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

S.No. Name of Related Party Nature of Relationship
A (i) A person or a close member of that person’s family of a reporting entity has control or joint control over the 

reporting entity.
Shri Shekhar Agarwal Promoters having voting control
Shri Shantanu Agarwal Promoters having voting control

(ii) A person or a close member of that person’s family of a reporting entity has significant influence over the 
reporting entity.
Shri Shekhar Agarwal
Smt. Shashi Agarwal
Shri Shantanu Agarwal
Smt. Shuchi Poddar
Smt. Alka Agarwal

(iii) A person or a close member of that person’s family of a reporting entity is a member of the Key Management 
Personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity.
Shri Ravi Jhunjhunwala

Director of the Company
Shri Shekhar Agarwal
Shri Shantanu Agarwal
Smt. Archana Capoor
Dr. Kamal Gupta

Ceased to be Independent Director w.e.f. 25.09.2024
Shri Priya Shankar Dasgupta
Shri Amitabh Gupta

Appointed as Independent Directors w.e.f. 01.08.2024Smt. Romi Jatta
Shri Raman Singh Sidhu
Shri Manoj Gupta Chief Financial Officer
Shri Virendra Kumar Garg Company Secretary-upto 15.11.2023
Shri Avnish Maurya Company Secretary

(Appointed on 07.02.2024 and Resigned w.e.f. 19.03.2024)
Shri Sandeep Singh Company Secretary-Appointed w.e.f. 20.03.2024

B (i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary 
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

Not Applicable
(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of 

a group of which the other entity is a member).
Not Applicable

(iii) Associated and other entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
Not Applicable

S.No. Name of Related Party Nature of Relationship
(iv) One Entity is a joint venture of a third party and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

Not Applicable
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or an 

entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers 
are also related to the reporting entity.
Maral Overseas Limited senior executive 
superannuation

Trust

MOL Employees gratuity fund Trust
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in A.

Aadi Marketing Company Private Limited

Holding more than 50 % of the Shareholding along with relatives 
in the Company and including KMPs.

Agarwal Finestate Private Ltd
AKJ Apparels Private Limited
Asia Law Office
Bhilwara Technical Textiles Limited
BMD Power Private Limited
BMD Private Limited
BMD Renewable Energy Private Limited
Bhilwara Energy Limited
BSL Limited
Captain Trade & Agencies Private Limited
Diplomat Leasing and Finance Private 
Limited
Essay Kalyan Nidhi Trust
HEG Limited
MG Marketing and Trading Private Limited
RANDR Trustee Private Limited
RLJ Family Trusteeship Private Limited
RRJ Family Trustee Private Limited
RSWM Limited
Sita Nirman Private Limited
SKLNJ Family Trusteeship Private Limited
SSSA Family Private Limited
Shri Shekhar Agarwal - HUF
Shri Shekhar Agarwal - Trust
Shri Shantanu Agarwal - HUF
Swami Vivekanand Educational Sports 
culture and welfare Society
Zoongoo Commercial Co. Private Limited
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S.No. Name of Related Party Nature of Relationship
(vii) A person identified in A (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management 

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
1 Shri Shekhar Agarwal

Aadi Marketing Company Private Limited

Holding more than 20 % of the Shareholding along with relatives 
in the Company.

Agarwal Finestate Private Limited
Bhilwara Technical Textiles Limited
BMD Power Private Limited
BMD Private Limited
BMD Renewable Energy Private Limited
Diplomat Leasing and Finance Private 
Limited
Essay Kalyan Nidhi Trust
MG Marketing and Trading Private Limited
Sita Nirman Private Limited
SSSA Family Private Limited
Swami Vivekanand Educational Sports 
culture and welfare Society
Shri Shekhar Agarwal - HUF
Shri Shekhar Agarwal - Trust

2 Shri Shantanu Agarwal
Aadi Marketing Company Private Limited

Holding more than 20 % of the Shareholding along with relatives 
in the Company .

Agarwal Finestate Private Limited
Bhilwara Technical Textiles Limited
BMD Power Private Limited
BMD Private Limited
BMD Renewable Energy Private Limited
Diplomat Leasing and Finance Private 
Limited
Essay Kalyan Nidhi Trust
MG Marketing and Trading Private Limited
Sita Nirman Private Limited
Swami Vivekanand Educational Sports 
culture and welfare Society
SSSA Family Private Limited
Shri Shantanu Agarwal - HUF

(viii) The Entity, or any member of a group of which it is part, provide key management personal service to the 
reporting entity of to the parent of reporting entity.

Not Applicable
(ix) Reporting entity being an associate of the other entity.

Agarwal Trademart Private Limited

40.2  Details of transactions with related parties (D in Lakh)

S. 
No. Particulars

Key Managerial 
Personnel & Close 

Members

Reporting 
entity being an 

associate of other 
entity

A person and 
enterprises over 

which any person 
described other than 

A-(i-iii) and B-(ix) 
is able to exercise 

significant influence 
over the reporting 

enterprises.

Total

31st 
March 

2025

31st 
March 

2024

31st 
March 

2025

31st 
March 

2024

31st 
March 

2025

31st 
March 

2024

31st 
March 

2025

31st 
March 

2024
1 Advance for DR Server - - - - 133.49 168.46 133.49 168.46
2 Contribution for CSR activities 

FY 2024-25 - - - - 32.88 42.49 32.88 42.49

3 Ongoing Project CSR activities 
FY2023-24 27.18 - 27.18 -

4 Job Charge Received - - - - 209.90 301.09 209.90 301.09
5 Outstanding Due - - 2,000.00 1,000.00 2,000.00 1,000.00
6 Outstanding Receivable - - - - 253.66 148.46 253.66 148.46
7 Payment made to trust 

towards superannuation - - - - 76.17 117.64 76.17 117.64

8 Payment received from trust 
towards gratuity - - - - 44.25 261.41 44.25 261.41

9 Purchases of Material - - - - 20.78 276.25 20.78 276.25
10 Reimbursement of Expenses 

paid to - - - - 79.37 78.02 79.37 78.02

11 Reimbursement of Expenses 
recovered - - - - 2.68 1.04 2.68 1.04

12 Interest Expenses 116.07 9.14 116.07 9.14
13 Remuneration - Paid to Key 

Managerial Personnel
a Short term employees benefit 402.36 353.21 - - - - 402.36 353.21
b Post employment benefit 58.98 54.18 - - - - 58.98 54.18
c Termination benefits - - - - - - - -
d Share-based payment. - - - - - - - -
14 Rent Paid 12.00 10.58 - - 72.03 69.60 84.03 80.19
15 Sale of Material - - - - 2,688.21 2,199.13 2,688.21 2,199.13
16 Services for DR Server Services 

- Capex - - - - 65.42 43.34 65.42 43.34

17 Services for DR Server Services 
- Opex - - - - 42.74 16.73 42.74 16.73

18 Sitting Fees 24.10 21.50 - - - - 24.10 21.50
19 Unsecured loan-received - - - - 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

TOTAL 497.44 439.47 - - 6,864.83 5,732.80 7,362.27 6,172.28

Terms & Conditions         

The transactions with the related parties are made on terms and conditions similar to those prevailing in arm's 
length transactions. The assessment is under taken in each financial year through examining the financial 
position of the related party and in the market in which the related party operates and outstanding balances are 
unsecured.         
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Note 41: Financial Instruments

41.1 Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company’s Capital Management is to maximize the shareholder value and also maintain an 
optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital. In order to manage the capital structure, the Company may adjust the 
amount of dividend to shareholders, return on capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts. 
The Company monitors capital on the basis of following gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus debt.

The company monitors capital on the basis of following gearing ratio, which is net debt (net of cash and cash equivalents) 
divided by total equity plus net debt .

41.1.1 Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Debt (See note 'i' below) (Refer Note no. 18 & 19) 41,587.20 42,444.33
Cash and bank balances (Refer Note no. 13 & 14 ) (471.94) (498.62)
Net debt 41,115.26 41,945.71
Total equity (Refer Note no. 16 & 17) 10,889.06 13,153.91
Total equity and Net Debt 52,004.32 55,099.62
Gearing Ratio in times 0.79 0.76

Note:

i) Debt is defined as long and short-term borrowings (excluding derivative, financial guarantee contracts), as described 
in notes 18 and 19.

ii) In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure 
that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure 
requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to call loans and borrowings or 
charge some penal interest. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans 
and borrowing in the current period.

 No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the current year 
and previous year.

Note 41.2 Financial Instruments- Accounting Classification And Fair Value Measurement

41.2.1 Financial Instrument by Category (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Financial Assets
- Measured at amortised cost

Other financial assets (non current) ( Refer Note No 8) 2,406.55 3,096.28
Trade receivables ( Refer Note No 12) 13,885.52 12,096.64
Cash and cash equivalents ( Refer Note No 13) 21.56 58.37
Bank Balances other than Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note No 14) 450.38 440.25
Other financial assets (current) ( Refer Note No 8) 2,169.53 1,834.26
Loans ( Refer Note No 7) 106.50 144.58

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

- Measured at fair value through Profit & Loss
Investments ( Refer Note No 11) 117.11 114.21
Forward Contracts-Derivatives ( Refer Note No 8) 174.28 10.53

Financial liabilities
-Measured at amortised cost

Borrowings (non-current) ( Refer Note No 18 ) 18,559.93 19,128.70
Borrowings (current) ( Refer Note No 18) 22,992.96 23,295.66
Trade payables ( Refer Note No. 23) 6,402.04 3,621.05
Other financial liabilities (non-current) ( Refer Note No 19) 2,998.53 4,753.96
Other financial liabilities (current) ( Refer Note No 18 & 19 ) 4,622.85 4,541.03

- Measured at fair value through Profit & Loss
Forward Contracts-Derivatives ( Refer Note No 19) 17.96 34.67

41.3 Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that 
are recognised and measured at fair value and measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in 
financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of inputs used in determining fair values, the group has 
classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the accounting standards.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are recognised at the amount that would be received to sell an asset 
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date., other than 
in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company’s asset and liabilities, for determining and 
disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation techniques, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3 as described below:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Other techniques for which all the inputs have a significant effect on the recorded fair values are observable, 
either directly or indirectly

Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on 
observable market data."

Note 41.3.1 The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis as at 31st March, 2025:   (D in Lakh)

Particular
As at

31st March 
2025

Fair Value measurement at end of 
the reporting period/year using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Investment in equity instruments-State Bank of India 117.11 117.11 - -
Derivative financial instruments - foreign currency forward 174.28 174.28 - -

Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost
Borrowings (non-current) 18,559.93 - 18,559.93 -

(D in Lakh)
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The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis 
as at 31st March, 2024:       (D in Lakh)

Particulars
As at

31st March 
2024

Fair Value measurement at end of 
the reporting period/year using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Investment in equity instruments-State Bank of India 114.21 114.21 - -
Derivative financial instruments - foreign currency forward 10.53 10.53 - -

Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost
Borrowings (non-current) 19,128.70 - 19,128.70 -

Note 41.3.2 Valuation techniques used to determine Fair value

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most 
relevant data available. The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are recognised at the amount that would 
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1) Fair value of cash and deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current financial assets and liabilities 
measured at amortised cost is approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of 
these instruments. The fair value of other non-current financial assets and liabilities (security deposit taken/given 
and advance to employees) carried at amortized cost is approximately equal to fair value. Hence carrying value and 
fair value is taken same.

2) Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables / borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters 
such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, credit risk and other risk characteristics. Fair value of variable 
interest rate borrowings approximates their carrying values. For fixed interest rate borrowing fair value is determined 
by using the discounted cash flow (DCF) method using discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowings rate. Risk of 
non-performance for the company is considered to be insignificant in valuation.

3) The fair values of derivatives are estimated by using pricing models, where the inputs to those models are based 
on readily observable market parameters basis contractual terms, period to maturity, and market parameters such 
as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and volatility. These models do not contain a high level of subjectivity as 
the valuation techniques used do not require significant judgement, and inputs thereto are readily observable from 
actively quoted market prices. Management has evaluated the credit and non-performance risks associated with its 
derivative counterparties and believe them to be insignificant and not warranting a credit adjustment.

4) The fair values of the quoted equity shares have been done on quoted price of stock exchange as on reporting date.

41.4 Financial risk management

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks which includes market risk (including currency risk, interest 
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company's focus is to ensure liquidity which is sufficient to meet the Company's operational requirements. 
The Company monitors and manages key financial risks so as to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial 
performance. The Company has a risk management policy which covers the risks associated with the financial assets 
and liabilities. The details for managing each of these risks are summarised ahead.

41.5 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market prices, which comprises of three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as 
equity price risk and commodity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, 
deposits, investments, and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks.

41.5.1 Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rate.

The Company derives significant portion of its revenue in foreign currency, exposing it to fluctuations in currency 
movements. The Company has laid down a foreign exchange risk policy as per which senior management team reviews 
and manages the foreign exchange risks in a systematic manner, including regular monitoring of exposures, proper advice 
from market experts, hedging of exposures, etc.

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts, to mitigate foreign 
exchange related risk exposures. Derivative financial instruments relating to a firm commitment or a highly probable 
forecast transaction, are marked to market at every reporting date. The company does not use forward contracts for 
speculative purposes.

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the 
exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Details in respect of the outstanding hedge accounting relationships relating to a firm commitment given below:

(D in Lakh)

Particulars
Year ended 31st March, 2025 Year ended 31st March, 2024

USD EURO INR USD EURO INR
Trade Payables - - - - - -
Trade Receivables 80.81 12.44 8154.85 73.79 4.36 6563.12
Less: Hedged Portion 80.81 12.44 8154.85 73.79 4.36 6563.12
Unhedged Exposure - - - - - -

Sensitivity Analysis

The Following table demonstrate the sensitivity in the foreign exchange rate (USD & EURO) to the Indian Rupees with all 
other variable held constant. The Impact on statement of profit & loss is given below: (D in Lakh)

Particulars
Year ended 31st March, 2025 Year ended 31st March, 2024

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
USD Sensitivity
 INR/USD-increase/(decrease) by 1% - - - -
EURO Sensitivity
 INR/EURO-increase/(decrease) by 1% - - - -
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41.5.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates. In order to optimize the Company's position with regard to interest income and interest 
expenses and to manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management 
by balancing the proportion of the fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in its total portfolio .

(i) The exposure of company borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of reporting period are as follows:
(D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Variable rate borrowings 16,559.93 18,128.70
Fixed rate borrowings 2,000.00 1,000.00
Total borrowings 18,559.93 19,128.70

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and 
non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming 
the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis 
point increase or decrease represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Particulars
Year ended 31st March, 2025 Year ended 31st March, 2024

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Interest rates-increase/(decrease) by 100 basis points. 165.60 (165.60) 181.29 (181.29)

41.5.3 Price risks

The company's exposure to price risk arises from the investment held by the company . To manage its price risk arising from 
investments in marketable securities, the company has very limited exposure and is done in accordance with the company's 
policy. The company's major investments are actively traded in markets. Therefore no sensivity is provided for the same.

41.6 Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial 
loss to the company. To manage this, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking 
into account the financial conditions, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of 
accounts receivable.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of assets and whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through each reporting period. To assess whether there is significant increase 
in credit risk, it considers reasonable and supportive forward looking information such as:

i)  Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business;

ii)  Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty;

iii)  Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty's ability to meet 
its obligation;

iv)  Significant increase in credit risk and other financial instruments of the same counterparty;

v) Significant changes in the value of collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of third party guarantees or 
credit enhancements.

The company's major exposure is from trade receivables, which are unsecured and derived from external customer Credit risk 
on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the company generally invest in deposits with banks and financial institutions with 
high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment 
in quoted securities and certificates of deposit which are funds deposited with the bank for a specified time period etc. 
Other loans are majorly provided to the employees which have very minimal risk of loss.

Expected credit loss for trade receivable on simplified approach :

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables (gross of provision) has been considered from the date the invoice falls due:
(D in Lakh)

Age Bracket As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

0-90 Days 13,796.57 11,253.00
91-180 Days 28.64 105.31
181-365 Days 78.00 34.38
Above 365 Days 318.36 1,112.52
Total 14,221.57 12,505.21
Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired 336.05 408.57
Net Trade Receivables 13,885.52 12,096.64

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits, continuous monitoring of creditworthiness of 
customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

The following table summarizes the change in the loss allowances measured using expected credit loss model (ECL):
(D in Lakh)

Particulars ECL for Trade Receivables
As at 01-04-2023 1,004.47
Provided/(Reversal) during the year (595.90)
As at 31-03-2024 408.57
Provided/(Reversal) during the year (72.52)
As at 31-03-2025 336.05

41.7 Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has established an appropriate 
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the company's short, medium, and long-term funding and 
liquidity management requirements. The company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking 
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching 
the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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The following table detail the company's remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities with agreed repayment 
periods. The table have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest 
date on which the company may be required to pay.

(D in Lakh)

Particulars 0-1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5+ years Total Carrying Amount
31st March 2025

Trade payables 6,402.04 - - - 6,402.04 6,402.04
Other financial liabilities 4,276.90 - - - 4,276.90 4,276.90
Borrowings 26,864.32 5,627.08 6,462.91 2,598.58 41,552.89 41,552.89

31st March 2024
Trade payables 3,621.05 - - - 3,621.05 3,621.05
Other financial liabilities 4,148.25 - - - 4,148.25 4,148.25
Borrowings 26,909.67 7,521.02 4,463.28 3,530.39 42,424.36 42,424.36

41.8 Financing arrangements

The company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of reporting period: (D in Lakh)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Term Loan Facility - 2,370.18

41.9 Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign currency forward contracts to mitigate the risk of 
changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The objective of hedges is to minimize the volatility of C cash 
flows of highly probable forecast transaction. The Company's risk management policy is to hedge around 70% to 90% of 
net exposure with forward exchange contract, having a maturity up to 12 months.

Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periodic prospective effectiveness 
assessments to ensure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument, including 
whether the hedging instrument is expected to offset changes in cash flows of hedged items.

Types of  
hedge and risks

Nominal value (Foreign Currency) Carrying 
amount of 
hedging 

instruments
(D  in Lakh)

Maturity date Hedge 
ratio

Weighted 
average strike 

price/rate
(in D )

USD EURO

USD EURONo. of 
Outstanding 

Contracts

Amount
(D  in 

Lakh)

No. of 
Outstanding 

Contracts

Amount
(D  in 

Lakh)
As at 31st March, 2025

Cash flow hedge-sell 65 152.56 15 27.36 156.31 April 25 - 
September 25 1:1 87.08 93.02

Cash flow hedge-Buy - - - - - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2024

Cash flow hedge-sell 68 170.27 8.00 15.00 (24.14) April 24 - 
October24 1:1 83.39 91.10

Cash flow hedge-Buy - - - - - - - - -

Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial performance (D in Lakh)

Cash Flow hedge

Changes in the value of 
the hedging instruments 

recognised in other 
Comprehensive Income

Hedge 
ineffectiveness 

recognised in profit 
& loss

Amount reclassified 
from cash flow 

hedging reserve to 
profit & loss

Line item affected in 
the statement of profit 

and loss because of 
reclassification

31st March 2025 115.89 - - -
31st March 2024 (71.68) - - -

The Movement in hedging reserve during the year ended 31st March 2025 for derivatives designated as cash flow 
hedge (refer note no. 17) is as follows:   (D in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year (25.95) 27.69
Change in fair value of Effective portion of Cash Flow Hedge Recognised during 
the year 115.89 (71.68)

Amount Reclassified to Profit & Loss account during the period - -
Tax impact on above (29.17) 18.04
Balance at the end of the year 60.77 (25.95)

Sensitivity Analysis

The Following table demonstrate the sensitivity in the foreign exchange rate (USD & EURO) to the Indian Rupees with all 
other variable held constant. The Impact on the other component of Equity arises from foreign forward exchange contract 
designated as cash flow hedge reserve is given below:

(D in Lakh)

Particulars
Year ended 31st March, 2025 Year ended 31st March, 2024

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
USD Sensitivity

INR /USD-increase/(decrease) by 1%-Sell 132.85 (132.85) 141.98 (141.98)
INR /USD-increase/(decrease) by 1%-Buy - - - -

EURO Sensitivity
INR /EURO-increase/(decrease) by 1%-Sell 25.45 (25.45) 13.67 (13.67)
INR /EURO-increase/(decrease) by 1%-Buy - - - -

Note 42. Reconciliation of Financial liabilities (D in Lakh)

Particulars Note No As at
1st April 2024 Cash flows Non Cash As at

31st March 2025
Long term borrowings 18 15,514.69 2,752.23 (3,578.35) 14,688.57
Current Maturities of long term debts 18 3,614.01 (3,321.00) 3,578.35 3,871.36
Short term borrowings excluding current 
maturities of long term debts

18 23,295.66 (302.70) - 22,992.96

Interest Accrued on borrowings 19 67.73 (16.69) - 51.04
Lease liabilities 19 5,181.41 (314.10) (1,504.87) 3,362.44
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(D in Lakh)

Particulars Note No As at
1st April 2023 Cash flows Non Cash As at

31st March 2024
Long term borrowings 18 9,028.04 10,028.35 (3,541.70) 15,514.69
Current Maturities of long term debts 18 2,418.42 (2,346.11) 3,541.70 3,614.01
Short term borrowings excluding current 
maturities of long term debts 18 21,466.79 1,828.87 - 23,295.66

Interest Accrued on borrowings 19 25.69 42.04 - 67.73
Lease liabilities 19 4,242.09 (415.27) 1,354.59 5,181.41

Note 43: Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), The MCA notified Ind AS 117 on 9 September 2024 to be applicable from 1 
April 2024. However, the same was withdrawn vide notification dated 28 September2024 wherein the applicability of Ind 
AS 117 was made subject to notification of IRDAI. IRDAI has not notified Ind AS 117. Therefore, as of now, Ind AS 117 has 
been issued but from when it will be applicable is uncertain. The company is evaluating the impactof the standard on its 
balance sheet, statement of profit and loss and statement of cash flows.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its notification no. G.S.R. 291(E) dated 7th May 2025 has issued an amendment to Ind 
AS 21 providing guidance on determining exchange rate in case of lack of exchangeability. The amendment is effective 
from 1 April 2025. In accordance with the amendment to Ind AS 21 – Lack of Exchangeability, the Company is required to 
estimate the exchange rate using the most reliable inputs available in case there is lack of exchangeability. The currencies 
in which the company has transacted during the current year or previous year were exchangeable into another currency 
within a time frame that allows for a normal administrative delay and through a market or exchange mechanism. 
Accordingly, the amendment to Ind AS 21 has no material impact on the financial position, financial performance and 
cash flows of the company.

Note 44 :

1 In terms of the Master Restructuring Agreement under the CDR Scheme, if, in the opinion of the Lenders, the profitability 
and cash flows of the Company so warrant, the Lenders shall be entitled to right of recompense (ROR) for the reliefs 
and sacrifices extended by lenders within the CDR mechanism. Since the company has paid recompense amount to 
the lenders now there is no recompense amount payable.

2 Rights, Preferences and restriction attached to Preference Shares

The Company had only one class of Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (CRPS) having a par value of C 100/-. 
There were two series of CRPS, carrying differential dividend coupon rates.

First series of Preference Shares carrying a dividend coupon rate of 8% per annum, allotted to lending banks and 
financial institutions, pursuant to the Corporate Debt Restructuring (‘CDR’) Package, were redeemed in four equal 
annual tranches during 2016-2019.

Second series of Preference Shares carrying a dividend coupon rate of 3% per annum, allotted to promoters, against 
infusion of funds, pursuant to the Corporate Debt Restructuring (‘CDR’) Package were redeemable in March 2019. 
The company has taken necessary approvals from board of directors and shareholders for redemption of aforesaid 
Preference Shares in two equal tranches during 2019-2020. First tranche of C 600 Lakh were redeemed in March 2019 
and for second tranche which was becoming due in March 2020, approval for extension of one (1) year towards 
redemption was taken, from the board of directors on 08th August 2019 and from shareholders in the annual general 
meeting held on 19th September 2019. consequently the same were to be redeemed in March 2021. The maturity period 
of redemption of second tranche of aforesaid CRPS was further extended for a period of one year i.e. from March 2021 

to 31 March 2022 after approval was obtained from board of directors in their meeting held on 07th August 2020 and 
shareholders accorded approval in the annual general meeting held on 29th September 2020. In the 2021-22, the 
second tranche of aforesaid CRPS of C 600.00 Lakh was redeemed.

The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees only. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is 
subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Each holder of Preference Shares is 
entitled to one vote per share only on resolutions placed before the company which directly affect the rights attached 
to Preference Shares. The holders of Preference Shares are entitled to a preferential right of repayment of capital 
on winding up vis-à-vis the holders of equity shares. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of shares 
held by the Preference shareholders.

The Board of Directors in meeting held on 28th October, 2021, had approved the accumulated Preference dividend on 
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares amounting to C 377.08 Lakh and C 185.21 Lakh aggregating to C 562.29 
Lakh to the lenders and promoters & their associates respectively after setting off the accumulated losses of the 
previous years. The aforesaid Preference dividend was paid within the stipulated time.

Note 45 : Dividend

In the Financial Year 2021-22, Board of Directors had recommended a dividend of C 2/- per Equity share of the face value 
of C 10/- each amounting to C 830.16 Lakh, which was subsequently approved by the Shareholders of the Company in the 
Annual General Meeting. As on 31st March 2025 out of above declared dividend, C 12.43 Lakh remained unpaid/unclaimed 
and is lying in an account with scheduled bank under unpaid/unclaimed account.

Note 46 : Other Statutory Information

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the 
Company for holding any Benami property.

(ii) The Company does not have any transactions with struck off companies.

(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the 
statutory period,

(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) Title Deeds of all the immovable properties disclosed in the financial statement are held in the name of company.

(vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) 
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(vii) The Company has no subsidiary, associates and joint venture downward.

(viii) The lender of the company has not declared company as willful defaulter and also company has not defaulted in loan 
repayment of loan to the lenders.
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(ix) Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in 
agreement with the books of accounts.

(x) There is no transaction which are not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961

(xi)  The company has used two integrated accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which has a feature 
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the softwares. Further, at database level log was enabled throughout the year, the audit trail has been 
preserved by the company as per statutory requirements for record retention.

Note 47: Approval of financial statements

The financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2025 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorises 
to issue on 08th May 2025.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants MARAL OVERSEAS LIMITED
Firm Registration No.000756N/N500441

Vivek Raut Shekhar Agarwal Shantanu Agarwal
Partner Chairman & Managing Director and CEO Joint Managing Director
Membership No. 097489 DIN: 00066113 DIN: 02314304
UDIN: 25097489BNUISQ3709

Place: Noida (U.P.) Manoj Gupta Sandeep Singh
Date: 8th May, 2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

FCA- 500020 FCS- 9877
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Notice of the 36th Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 36th Annual General Meeting 
(“AGM”) of Members of Maral Overseas Limited will be held 
on Friday, 29th August, 2025 at 2:00 p.m. through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) 
without the physical presence of members at the AGM venue 
to transact the business as set out in this Notice. The venue 
of the AGM shall be deemed to be Registered Office of the 
Company at Maral Sarovar, V. & P. O. Khalbujurg, Tehsil 
Kasrawad, Distt. Khargone - 451 660, Madhya Pradesh. 
The following business will be transacted at the AGM:

Ordinary Business:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 

Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2025 and the Reports of the 
Board of Directors and Auditors’ thereon.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of 
the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2025, the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors’ 
thereon, as circulated to the Members and laid before 
the meeting, be considered, received and adopted.”

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Shantanu 
Agarwal (DIN: 02314304) who retires by rotation and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 152(6) and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 
2014, as amended from time to time (“the Act”), Shri 
Shantanu Agarwal (DIN: 02314304) who retires by 

rotation and being eligible for re-appointment, be and 
is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, 
liable to retire by rotation.”

Special Business:
3. To appoint M/s. Manisha Gupta & Associates, 

Company Secretaries in Practice as Secretarial 
Auditor for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following 
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 
24A and other applicable provisions of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with 
relevant circulars and notifications issued by SEBI from 
time to time (including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in 
force), M/s. Manisha Gupta & Associates, Company 
Secretaries in Practice (COP No. 6808) be and is hereby 
appointed as Secretarial Auditors for a term of 5 (Five) 
consecutive years, to hold office from the conclusion of 
36th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) till the conclusion 
of 41st (Forty First) AGM of the Company to be held 
in the year 2030, at a remuneration to be fixed by the 
Board of Directors of the Company or any Committee of 
the Board of Directors (“the Board”), from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, things 
and to sign all such documents and writings as may 
be necessary to give effect to this resolution and for 
matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.”

mailto:maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com
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4. To ratify the remuneration payable to M/s. K. G. 
Goyal & Co. (Firm Reg. No. 000017) Cost Auditors 
for the financial year 2025-26.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following 
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and the Companies 
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, 
for the time being in force), M/s. K. G. Goyal & Co., 
Cost Accountants, (Firm Reg. No. 000017) who were 
appointed as Cost Auditors by the Board of Directors, to 
conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company 
for the financial year 2025-26, be paid the remuneration 
of C 1 Lakh (Rupees One Lakh Only) plus applicable 
taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 
that may be incurred during the course of audit.”

5. Approval for Voluntary Contribution to bona fide 
and charitable funds under Section 181 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following 
Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
181 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or 
re-enactments thereof), and in view of the negative 
average net profits during the three immediately 
preceding financial years, approval of the members 
be and is hereby accorded for making a voluntary 
contribution of an amount not exceeding C 50,00,000 
(Rupees Fifty Lakh only) in a financial year, towards 
promotion of education, donation for charitable 
purposes, social welfare and/or activities as prescribed 
under Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors 
(including any Committee thereof or any person 
authorised by the Board) be and is hereby authorised to 
take all such steps as may be necessary or expedient 
to give effect to this resolution and to deal with any 
matter incidental thereto.”

6. To approve the alteration of Memorandum of 
Association of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following 
Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 4, 13 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the 
time being in force), and the rules framed thereunder, 
and subject to the approval of the Registrar of 
Companies and/or such other regulatory or statutory 
authorities as may be applicable, the consent of the 
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded 
to alter the Memorandum of Association (MOA) of the 
Company as follows:

a) Clause III(A) of the existing MOA titled “THE MAIN 
OBJECTS TO BE PURSUED BY THE COMPANY ON 
ITS INCORPORATION ARE” be substituted with 
the heading “THE OBJECTS TO BE PURSUED BY 
THE COMPANY ON ITS INCORPORATION ARE”;

b) Clause III(A) of the MOA be altered by inserting 
the following new sub-clause 7 after the 
existing sub-clause 6:

7. To plan, promote, generate, acquire by 
purchase in bulk, develop, distribute 
and accumulate power by wind, solar, 
thermal, atomic, biomass, coal, lignite, gas, 
geothermal or any other form by which 
energy or power can be produced, and to 
transmit, distribute, and supply such power 
for captive consumption by the Company 
and/or its group companies, in accordance 
with applicable laws and regulations.

c) Clause III(B) titled “THE OBJECTS INCIDENTAL 
OR ANCILLARY TO THE ATTAINMENT OF MAIN 
OBJECTS ARE” be substituted with the heading 
“MATTERS WHICH ARE NECESSARY FOR 
FURTHERANCE OF THE OBJECTS SPECIFIED IN 
CLAUSE III(A) ARE” and existing sub-clauses 1 to 
42 thereunder shall remain unchanged;

d) Clause III(C) titled “OTHER OBJECTS” be deleted 
in its entirety;



3

e) Clause IV titled “THE LIABILITY OF THE MEMBERS 
IS LIMITED” be substituted with the following:

“THE LIABILITY OF THE MEMBERS IS LIMITED 
AND THIS LIABILITY IS LIMITED TO THE AMOUNT 
UNPAID, IF ANY, ON THE SHARES HELD BY THEM.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the existing Memorandum 
of Association of the Company, duly modified as 
stated above and subject to such amendments, 
modifications, additions or deletions as may be 
suggested or required by the Registrar of Companies 
or any statutory authority, and agreed to by the Board 
of Directors or any person authorized by the Board, 
be and is hereby adopted as the new Memorandum of 
Association of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Shri Shekhar Agarwal, 
Chairman & Managing Director and CEO, Shri 
Shantanu Agarwal, Joint Managing Director, Shri 
Manoj Gupta, Chief Financial Officer, and Shri Sandeep 
Singh, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the 
Company, be and are hereby severally authorized to 
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, including 
filing of necessary forms with the Registrar of 
Companies, as may be required to give effect to the 
foregoing resolutions.”

7. To approve issuance of Redeemable Non-
Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares on 
private placement basis to the Promoter(s) & 
Promoter Group entities

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following 
Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
42, 55 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Share 
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the Companies 
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, 
including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force and subject to all 
applicable laws, approvals, consents, permissions and 
sanctions as may be necessary from the Reserve Bank 
of India (RBI), appropriate authorities or bodies and in 
accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company, consent of the Members 

be and is hereby accorded to offer, issue and allot 9.25% 
Redeemable Non-Convertible Cumulative Preference 
Shares (RNCPS) to the extent of upto C 30,00,00,000/- 
(Rupees Thirty Crores Only) divided into upto 30,00,000 
Preference shares of C 100/- each (Rupees Hundred 
only), forming part of the authorized capital of the 
Company and be offered and issued in one or more 
tranches, on a Private placement basis through Private 
placement Offer and Application, to entities belonging 
to the Promoter and Promoter Group of the Company, 
on such terms and conditions and manner as may be 
decided by the Board of Directors and/or Committee of 
the Board duly constituted and authorized (hereinafter 
referred to as “Board”), in its absolute discretion in the 
best interest of the Company and on such terms and 
conditions as set out in the explanatory statement 
annexed to the notice convening the meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 43 and Section 55 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of Companies (Share 
capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014:

I. The RNCPS shall be non-participating in surplus 
funds and in surplus assets and profits, on 
winding-up which may remain after the entire 
capital has been repaid;

II. The RNCPS shall carry a preference dividend at 
the rate of 9.25% per annum;

III. The payment of dividend shall be on cumulative 
basis for the RNCPS;

IV. The RNCPS shall be Non-convertible;

V. The RNCPS shall be redeemable on completion of 
10 years from the date of allotment at face value 
of the preference shares;

VI. The RNCPS may be redeemed before completion 
of 10 years subject to discretion of Company 
and subject to consent from majority of RNCPS 
Shareholder(s).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving 
effect to this resolution and for removal of any doubts 
or difficulties, the Board of Directors, Chief Financial 
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Officer and/or the Company Secretary of the Company 
be and are hereby “jointly and/or severally” authorized to 
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and execute 
all such deeds, documents, instruments and writings as 
it may in their absolute discretion deem necessary or 
desirable and pay any fees and commission and incur 
expenses in relation thereto to give, from time to time, 
such directions as may be necessary, expedient, usual 
or proper and to settle any question or doubt that may 
arise in relation thereto or as the Board in its absolute 
discretion may think fit.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 
hereby authorized to decide and approve other 
terms and conditions of the issue of the Redeemable 
Non-Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares and 
shall also be entitled to vary, modify or alter any of the 
terms and conditions, as it may deem fit, subject to the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 
thereunder and such other provisions of the laws, as 
may be applicable.”

By order of the Board of Directors
For Maral Overseas Limited

Sd/-
   Sandeep Singh
Place: Noida (U. P.)    Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Date: 1st August, 2025 M.No. FCS-9877
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NOTES:

1) The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 
102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), setting 
out material facts concerning the Special Businesses 
under item No. 3 to 7 of this Notice, is annexed 
hereto. Details under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and in terms of Secretarial 
Standard-2 (“SS-2”) on General Meeting in respect of 
the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at 
the 36th AGM, are given in Annexure-I of this Notice.

2) Pursuant to General Circular No. 09/2024 dated 
19th September, 2024 issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (“the MCA”) read together with 
previous circulars issued by the MCA in this regard 
(hereinafter referred as “MCA Circulars”) and Circular 
No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated 
3rd October, 2024, issued by the Securities Exchange 
Board of India (“the SEBI”) read together with previous 
circulars issued by the SEBI (hereinafter referred as 
“SEBI Circulars”) (MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars 
are collectively referred as “Applicable Circulars”), the 
Companies are permitted to hold the AGM through 
Video Conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means (“VC/
OAVM”), without physical presence of Members 
at common venue. Hence, in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act, Listing Regulations and read with 
Applicable Circulars, the 36th AGM of the Company is 
being held through VC/OAVM. The Registered Office of 
the Company shall be deemed venue for the 36th AGM.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS FOR PARTICIPATION AT 
36th AGM AND E-VOTING
3) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, SS-2 and in accordance with the 
Applicable Circulars referred to in Note No. 2, the 
Company is providing facilities of VC/OAVM and 
remote e-Voting (including e-Voting during the AGM) 
to its Members at the 36th AGM through National 
Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”). The VC/OAVM 
will have a capacity to allow at least 1000 members to 
participate in the AGM and such participation shall be 
on a first-come first-served basis.

The instructions for participation by the Members and 
for remote e-Voting including e-Voting during the AGM 
are given separately in the subsequent paragraphs. 
Further, the attendance of the Members attending/
participating 36th AGM through VC/OAVM, shall be 
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum 
under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Applicable Circulars. However in case of joint 
members, Member whose name appears as the first 
holder in the order of names as per the Register of 
Members of the Company, will be entitled to vote at 
the AGM through e-voting.

4) Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the Applicable 
Circulars through VC/OAVM, the requirement of 
physical attendance of members has been dispensed 
with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of 
proxy(ies) by the members will not be available for this 
AGM and hence the proxy form, attendance slip and 
route map of this AGM are not annexed to this notice.

5) Smt. Manisha Gupta (Membership No. FCS 6378) 
Practicing Company Secretary, has been appointed 
as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-Voting 
process and voting during the AGM in a fair and 
transparent manner.

Electronic dispatch of Annual Report and process for 
registration of email address
6) a. In accordance with the Applicable Circulars, 

the Notice of 36th AGM and the Annual Report 
for the financial year 2024-25 are being sent by 
electronic mode to those Members whose email 
addresses are registered with the Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent and/or National Securities 
Depository Limited (“NSDL”)/Central Depository 
Securities Limited (“CDSL”) (collectively referred 
“Depositories”). All the members whose names 
are recorded in the Register of Members or in 
the List of Beneficial Owners maintained by the 
depositories as on Friday, 1st August, 2025 will be 
considered for the purpose of sending the Notice 
of AGM and the Annual Report. The Company will 
send the physical copy of Annual Report 2024-25 
to those Members who request the same at 
maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com mentioning 
their Folio No. /DP ID and Client ID. As per SEBI 
Circular dated 31st December, 2024, the Company 
will send letter containing path to download 
Notice and Annual Report to those members 

mailto:maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com
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whose email address are not registered with RTA, 
Company and/or Depositories.

 Notice convening 36th AGM and Annual 
Report for the financial year 2024-25 can be 
accessed from the website of the Company 
at www.maraloverseas.com, and websites 
of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com and National Stock Exchange 
of India Limited at www.nseindia.com and also 
available on the website of NSDL (agency for 

providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. 
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b. To support the ‘Green Initiative’ and to receive 
communication from the Company, Members 
who have not yet registered their email addresses 
are requested to register the same with their 
Depository Participant in case the shares are held 
in dematerialized form and with the Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent in case the shares are held 
in physical form through Form ISR-1.

c. Members are requested to provide/update their KYC, nomination and bank account details to MCS Share 
Transfer Agent Limited, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (“RTA”) of the Company or Depository Participant 
(“DP”). The process of registering the same is mentioned below:

Members holding shares in physical form:

For updating 
email address 
and Telephone/ 
mobile numbers

In case Members holding shares in physical form and whose KYC details are updated:
Members shall provide duly filled and signed form ISR-1 along with self-attested copies of 
PAN Card and Aadhaar Card, to MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited, Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent (“RTA”) of the Company.

Note: members whose KYC are not updated, shall require to update their KYC along with email 
address as mentioned herein below.

KYC and Bank 
details

In case Members holding shares in physical form and whose KYC details are not updated:
Members holding shares in physical form shall provide duly filled and signed form ISR-1 
along with self-attested copies of PAN card and Aadhaar card, Cancelled Cheque or Bank 
Passbook/Statement attested by the Bank, to RTA.

For updating signature:
In case of mismatch of signature or updation of signature, Members in addition to the above 
documents shall provide duly filled form ISR-2 attested by the Banker.

Nomination

Members whose nominee details are not updated are requested to provide duly filled and 
signed:

 • Form SH-13 for updating the details of Nominee; or
 • Form ISR-3 for opting out of Nomination; or
 • Form SH-14 for change in existing Nomination.

Members holding shares in dematerialized form:
Members are requested to contact their Depository Participants (DP) to register their email address, KYC, bank 
account and/or Nomination details in their demat account, as per the process advised by their DP.

Members may download the relevant forms viz. ISR-1, ISR-2, ISR-3, ISR-4, SH-13 and SH-14 from the website of 
the Company at https://www.maraloverseas.com/intimationtostock.php.

Members are requested to send the aforesaid relevant forms along with necessary documents to the RTA of 
the Company at MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited, (Unit: Maral Overseas Limited),. 179-180, DSIDC Shed, 3rd 
Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I, New Delhi - 110020, Phone No. 011- 41406149-51.

In case of any queries /difficulties in registering the email address, members may write to RTA at admin@
mcsregistrars.com or the Company at maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com.

http://www.maraloverseas.com
http://www.bseindia.com
http://www.nseindia.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com
https://www.maraloverseas.com/intimationtostock.php
mailto:admin@mcsregistrars.com
mailto:admin@mcsregistrars.com
mailto:maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com
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7) Non-Resident Indian members are requested to inform RTA/ respective DPs immediately about:

i) the change in the residential status on return to India for permanent settlement; and

ii) the particulars of the bank account(s) maintained in India with complete name, branch, and account type, 
account number and address of the bank, if not furnished earlier.

8) In terms of Regulation 40(1) of Listing Regulations read with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/
CIR/2022/8 dated 25th January, 2022, as amended from time to time, all service request with respect to transfer, 
transmission, transposition of securities, claim of shares from unclaimed suspense account etc. shall be effected 
only in dematerialized form. In view of the same, Members are advised to dematerialize the shares held by them in 
physical form. Members can contact the Company or RTA, for assistance in this regard.

9) Special Window for re-lodgment of Transfer Request:

In terms of SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD/P/CIR/2025/97 dated 2nd July, 2025, the transfer requests of 
physical shares which were rejected and returned to the lodger prior to 1st April, 2019 and were not re-lodged before 
the extended timeline of 31st March, 2021, due to deficiency in the documents/process/or otherwise, can be re-lodged 
after rectifying the errors, for registration of transfer within period of Six months i.e. from 7th July, 2025 to 6th January, 
2026 with Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (‘RTA) or Company

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents
(Unit: Maral Overseas Limited)
MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited
179-180, DSIDC Shed,
3rd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase - 1, New Delhi – 110020,
Phone No. 011-41406149 – 51,
Email: helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com

Corporate Office of Company
To Company Secretary
Maral Overseas Limited
Bhilwara Towers, A-12, Sector-1,
Noida - 201 301 (U.P)
Phone Nos. : 0120- 4390300,4390000
E-mail: corp.sec@lnjbhilwara.com,
maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com

Transferred Shares will only be issued in demat mode once all the documents are found in order by RTA. The lodger 
must have a demat account and provide its Client Master List (‘CML’), along with the transfer documents and share 
certificate, while lodging the documents for transfer with RTA. Transfer requests submitted after 6th January, 2026 will 
not be accepted/entertained by the Company/RTA.

10) The details of unpaid/ unclaimed dividend of the 
financial year 2021-22 are available on the website 
of the Company at www.maraloverseas.com. 
Members who had not claimed their dividend are 
to request encash/claim their unpaid/unclaimed 
dividend by requesting the Company and/or the RTA. 
Members may note that pursuant to section 124 and 
125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor 
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting 
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”), 
unpaid/unclaimed dividend amount along with the 
shares in respect of which dividend remain unpaid/
unclaimed by the Members for 7 (seven) years shall 
be transferred to the IEPF Authority.

11) SEBI vide Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/ 
CIR/2023/131 dated 31st July, 2023, and SEBI/HO/
OIAE/ OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/135 dated 4th August, 
2023, read with Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/ OIAE/
OIAE_IAD-1/P/ CIR/2023/145 dated 31st July, 2023 
(updated as on 20th December, 2023), has established 
a common Online Dispute Resolution Portal (“ODR 
Portal”) for resolution of disputes arising in the Indian 
Securities Market. Pursuant to above-mentioned 
circulars, post exhausting the option to resolve their 
grievances with the RTA/ Company directly and 
through existing SCORES platform, the investors can 
initiate dispute resolution through the ODR Portal 
(https://smartodr.in/login) and the same can also be 
accessed through the Company’s website https://
www.maraloverseas.com/otherdisclos.php.

mailto:helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com
mailto:corp.sec@lnjbhilwara.com
mailto:maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com
http://www.maraloverseas.com
https://smartodr.in/login
https://www.maraloverseas.com/otherdisclos.php
https://www.maraloverseas.com/otherdisclos.php
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12) PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM 
BY MEMBERS

i. Members, whose names appear in the Register of 
Members / Beneficial Owners as on the Cut-Off 
date i.e. Friday, 22nd August, 2025 may cast their 
vote electronically. The remote e-Voting period 
begins on Tuesday, 26th August, 2025 at 9:00 
a.m. and ends on Thursday, 28th August, 2025 at 
5:00 p.m. The remote e-Voting module shall be 
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The voting 
right of Members shall be in proportion to their 
share in the paid-up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the Cut-Off date i. e. Friday, 
22nd August, 2025.

ii. Members, who acquire shares of the Company after 
dispatch of the notice and hold shares as on the Cut-Off 
Date i.e. Friday, 22nd August, 2025 may obtain the login 
ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.
co.in or admin@mcsregistrars.com or helpdeskdelhi@
mcsregistrars.com. Individual Demat Account Holder 
may follow the process mentioned in Step 1: Access 
to NSDL e-Voting system.

iii. The details of the process and manner for remote 
e-Voting are explained herein below:

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system 
consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

 Step 1: Access to NSDL E-Voting System

 (A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual Members holding shares in demat mode

Type of Members Login Method
Individual Members 
holding shares in 
demat mode with 
NSDL

I. NSDL IDeAS facility

 If you are already registered, follow the below steps:

1. Visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a 
Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” 
which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will need to enter your existing User ID and Password. 
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under 
Value added services.

4. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see 
e-Voting page.

5. Click on options available against Company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting and e-voting during 
the meeting.

 If you are not registered, follow the below steps

a. Option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.

b. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/
SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

c. Please follow steps given above points 1 to 5.

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:admin@mcsregistrars.com
mailto:helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com
mailto:helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
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Type of Members Login Method
II. e-Voting website of NSDL

1. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit 
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code 
as shown on the screen.

4. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on options available against the company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting and e-voting during the meeting.

III. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility 
by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

Individual Members 
holding shares in 
demat mode with 
CDSL

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi /Easiest facility, can login through their existing 
user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without 
any further authentication. The users to login Easi/Easiest are requested to visit CDSL 
website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System My Easi Tab and then 
use your existing my easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi /Easiest user will be able to see e-Voting option for 
eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 
Company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of 
the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting and e-voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also 
links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user 
can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL 
website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System My Easi Tab and then 
click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account 
Number and PAN No. from an e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. 
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see 
the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

NSDL Mobile App is available on 

� App Store  Google Play

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com
http://www.cdslindia.com
http://www.cdslindia.com
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Type of Members Login Method
Individual Members 
(holding shares 
in demat mode) 
login through 
their Depository 
Participants (“DP”)

1. You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your DP 
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.

2. Once logged in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will 
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 
you can see e-Voting feature.

3. Click on Company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected 
to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting and e-voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Members holding shares in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depository 
i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Members holding shares 
in demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a 
request at evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000

Members holding shares 
in demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a 
request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

(B) Login Method for e-Voting for Members other than Individual Members holding shares in demat mode and 
Members holding shares in physical mode

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by clicking the URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen.

4. Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ 
with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on 
e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

5. Your User ID details are given below:

Manner of holding shares i.e. 
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical Your User ID is:

a)  For Members who hold shares 
in demat account with NSDL

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then 
your user ID is IN300***12******

b)  For Members who hold shares 
in demat account with CDSL

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user ID 
is 12**************

c)  For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID 
is 101456001***

mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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6. Password details for Members other than 
Individual Members are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, 
then you can use your existing password to 
login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for 
the first time, you will need to retrieve the 
‘initial password’ which was communicated 
to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 
password’, you need to enter the ‘initial 
password’ and the system will force you to 
change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

i. If your email ID is registered in your demat 
account or with the Company, your ‘initial 
password’ is communicated to you on your 
email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and 
open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the 
.pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file 
is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 
8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. 
The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your 
‘initial password’.

ii. If your email ID is not registered, please 
follow steps mentioned above in Point 
7(c)-For updating email address and 
Telephone/ mobile numbers.

7. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the 
“Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If 
you are holding shares in your demat 
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available 
on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are 
holding shares in physical mode) option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by 
aforesaid two options, you can send a request 

at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat 
account number/folio number, your PAN, 
your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time 
Password) based login for casting the votes 
on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

8. After entering your password, tick on Agree 
to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting 
on the check box.

9. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button

10. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page 
of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL 
E-Voting System

Follow the below mentioned steps to cast your vote 
electronically on NSDL e-Voting system:

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able 
to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you 
are holding shares and whose voting cycle is 
in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to 
cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
and e-voting during the AGM.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the 
Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate 
options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify 
the number of shares for which you wish to 
cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast 
successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast 
by you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you 
will not be allowed to modify your vote.

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
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iv. Process for those Members whose email ids are not 
registered with the depositories for procuring user 
id and password and registration of e mail ids for 
e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice

a) In case shares are held in physical mode please 
provide Folio No., Name of member, scanned 
copy of the share certificate (front and back), 
PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN 
card), Aadhaar (self-attested scanned copy 
of Aadhaar Card) by email to maral.investor@
lnjbhilwara.com.

b) In case shares are held in demat mode, please 
provide DPID-Client ID (8 digit DPID + 8 digit Client 
ID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master 
or copy of Consolidated Account statement, 
PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAAR (self-attested scanned copy of 
Aadhaar Card) to maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.
com. If you are an Individual Members holding 
securities in demat mode, you are requested 
to refer to the login method explained at step 1 
(A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for Individual 
Members holding shares in demat mode.

c) Alternatively, members may send a request 
to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id 
and password for e-voting by providing above 
mentioned documents.

v. General Guidelines for Members

a) Institutional Investors and Corporate Members (i.e. 
other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) intending to 
appoint their authorised representatives pursuant 
to Sections 112 and 113 of the Act, as the case 
may be, to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM or 
to vote through remote e-Voting are requested 
to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG format) of 
the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority Letter, 
etc., to the Scrutinizer through e-mail at manisha.
pcs@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@
nsdl.co.in and maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com. 
Institutional Members (i.e. other than individuals, 
HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board 
Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter 
etc. by clicking on “Upload Board Resolution / 
Authority Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” tab 
in their login.

b) It is strongly recommended not to share your 
password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. Login to 
the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct 
password. In such an event, you will need to go 
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available 
on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

c) In case of any queries, you may refer the 
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Members 
and e-voting user manual for Members available 
at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com 
or call on: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to 
(Name of NSDL Official) at evoting@nsdl.com.

vi. Instructions for Members for e-Voting on the day 
of AGM

a) The procedure for e-Voting on the day of AGM 
is same as the instructions mentioned above for 
remote e-Voting.

b) Only those Members, who will be present in the 
AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolutions through 
remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred 
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through 
e-Voting system in the AGM.

c) Members who have voted through Remote 
e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM 
through VC /OAVM. However, they will not be 
eligible to vote again at the AGM.

d) The details of the person who may be contacted 
for any grievances connected with the facility for 
e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same 
person mentioned for Remote e-Voting.

vii. Procedure for joining the 36th AGM through VC/
OAVM

a) Members may follow the steps mentioned 
above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. 
After successful login, you can see “VC/OAVM 
link” placed under “Join Meeting” menu against 
the company name. Click on VC/OAVM link 
placed under Join Meeting menu.

b) Members are requested to use Internet with a good 
speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

mailto:maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com
mailto:maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com
mailto:maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com
mailto:maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:manisha.pcs@gmail.com
mailto:manisha.pcs@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
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c) Facility to join the Meeting shall be opened thirty 
(30) minutes before the scheduled time of the 
Meeting and shall be kept open throughout the 
proceedings of the Meeting.

13) PROCEDURE FOR SPEAKER REGISTRATION OR TO 
RAISE QUESTIONS/ QUERIES

a. Members who have any questions/queries on the 
financial statements or any of the agenda item 
proposed in the Notice of 36th AGM may send 
their questions/queries at least 7 days in advance 
i.e. Friday, 22nd August, 2025, through email at 
maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com by mentioning 
their name, DP ID and Client ID /folio number 
and mobile number.

b. Members, who would like to express their views 
or ask questions during the AGM may register 
themselves as a speaker by sending their request 
from their registered Email ID mentioning their 
name, DP ID and Client ID /folio number and 
mobile number at maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.
com at least 7 days in advance before the start 
of the 36th AGM i.e. Friday, 22nd August, 2025 by 
5:00 p.m. Those Members who have registered 
themselves as a speaker will be allowed to ask 
questions during the 36th AGM, depending upon 
the availability of time.

c. Members requiring any assistance/support 
for participation before or during the AGM, can 
contact NSDL on evoting@nsdl.com or can call at 
022 - 4886 7000 or can contact Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, 
Senior Manager, at the designated E-mail ID at 
evoting@nsdl.com.

d. Procedure for inspection of documents:

i. The relevant documents referred to in the 
AGM Notice shall be avail for inspection on 
the website of the Company.

ii. The Register of Directors and Key 
Managerial  Personnel and their 
shareholding, maintained under Section 

170 of the Act and the Register of Contracts 
or Arrangements in which the Directors are 
interested, maintained under Section 189 of 
the Act shall be available electronically for 
inspection by the members during the AGM 
upon login at NSDL e-Voting system.

14) ANNOUNCEMENT OF VOTING RESULTS OF AGM

a. The Scrutinizer will, after conclusion of e-Voting 
at the Meeting, scrutinise the votes cast at the 
Meeting through e-Voting and Remote e-Voting 
and make a consolidated Scrutinizer’s report of 
the votes cast in favour or against, if any, and 
submit the same to the Chairman of the Meeting 
or a person authorised by him in writing who 
shall countersign the same. The Chairman or any 
other person authorised by the Chairman, shall 
declare the results within two working days of the 
conclusion of the AGM. The said results along with 
the report of the Scrutinizer will also be placed on 
the website of the Company www.maraloverseas.
com and NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com 
and shall also be displayed at the registered and 
corporate office of the Company. The results 
shall simultaneously be submitted to the Stock 
Exchange(s) and available at www.bseindia.com 
and www.nseindia.com. The resolutions will be 
deemed to be passed on the date of AGM subject 
to receipt of the requisite number of votes in 
favour of the resolutions.

b. The recorded transcript of 36th AGM shall also be 
made available on the website of the Company 
www.maraloverseas.com.

c. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, 
the resolutions proposed in the Notice shall be 
deemed to be passed on the date of the Meeting 
i.e. Friday, 29th August, 2025.

By order of the Board of Directors

For Maral Overseas Limited

Sd/-
   Sandeep Singh
Place: Noida (U. P.)    Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Date: 1st August, 2025 M.No. FCS-9877

mailto:maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com
mailto:maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com
mailto:maral.investor@lnjbhilwara.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
http://www.maraloverseas.com
http://www.maraloverseas.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com
http://www.bseindia.com
http://www.nseindia.com
http://www.maraloverseas.com
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Explanatory Statements pursuant to section 102 (1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013

ITEM NO. 3
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 (“Rules”)and Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (”SEBI LODR”) the Audit Committee and the Board 
of Directors at their respective meetings held on 8th May, 
2025 have approved and recommended the appointment 
of M/s. Manisha Gupta & Associates, Peer Reviewed Firm 
of Company Secretaries in Practice (COP No. 6808) as 
Secretarial Auditor for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years 
to hold office from the conclusion of 36th Annual General 
Meeting (“AGM”) till the conclusion of 41st (Forty First) AGM 
of the Company to be held in the year 2030 on following 
terms and conditions:

 • Proposed Fees: C 75,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five 
Thousand only) plus out-of-pocket, travelling 
expenses and taxes as applicable from time to time, for 
the financial year 2025-26 for the purpose of audit, with 
the power to alter and vary the terms and conditions of 
appointment, revision including upward revision in the 
remuneration during the subsequent year(s) of their 
term, as determined by the Board in consultation with 
the Secretarial Auditor and as per the commendation 
of the Audit Committee. The proposed fees is based 
on knowledge, expertise, industry experience, time and 
efforts required to be put in by them, which is in line 
with the industry benchmark.

 • Basis of recommendations: The recommendations 
are based on the fulfilment of the eligibility criteria & 
qualification prescribed under the Act & Rules made 
thereunder and SEBI LODR with regard to secretarial 
audit, experience of the firm, capability, independent 
assessment, audit experience and also based on 
the evaluation of the quality of audit work done by 
them in the past.

 • Credentials: M/s. Manisha Gupta & Associates (COP 
No. 6808), is a reputed firm of Company Secretaries 
in Practice specialized in Secretarial Audit and other 
corporate law matters. The firm is registered with the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India and has an 
experience of more than 20 years in providing various 
corporate law services.

M/s. Manisha Gupta & Associates have given their 
consent to act as Secretarial Auditor of the Company and 
confirmed that their aforesaid appointment would be within 
the prescribed limits as specified under and SEBI LODR. 
They have also confirmed that they are not disqualified to 
be appointed as Secretarial Auditors in terms of provisions 
of the Act, Rules and SEBI LODR.

Accordingly, consent of Members is sought for passing an 
Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 3 of this Notice 
for appointment and fixing of remuneration of Secretarial 
Auditor for term of 5 (Five) consecutive years from the 
conclusion of this AGM till the conclusion of 41st AGM.

Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item 
No. 3 for the approval of Members of the Company.

No director, key managerial personnel or their relatives is 
interested in or concerned, financially or otherwise, in the 
proposed resolution.

ITEM NO. 4
Members may note that the Board of Directors in their 
meeting held on 8th May, 2025, on the recommendation of 
the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and 
remuneration of M/s. K. G. Goyal & Co., Cost Accountants as 
Cost Auditor to conduct the audit of the cost records for the 
financial year 2025-26 at a remuneration of C 1 lakh (Rupees 
One Lakh Only) plus applicable tax and reimbursement of 
out of pocket expenses that may be incurred during the 
course of Audit.

In accordance with provisions of Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Cost Records 
and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the 
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor has to be ratified 
by the Members of the Company.

Accordingly consent of Members is sought for passing an 
Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 4 of this Notice 
for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost 
Auditor for the financial year 2024-25.

Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item 
No. 4 for the approval of Members of the Company.

No director, key managerial personnel or their relatives is 
interested in or concerned, financially or otherwise, in the 
proposed resolution.
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ITEM NO. 5
Members may note that the Company has been contributing 
over the years to promote education and social welfare. 
One such long-standing initiative has been its association 
with Vivekanand Vidya Vihar School, where support is 
extended towards the education of underprivileged and 
RTE (Right to Education) students. Although the Company 
does not have any CSR obligation under Section 135 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year 2025–26 
owing to losses incurred in each of the preceding three 
financial years, the Board of Directors considered the 
proposal to continue extending financial support to the 
said school, particularly the requirement for replacement 
of school buses that have completed their useful life as per 
applicable norms.

In terms of Section 181 of the Act, the Board of Directors 
may contribute to bona fide charitable and other funds, 
however, where the proposed contribution in any financial 
year exceeds 5% of the average net profits of the Company 
during the three (3) immediately preceding financial years, 
prior approval of Members is required. Since the Company’s 
average net profit for the said period is negative, any 
contribution, regardless of the amount, requires Members' 
approval by way of a special resolution.

Accordingly, the Board proposes to make a voluntary 
contribution of an amount not exceeding C 50,00,000 (Rupees 
Fifty Lakh only) in a financial year, towards promotion of 
education, social welfare, and/or such other activities as 
prescribed under Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. 
This contribution is intended to support initiatives in line 
with the Company’s values and its ongoing commitment 
to social responsibility.

Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item 
No. 5 for the approval of Members of the Company.

No director, key managerial personnel or their relatives is 
interested in or concerned, financially or otherwise, in the 
proposed resolution.

ITEM NO. 6
Members may note that Madhya Pradesh Electricity 
Regulatory Commission (MPERC) vide its order dated 
3rd July 2024 has notified a procedure under MPERC 
(Verification of Captive Generating Plants and Captive 
Users) Regulations, 2023. As per clause 3.1.2(a)(ii) of the 
said order, companies generating electricity for captive 

consumption are required to submit a certified copy of their 
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association 
evidencing the inclusion of “generation of electricity for 
captive consumption” as one of their objects.

Presently, the Object Clause of the Memorandum of 
Association of the Company does not contain any 
provision in respect of generation of electricity for captive 
consumption. In order to comply with the aforesaid 
regulatory requirement and to enable the Company to 
undertake captive power generation activities for its own 
and/or 'group companies' consumption, it is proposed to 
amend the Object Clause accordingly.

Additionally, the existing Memorandum of Association of 
the Company was framed under provisions of erstwhile 
the Companies Act, 1956 and the same is required to be 
aligned with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013, by 
updating clause headings, deleting the “Other Objects” 
clause, and making necessary changes, wherever required 
in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The draft of the amended Memorandum of Association 
is available for inspection at the registered office of the 
Company during business hours and it is also placed at 
the website of the Company www.maraloverseas.com.

Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item 
No. 6 for the approval of Members of the Company.

No director, key managerial personnel or their relatives is 
interested in or concerned, financially or otherwise, in the 
proposed resolution.

ITEM NO. 7
In view of decision taken by the Board of Directors of 
the Company in their meetings held on 1st August, 2025, 
where Board have decided to raise funds in order to meet 
immediate requirement of funds for the purpose of meeting 
out working capital and capital expenditure requirement 
of the Company by way of issuance of Redeemable 
Non-Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares.

The issuance of Redeemable Non-Convertible Cumulative 
Preference Shares (“RNCPS”) would enable the Company to 
augment immediate requirement of funds towards meeting 
some capital expenditure as well as working capital 
requirement and simultaneously will maintain its capital 
base at reasonable levels and also without any change in 
the existing equity capital structure.

http://www.maraloverseas.com
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As per Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 
2014, a Company shall not make a private placement 
of its securities unless the proposed offer of securities 
or invitation to subscribe securities has been previously 
approved by the Members of the company, by a Special 
Resolution, for each of the Offers or Invitations. Further, Rule 
9(1) (a) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) 
Rules, 2014 requires issuance of preference shares to be 
authorized by passing a Special Resolution in the general 
meeting of the Company.

The Board in its meeting held on 1st August, 2025 approved 
the issuance of fresh upto 30,00,000 (Thirty Lakh Only), 9.25% 
Redeemable Non-Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares 
(“RNCPS”) of face value of C 100/- each (Rupees Hundred 
only) at par, amounting upto C 30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty 
Crores only), on Private Placement basis subject to approval 
of the Members.

A statement of disclosures as required under Rule 9(3) 
of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 
2014 read with Rule 14 of the Company (Prospectus and 
Allotment of Securities)Rules, 2014 and the terms of the 
issue are as under:

a) The size of the issue and number of RNCPS to be 
issued and nominal value of each share:

Upto 30,00,000 (Thirty Lakh Only), 9.25% Redeemable 
Non-Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares 
(“RNCPS”) of face value of C 100/- each (Rupees 
Hundred only) at par, amounting upto C 30,00,00,000/- 
(Rupees Thirty Crores only).

b) The nature of such shares i.e. cumulative or non-
cumulative, participating or non-participating, 
convertible or non-convertible:

 Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference 
Shares.

c) The objectives of the issue:

To augment immediate requirement of funds towards 
meeting working capital requirement as well as some 
capital expenditure and simultaneously will maintain 
its capital base at reasonable levels and also without 
any change in the existing equity capital structure.

d) The manner of issue of shares and time schedule:

The said RNCPS are proposed to be issued on a 
private placement basis through circulation of private 
placement offer letter, within 12 months from the date 
of approval by the Members.

e) The price at which such shares are proposed to be 
issued:

The preference shares are proposed to be issued at 
the face value of C 100/- per share.

f) The basis on which the price has been arrived at:

Considering the Non-convertible nature of the 
preference shares, the preference shares are being 
issued at C 100/- per RNCPS and a valuation report 
dated 1st August, 2025 from independent registered 
valuer M/s. Kapil Dev Dhir, Chartered Accountant, 
IBBI Registered Valuer (IBBI Regn No.: IBBI/
RV/06/2021/14028 and ICAI RVO Enr No.: ICAIRVO/06/
RV-P004/2021-2022), having address at FF-101, 1st 
Floor, 96, Transport Centre, Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi 
has been obtained to confirm the Issue Price of RNCPS.

g) The terms of issue, including terms and rate of 
dividend on each share, etc.:

The proposed Preference shares shall be issued to the 
Promoter/Promoter Group of the Company on a private 
placement basis. The rate of dividend shall be 9.25% 
per annum from the date of allotment on proportionate 
basis to the financial year. The preference shares shall 
be Cumulative and Non-participating. The preference 
shares shall have voting rights as per Section 47(2) of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

h) The terms of redemption, including the tenure of 
redemption, redemption of shares at premium and 
if the preference shares are convertible, the terms 
of conversion:

The proposed preference shares are redeemable after 
completion of a period of 10 years from the date of 
allotment at face value of RNCPS. However RNCPS 
may be redeemed before completion of 10 years 
subject to discretion of Company and subject to 
consent from majority of RNCPS Shareholders.

i) The manner and modes of redemption:

The proposed preference shares shall be redeemed in 
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 
read with relevant rules as amended from time to time.
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j) Current Equity shareholding pattern of the company:

Sr.
No. Category No. of Shares

Held
% of share 

Holding
A Promoters’ holding :
1. Indian:

Individuals/ HUF 28,17,273 6.79
Bodies Corporate 2,82,91,956 68.16
Trust - -

2. Foreign Promoters - -
Sub Total (A) 3,11,09,229 74.95

B Non-Promoters’ holding:
1. Institutional Investor(s):

Mutual Funds 1,000 0.00
Venture Capital Funds - -
Alternate Investment Funds - -
Foreign Venture Capital Investors - -
Foreign Portfolio Investors Category I 26,638 0.06
Foreign Portfolio Investors Category II - -
Financial Institutions/Banks 300 0.00
Insurance Companies - -
Provident Funds/Pension Funds - -
Any Other (Specify) (Foreign Institution Investors) 6,000 0.01
Trust - -

2. Central Government/State Government(s)/President of India - -
3. Non-Institution Investors

Individual Members holding nominal share capital up to C 2 Lakhs 49,05,423 11.82
Individual Members holding nominal share capital in excess of C 2 Lakhs 26,94,943 6.49
NBFCs Registered with RBI - -
Employee Trusts - -
Any Other - -
Non- Resident Indians 1,16,043 0.28
HUF 4,47,671 1.08
Bodies Corporate 21,68,274 5.22
Foreign Companies - -
Clearing Member 32,479 0.08
Trust - -
Sub Total (B) 1,03,98,771 25.05
TOTAL (A+B) 4,15,08,000 100.00

C. Employee Stock Grant Scheme (ESGS) Grant Outstanding - -
Custodian/ DR Holder - -
Sub Total (C) - -
GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) 4,15,08,000 100.00

 Note: The pre-preferential shareholding pattern is prepared on the basis of 30th June, 2025
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k) The expected dilution in equity share capital upon 
conversion of preference shares:

Not applicable, since the proposed preference shares 
to be issued are non-convertible.

l) Preference shareholding pattern as on date of this 
notice:

Not Applicable, there is no preference shares issued 
and outstanding as on date of this notice.

m) Contribution being made by the promoters or 
directors either as part of the offer or separately in 
furtherance of objects:

The Promoter & Promoter Group entities (including 
Associate Companies) of the Company will subscribe 
to the entire issue.

n) Principle terms of assets charged as securities:

Not Applicable

The issue of Preference Shares is in accordance with the 
provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company. 
There is no default in redemption or payment of dividend 
on preference shares.

As per the provisions of Section 42, 55 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Share Capital and 
Debentures) Rules, 2014, The Companies (Prospectus and 
Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, the consent of the 
Members is required to be sought to empower/authorize 
the Board of Directors to offer, issue and allot upto 30,00,000 
(Thirty Lakh Only), 9.25% Redeemable Non-Convertible 
Cumulative Preference Shares (“RNCPS”) of face value of 
C 100/- each (Rupees Hundred only) at par, amounting upto 
C 30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Crores only), on a private 
placement basis to the Promoters & Promoter Group, 
on such terms and conditions and manner as may be 
decided by the Board, in its absolute discretion in the best 
interest of the Company. The resolution has accordingly 
been placed before the members for its approval and 
the Board recommends resolution no. 7 to be passed as 
Special Resolution.

The Directors or Key Managerial Personnel/or their relatives 
(to the extent of their directorship/ shareholding interest in 
the Company and / or other promoter entities) are deemed 
to be concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, either 
directly or indirectly, in passing of the resolution at Item No. 
7 of the accompanying Notice.

By order of the Board of Directors
For Maral Overseas Limited

Sd/-
   Sandeep Singh
Place: Noida (U. P.)    Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Date: 1st August, 2025 M.No. FCS-9877
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ANNEXURE I

(Pursuant to the provisions of Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS-2) and Regulation 36(3) of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS RETIRING BY ROTATION AT THE 36TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Name of Director Shri Shantanu Agarwal
DIN 02314304
Category Promoter, Joint Managing Director
Age (in years) 39
Date of Appointment /re-appointment  • Initial date of appointment on the Board is 22nd April, 2014.

 • The preceding date of re-appointment as Joint Managing Director is 
19th June, 2025.

Inter-se relationship with other Directors Son of Shri Shekhar Agarwal
Qualifications Graduate in B.S. in Electrical and Computer Engineering – from USA and 

MBA from Wharton school of business (University of Pennsylvania).
Brief Profile, Expertise in specific functional 
areas

Shri Shantanu Agarwal, aged 39 years, is a young industrialist who brings 
a unique blend of technical and business expertise to the textile industry. 
He has a strong educational background including a B.S. in Electrical 
& Computer Engineering from Carnegie Mellon University and a MBA 
degree from the prestigious Wharton School of Business (University of 
Pennsylvania), USA.

Shri Shantanu Agarwal joined the Board of Maral Overseas Limited in 
the year 2014, and was subsequently appointed as a Joint Managing 
Director of the Company in 2020. He is actively involved in management, 
administration, and day-to-day affairs of Maral Overseas Limited, and he 
leads the Garment division. His strategic vision and expertise have been 
instrumental in shaping the Company’s future.

In addition to his role at Maral Overseas Limited, Shri Shantanu Agarwal 
is also a Managing Director of BMD Private Limited, a market leader 
in manufacturing of automotive furnishing fabric in India, and a Non-
Executive Director of Bhilwara Technical Textiles Limited and BMD 
Power Private Limited.

His strong business acumen, leadership skills, and in-depth knowledge 
of the textile industry have enabling him to effectively manage and 
administer the affairs of these companies, ensuring efficiency and 
productivity.

List of Other Public Companies in which 
Directorships held #

1.  Bhilwara Technical Textiles Limited

Chairman / Member of the Committee of the 
Board of Directors of the Company

 • Member of Audit Committee

 • Member of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

 • Member of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Chairmanship/ Member of the Committee of 
the Board of Directors of the others Company

 • Member of Audit Committee- Bhilwara Technical Textiles Limited.
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Name of Director Shri Shantanu Agarwal
Listed Entity from which the person has 
resigned in the past 3 years

Nil

No. of Equity Shares held in the Company 554500
Terms & Condition of appointment or  
re-appointment

Executive director designated as Joint Managing Director liable to retire 
by rotation

Remuneration sought to be paid See note no. 1 below
Last Remuneration Drawn for FY2024-25 C 116.60 lakh.
Justification for choosing the Independent 
Director

Nil

Skills and capabilities required for the role 
and the manner in which the proposed person 
meets such requirements

He possess the requisite Skills, Expertise, Competencies as identified 
by NRC, which inter-alia includes finance, management, operations, 
marketing / sales and administration.

No. of Board meeting attended during the 
year

4 out of 4

#Excludes Directorships in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Membership of Management Committee of 
various chambers/Bodies and Section 8 Companies and LLP.

Note No. 1:   Remuneratiion of Executive Director(s) is approved by the Board of Directors of the Company upon commendation 
of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and further approved by the members of the Company.
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